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and its subsidiaries
registered a :
consolidated profit of
HK$8.3 million in 2019.
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THE YEAR’'S HIGHLIGHTS NEEFE

(BRE1ThE - BERBA RE T AR
SMILAEREFIR)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars except number
of shares issued, shareholders and personnel)

2019 2018
—EB-hEF —Z=—)\F
Revenue ($'000) WA (F7) 580,050 584,609
Profit/(loss) for the year ($'000) FERN,/ (BE)(Fr) 8,300 (74,088)
Earnings/(loss) per share — Basic (cents) TRAF, (B8 — &E& (L) 3 (20)
Taxes paid, including beer tax ($'000) EEEES (Fr) 13,825 17,338
Taxes paid per share (cents) HR&FEE (L) 4 S
Non-current tangible assets ($'000) FERBBFLEE (TIT) 474,377 487,708
Net worth ($'000) FE (FT) 515,914 500,668
Salaries, wages and other benefits ($'000) e TERHEMER (FT) 122,952 123,067
Number of shares issued BITIRER 373,570,560 373,570,560
Number of shareholders PR EH 1,946 1,990
Number of personnel ETAH 491 516
[
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT &%

Ramon S. Ang £
Chairman xJ&

To our shareholders,

FINANCIAL RESULTS

San Miguel Brewery Hong Kong Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(the "Group”) registered a consolidated profit of HK$8.3 million in 2019
(2018: consolidated loss of HK$74.1 million). Net profit attributable to equity
shareholders for 2019 reached HK$11.6 million (2018: net loss of HK$73.6
million).

The Group's consolidated revenue was HK$580.1 million, 0.8% lower than the
same period in 2018. Gross profit reached HK$258.8 million, 1.9% better than
the HK$253.9 million in 2018, with a gross profit margin of 44.6%.

As of 31 December 2019, cash and cash equivalents and bank deposits
amounted to HK$129.4 million (HK$117.8 million as of 31 December 2018).

Loans as of 31 December 2019 totaled HK$102.2 million, 11.6% lower than
the HK$115.6 million debt reported the prior year. Total net assets stood at
HK$515.9 million (HK$500.7 million as of 31 December 2018), with a loan-to-
equity ratio of 0.20 (31 December 2018: 0.23).
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT FE &

DIVIDENDS

No final dividends will be declared for the year ended 31 December 2019.

BUSINESS REVIEW
HONG KONG OPERATIONS

The social unrest that began in the second half of 2019 has considerably
affected the lifestyle and consumption habits of people in Hong Kong, and
have had significant repercussions on the local economy. Inbound tourism
dropped by 14% compared to 2018. Hong Kong's economy contracted,
entering into a recession in the third quarter of 2019. The beer industry
shrunk by 5%, with the mainstream beer segment the most affected. Because
of the unrest, consumption shifted from on-premise outlets to off-premise.

Our sales volumes were better than the industry average, with volumes
declining by 1%. It was in the tourism-dependent segments of on-premise in
the second half of 2019 that the decline was most evident. This was however
offset by a 2% increase in our export volume, which allowed our Hong Kong
operations to maintain total volume performance over the previous year.

In the local market, the Company improved its market share by responding
quickly and decisively to shifting market dynamics, even as we also ensured
that our diversified portfolio of brands was available to serve different market
segments. As Hong Kong consumers shifted to consuming beer at home, the
Company organized two rounds of the San Miguel market-wide lucky draw
promotion. Tactical advertising on television and on the internet ensured high
awareness, participation, and consumption. A series of premium redemption
promotions were organized throughout the year to push volumes in
convenience stores.

The Hong Kong Tourism Board cancelled last year's Hong Kong Dragon Boat
Carnival, of which San Miguel is the exclusive beer sponsor.

San Mig Light continued to perform well, registering double-digit volume and
revenue growth across all channels compared to last year. In the premium,
specialty, and craft beer segment, San Miguel Cerveza Negra also registered
double-digit volume and revenue growth.

In the lower-priced segment, our brand Blue Ice Beer was able to increase
its market share, following efforts to improve the brand’s image. The brand
revamped its secondary packaging and launched a retail chain-wide lucky
draw promotion in April 2019, leveraging on two key messages, “Extremely
Refreshing” and “Top 5 Beer Brands in Hong Kong".

The Company also saw growth in sales and revenue in Macau, as well as in
other export markets.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT FE &

BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)
SOUTH CHINA OPERATIONS

Our consolidated South China operations continued to register sales volume
growth and positive profit performance.

Guangzhou San Miguel Brewery Company Limited (“GSMB") registered slightly
lower volumes due to the volume loss of low-margin Guang's Pineapple beer,
which competes in the lower-priced segment where deep discounts are
generally offered.

In the mainstream segment, our higher margin flagship brands San Miguel
Pale Pilsen and San Mig Light registered volume growth, cushioning the
decline in total sales revenue. We attribute the volume gain to our Dealer
Development Program and our outlet-based marketing programs.

Our Dealer Development Program allowed us to add more quality dealers to
our network. This gave us better control over the value chain and enhanced
the efficiency and effectiveness of our going-to-market strategy. As part of our
outlet-based marketing programs, a Chinese New Year merchandising drive
across night outlets, Chinese restaurants, and supermarkets, was launched
for San Miguel Pale Pilsen. Similarly, we launched a merchandising campaign
for our new San Mig Light thematic ad in May to refresh and increase brand
visibility in almost a thousand outlets. Also, consumer promotions for San Mig
Light were implemented to increase volume off-take at the outlet level.

Also performing well is our Dragon brand which enjoyed a double-digit
volume growth over the previous year. Taking advantage of the brand’s
momentum, the Company launched a major merchandising drive to intensify
visibility and consumption.

Meanwhile, San Miguel (Guangdong) Brewery Company Limited (“SMGB"),
which serves as a production source of San Miguel Brewing International’s
export business, delivered a single-digit growth rate in total exports volume.

COMMUNITY RELATIONS AND SOCIAL
RESPONSIBILITY

Social responsibility is an important aspect of how we do business. Apart
from complying with legal and regulatory requirements, we strive to making a
positive impact on the welfare of our employees, their families, our business
partners, our local communities, and the environment.
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COMMUNITY RELATIONS AND SOCIAL
RESPONSIBILITY (Continued)

Since 2015, we have published an Environment, Social, and Governance
("ESG") Report to provide the public an appreciation of how we perform and
tackle different ESG issues. The Company's 2019 ESG Report will be available
on our website within three months from the publication of the Company’s
annual report.

We actively promote responsible drinking within the organization and to
the public. We also continue to support charitable organizations and NGOs
through financial and product support, as well as by sharing with them our
time, experience, and expertise.

We are also committed to protecting the environment and ensuring that
environmental standards and initiatives set by the government are met or
exceeded.

HUMAN RESOURCES

The role our employees play and their ability to contribute success to
the company and community are very important for the Company. We
continue to invest in our people, ensuring that they are equipped with the
right knowledge, skills, and experiences that match our needs. We invest
in training, seminars, mentorships and team-building activities to promote
personal and professional development and help our employees realize their
fullest potential, as well as to strengthen teamwork within the organization.
We also have in place a set of safety and health measures to protect our
human resources from both the day-to-day working environment and
extraordinary circumstances such as the recent social unrest.

We continue to offer competitive remuneration packages commensurate
with industry standards and provide attractive benefits, including medical and
insurance coverage and numerous paid leaves on top of what is required by
the law.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company has applied the principles set out in the Corporate Governance
Code and Corporate Governance Report contained in Appendix 14 of the
Listing Rules throughout the year, save for the deviation discussed below:

o All of the non-executive directors are not appointed for a specific
term (Code Provision A.4.1) but are subject to retirement by rotation
at least once every three years and re-election at the annual general
meeting in accordance with the Company’s Articles of Association.

o Meeting between the chairman and the independent non-executive
directors without the presence of other directors was not held during
the year under review (Code Provision A.2.7) because of scheduling
difficulties on account of the local situation in Hong Kong. However,
there is effective communication channel between the directors and
any significant issues can be discussed between the chairman and
independent non-executive directors whenever necessary.

10

REEMRR & RE ()

BT RFE RMAMETECRE Hak
B (IRE -HekEn)) mE) ([®E]) &
NREFRERBEMMAETREHRE g
RERTHWARZEE - ARF T NFHIR
BoudekBaBafenFaiER=RAN
JiNZYNEIEEVLRLE A

HPEBREARARAAREEGRAE - #M
TEEFBRRAEVBNER  HESESER
FOFBFMEA - AR EMBFID ZHANERE - &
BRERAH

BMEN RGBT - IR A ERBBHTH
bl s ERRIDE -

ANBE

BTHARBEEEZNER  MMAEQRNHLE
EOERRARMEIEEE - RABEBEET
5 FRWER  BRETAEBOMNE - KL
BREXBFEDE - RMEHEI - S - RED
FREMBE A ERN TIEY LIRMER - (e A (]
MEAMBRAR « S MIZEEEMIBRER
AIAMEBAE - HABE T —EL2MERD
Hifc R THB®TIERR - SHREEIRR
AT EE A & TSRS S ERE o

BPEE RSB THENE MISRENF I RIRMH
HalEER - BREE2ENEFRENRE - AR
RTRINERERNAFHERY -

®RER

REBEFE - NAF—BERMBEN LR R &
T CEEERTRD R(EEERRSE) HE
BRAN - HE TSP Y R BETT AFRID -

. REARNFABER  MBERTESS
—HFECRRAFASRERTAERE
PR A EAEES (FRIEXALN
) e

. REBFEAR  EFERELIFATESHE
BRAEEMESHFENBR TERBITE S
(FRNEX A2718) - RARAREBEH
MERAMB AL HER - B2 EF2H
FEABUMBRRE  NMELE  FFH
BYIEMITE R Z A AR IEREAR

o



CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT FE &

DIRECTORS

There has been no change in membership of the Board of Directors since we
published our interim report on 26 August 2019.

FUTURE DIRECTION AND CHALLENGES

For 2020, the Company has outlined the following objectives:

In Hong Kong, we will improve profitability and work to increase our
market share through the optimal use of resources, a greater focus
on the San Miguel brand and through nurturing a winning culture
throughout the organization. We will work closely with wholesalers
and direct customers to ensure product availability is in line with
market needs.

In South China, we intend to improve profitability by further developing
both our dealer and wholesaler networks. We will strengthen the
brand equity of both the San Miguel and Dragon brands while
enhancing the productivity of our sales force. We will also maintain
our export business and aim to improve margins and rationalize costs.

In pursuing these objectives, we will be responsive to the following risks:

On January 30, 2020, the World Health Organization declared a global
health emergency on the COVID-19, after confirmed cases of the
virus spiked tenfold in a less than a week. The immediate effect in
Hong Kong, Macau and South China is the drop in restaurant and
bar business, as consumers are choosing to stay home. This shift
in consumer behavior, together with slower economic activity, is
expected to negatively impact the business community in 2020.

The social unrest in Hong Kong appear to have subsided for the time
being, taking a back seat to the COVID-19. Whether the unrest will
resume after the end of this health emergency is unknown and will be
closely monitored.

The Hong Kong government is imposing a recycling levy on glass
beverage containers. When this measure is put in place, prices for our
products in glass bottles may be affected, which, in turn, will impact
consumption.

China’s economic growth is likely to slow down in 2020, with concerns
on the trade dispute with the United States compounded by the
COVID-19 epidemic.

Looking ahead, we reiterate our commitment to maximizing shareholder
value and strengthening our brands. We have a number of strategies in place
to not only help us cope with the risks we foresee, but also to enable us to
manage costs effectively so as to strengthen profitability.

We will strive to ensure that our beer brands remain relevant to our
consumers and customers, regardless of the occasion, their location, lifestyle
and earning power.

Apart from the sales and marketing strategies we have in place, we also
have new guidelines, systems, and policies to ensure efficient and effective
cost management, sustainable environmental management, and responsible
social engagement.
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FUTURE DIRECTION AND CHALLENGES (Continued)

We convey our sincere gratitude to our Board of Directors for their
guidance. We also wish to thank our employees for their dedication
and professionalism, and most of all, our shareholders, customers, and
consumers for their continued support.

L

Ramon S. Ang
Chairman

2 March 2020
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DIRECTORS' REPORT EE2#H 4%

To be presented at the Fifty-seventh Annual General Meeting of shareholders
to be held at Island Ballroom, Level 5, Island Shangri-La Hong Kong, Two
Pacific Place, Supreme Court Road, Central, Hong Kong on 20 April 2020 at 3:00
p.m.

The directors submit their Annual Report together with the audited financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2019.

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS

San Miguel Brewery Hong Kong Limited (the “Company”) is a company
incorporated and domiciled in Hong Kong and has its registered office and
principal place of business at 9/F, Citimark Building, 28 Yuen Shun Circuit, Siu
Lek Yuen, Shatin, New Territories, Hong Kong.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activities of the Company are the manufacture and distribution
of bottled, canned and draught beers. The principal activities and other
particulars of the Company's subsidiaries are set out in note 13 to the
financial statements.

The segment analysis of the Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) for
the financial year is set out in note 3 to the financial statements.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The information in respect of the Group's sales and purchases attributable to
the major customers and suppliers, respectively, during the year is as follows:

HHREBNR-_Z_TFOA-_THETF=RER
EEBRRERBALES _HESERELX
BELBESRBTZEL T tERREAFKE

FRRER -

BEFgo AAZKRREZBE_T-NAF+_H
=T ALEFEZFREEEZMBERE -

FEERME

BERENEERAR AR ([ARF]) 2—HRE
BEMRZIN R M ERE R EBERNE
REEF DB NERRIEE —+ /) GRE SRS
Nig -

FERY

ARRBZEBRGREERDHGE - BRI
FKEE - SMBRA 2 T BEBREMAHEHN
PATEERRMIRE S

BERAVRFERARRLEMBRR ([REH]
ZEERIAHT - BNEATEIRARMIEES o

FEERRUER
U TR AAT R EBE P KRS Bl A%
B 54t S RI R 2 A

Percentage of the Group’s total

HAREE
The largest customer BARF 36.33%
Five largest customers in aggregate BRREFAR 58.31%
The largest supplier ARIER 7.11%
Five largest suppliers in aggregate BRARMHERER 28.24%

One of the five largest suppliers and one of the five largest customers was
San Miguel Corporation (“SMC") and its associates (collectively the “San
Miguel Group”) in which Mr. Ramon S. Ang, Mr. Carlos Antonio M. Berba, Mr.
Ramon G. Torralba, Mr. Alonzo Q. Ancheta, Mr. Roberto N. Huang, Mr. Fumiaki
Ozawa, Mr. Reynato S. Puno, Mr. Carmelo L. Santiago, Mr. Kenji Uchiyama and
Mr. Tomoki Yamauchi have beneficial interests to the extent that they have/
had equity interests in and/or are/were directors and/ or officers of the San
Miguel Group.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS (Continued)

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the year have the directors, their
associates, or any shareholder of the Company (which to the knowledge of
the directors owns more than 5% of the Company’s share capital) had any
interest in these major customers or suppliers.

RECOMMENDED DIVIDENDS

The directors have resolved that no final dividend be declared for the year
ended 31 December 2019.

BUSINESS REVIEW AND PERFORMANCE

A fair review of the Group's business during the year, including the analysis
using financial key performance indicators, and the outlook of the Group’s
business are provided in the Chairman'’s Statement section from pages 7 to
12 of this Annual Report. Description of the principal risks and uncertainties
which faced the Group in 2019 can be found in the Chairman’s Statement,
including the financial risks mentioned in note 24 to the financial statements.

As part of the Group's efforts to integrate internal resources, reduce
management costs and improve operational efficiency, the Company
undertook a simplification of the organizational structure of the Group which
involved the vertical amalgamation of the Company with its wholly- owned
subsidiary, Ravelin Limited, pursuant to Section 680, Part 13 of the Companies
Ordinance. The vertical amalgamation was approved by the Company’s
shareholders at the Extraordinary General Meeting of the shareholders
held on 26 April 2019 and the Companies Registry issued the certificate of
amalgamation on 19 June 2019. Accordingly, as and from 19 June 2019, all
assets, liabilities, business and staff of Ravelin Limited were consolidated into
the Company as the amalgamated company, and Ravelin Limited ceased to
exist as an entity separate from the Company.

There were no other important events affecting the Group that have occurred
since the end of the financial year 2019.

The Company defines stakeholders as all those who affect, and/or are
affected by, its business. It embraces both internal and external stakeholders,
ranging from employees, trade partners, shareholders, suppliers, government
and local communities. The Company believes that engaging stakeholders
is crucial for the sustainability of its business, as this does not just help
the Company understand the possible risks and opportunities to its
business, but also makes possible the actual mitigation of the risks and
the full comprehension of the opportunities to its business. The Company
also communicates with them through various channels to ensure that
its stakeholders are made aware of and understand its business and/or
products.
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BUSINESS REVIEW AND PERFORMANCE (Continued)

The Company endeavors to protect the environment in which it operates its
business. During the year ended 31 December 2019 (“the year under review"),
there was no material non-compliance in relation to air and greenhouse gas
emission, discharges into water and land, and generation of hazardous and
non-hazardous wastes. The Company also endeavors to further improve
the management of the different Company resources and its operations to
prevent pollution and minimize waste, and is committed to continuously train
and encourage all its employees to be more environmentally conscious.

During the year under review, no material non-compliance of the laws and
regulations that have a significant impact on the Company was noted. In
addition, a discussion on the Company’s compliance with the Corporate
Governance Code (“CG Code”) is included in the Corporate Governance
Report as well as a discussion on the Company’s financial statements’
compliance with the Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance and the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Listing Rules”) are included in
note 1 to the financial statements.

CHARITABLE AND OTHER DONATIONS

Charitable and other donations made by the Group during the year amounted
to HK$28,500 (2018: HK$12,200).

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the share capital of the Company are set out in note 23(b) to the
financial statements.

DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company as at the date of this Annual Report are set out
on page 2 of this Annual Report.

During the year under review, all of the directors served as such for the full
year.

Mr. Alonzo Q. Ancheta, Mr. Carlos Antonio M. Berba, Ms. May (Michelle) W. M.
Chan and Mr. Fumiaki Ozawa, retire by rotation in accordance with Article 105
of the Company’s Articles of Association at the forthcoming Annual General
Meeting and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

None of the directors proposed for re-election at the forthcoming Annual
General Meeting has an unexpired service contract which is not determinable
by the Company or any of its subsidiaries within one year without payment of
compensation, other than normal statutory obligations

16

EHBERRRER (B

ARABBANFREELLENRE R-_FT—hF
TZA=+—BULFE (QEFE] A EER
AR ZEREPEN - KOS - UEBEE
REEBRERWHNES DA NFEEAENERT
Mo ARRFBNE - FREEHTFRERNE
32 SR E AR SR 5 R S BE R R B RAK - AN
ARFERINEBAEE TURRESREMNR

REBEFER  BARABAEAZENGRER
BRI FETAERERBRL - L H - ARA]
BFEEERTR (TREREETH] BERE R
BE(REEARE) URARR RN EHRKRET
TRV EREER - FECRFHRD) ZBRE R
BEBMARZAERATES LETHRA ([ EHR
1)) WBERD BREEMBRRME -

BERHMBR
REBNAFERNZEEREAMIBRA 128,500
BT (ZF—)\F 1 12,20087T) °

Bx%

BEBRARABRAZFREINS B HRERM T
23(p) °

EF
RAFERZ BRBREEZREHNE2H -

REBFEEAR  2REFONEFEETEERT -

Alonzo Q. Anchetast 4 ~ SR LAE « BREFE R+
T2 R EIRIEA A RIAA S Z T2 5 105 1§
T REERITZRERAFTFAS ERRERE
EIRET o

BREERREAFAS LEEET ESTWER
AR B SHEALIME R R T AR B SE A
BRRATER —FAKIEMMELERE (&)X
FERRERRIN) ZRBAH



EBENDEHARIT —B-NFFR

DIRECTORS' REPORT EE& %

DIRECTORS OF SUBSIDIARIES

The names of all directors who have served on the boards of the subsidiaries
of the Company during the year ended 31 December 2019 or during the
period from 1 January 2020 to the date of this Annual Report are available on
the Company'’s website, info.sanmiguel.com.hk.

DIRECTORS' INTERESTS

The directors of the Company as of 31 December 2019 had the following
personal interests in the shares of the Company, its holding companies,
subsidiaries and other associated corporations (within the meaning of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO")) at that date as recorded in the
register of directors’ interests required to be kept under Section 352 of the
SFO:

(1)  INTERESTS IN ISSUED SHARES

David K. P Li

Par Value

Types of (Philippine

Shares PEsos)

[E=

REGER CEEEEZR)

Ramon S. Ang BB Common 1.00
il

Carlos Antonio M. Berba JES Common 1.00

Roberto N. Huang HER Common 1.00
L@

Reynato S. Puno Reynato S.Puno  Common 1.00
i

Carmelo L. Santiago i) Common 1.00

MEARES
REBEE_Z-NFTA=+—BILEFESH=
ToTF-A—BAEANFHRABIEE - AR
BANGMBARESENETHLHNALQF
4Bk - 434k A info.sanmiguel.com.hk °

ERECER

R(EHFLPEED) B2 GRERTESE
wmE ML E  RZE-NF+RA=+—
AZARBEZRERRAARA  HERA
A MEARREMBMELR (ERER (EHFLY
BIRGD) BBITRAZ BERESOT

(1) EBBITERARzER

Number of ordinary shares
in the Company
AATZEBRZRODER
Number of % of total
shares held issued shares
HERTRG
BYZHDL

BEREE

12,000,000 3.21%

Number shares in
Top Frontier Investment
Holdings, Inc.

Top Frontier Investment

Holdings, Inc. 2 R & E

Total % of total
Direct Indirect  number of issued
ownership  ownership shares held shares
EERTRG
HERE MERE FRYEAY #BcEIMN
75887 86,658,351 86,734,238 25.907003%
364 — 364 0.000109%
3,039 — 3039 0.000908%
500 — 500 0.000149%
500 — 500 0.000149%

[ ]
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS (Continued) MEBAREE (8
(1) INTERESTS IN ISSUED SHARES (Continued) (1) BRRITREzER (8)

Number of shares in
San Miguel Corporation

EHBATRZRDEE

Par Value Total % of total

Types of (Philippine Direct Indirect  number of issued

Shares pesos) ownership  ownership shares held shares

HE EEBTRE

REGER CEEERZR) EERE BEEE FRUEAY BB

Ramon S. Ang RN Common 5.00 1345429 373,623,796 374969225  9.957941%
i

Carlos Antonio M. Berba SLEE Common 5.00 3,645 — 3645  0.000097%
3

Preferred 5.00 10,000 — 10,000 0.000266%
B%

Roberto N. Huang BER Common 5.00 42,397 — 42,397 0.001126%
ER

Reynato S. Puno Reynato S.Puno ~ Common 5.00 5,000 — 5000  0.000133%
i

Carmelo L. Santiago k4= Common 5.00 5,000 — 5000  0.000133%
i

Number of shares In
San Miguel Food and Beverage, Inc.
San Miguel Food and Beverage, Inc.

ZROHA
Par Value Total % of total
Types of (Philippine Direct Indirect  number of issued
Shares pesos) ownership  ownership shares held shares
HE LEBRTRE
ROER CEEERR) EERE HERE SR¥E4AY 28zask
Ramon S.Ang BEX common 1.00 10 — 10 0.000000%
i
Roberto N. Huang HER common 1.00 10 — 10 0.000000%
Preferred 10.00 — 3,500 3,500 0.000059%
B
Carmelo L. Santiago i) Common 1.00 10 — 10 0.000000%
i
Note: Ff3E
Other than the preferred shares in San Miguel Food and Beverage, Inc. ("SMFB") M B R S AR San Miguel Food and Beverage,
which were held by Mr. Roberto N. Huang and the common shares in SMFB Inc. (TSMFBJ) Fis A 2 @R R itm 5t £ R
which were held by Mr. Carmelo L. Santiago as personal interest, all shares in SMFBFT#S B 2 EilmlR A A ARSI - BESEF
SMFB were held by the directors as corporate interests. BB SMFB Z R H 19 AR Al -
[
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DIRECTORS' INTERESTS (Continued) MEBARES (&)
(1) INTERESTS IN ISSUED SHARES (Continued) (1) EBRITREzER (B
Number of shares
in San Miguel Brewery Inc.

EneERLARZROBE

Par Value Total % of total
Types of (Philippine Direct Indirect  number of issued
Shares pesos) ownership  ownership shares held shares
G EEBTRE
REGER CEEEEZR) HERE MERE FRYEAY #¥EIHN
Ramon S. Ang BB Common 1.00 5,000 - 5000 0.000033%
i
Carlos Antonio M. Berba AT Common 1.00 5,000 — 5,000 0.000033%
g il
Alonzo Q. Ancheta Alonzo Q. Ancheta common 1.00 10,000 — 10,000 0.000065%
Roberto N. Huang B3R Common 1.00 5,000 — 5,000 0.000033%
L@
Carmelo L. Santiago k3= Common 1.00 5,000 — 5,000 0.000033%
Kenji Uchiyama ALE= Common 1.00 5,000 — 5000 0.000033%
L&
Tomoki Yamauchi LR Common 1.00 5,000 — 5000  0.000033%
i
Note: Fi3E
Other than the common shares in San Miguel Brewery Inc. (“SMB”) which were % Alonzo Q. Ancheta 7t 4 R L E R A 7
held by Mr. Alonzo Q. Ancheta and Mr. Carmelo L. Santiago as personal interest, EEE AR ([A£DEEm ] FisaEARE AR
all common shares in SMB were held by directors as corporate interests. w2 EERSN  HESRB 2B E N EER
BRI RN TR o
—

19



San Miguel Brewery Hong Kong Ltd. Annual Report 2019

DIRECTORS' REPORT EE2#H 4%

DIRECTORS' INTERESTS (Continued)

(2)

INTERESTS IN UNDERLYING SHARES

As of 31 December 2019, the directors do not have interests in any
underlying shares of the Company, its holding companies, subsidiaries
and other associated corporations within the meaning of Part XV of
the SFO.

All interests in the shares and underlying shares of the Company, its
holding companies, subsidiaries and other associated corporations
are long positions.

Apart from the foregoing, at no time during the year was the
Company or any of its holding companies, subsidiaries or associated
corporations a party to any arrangement to enable the directors of the
Company to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in
or debentures of the Company or any other body corporate.

Apart from the foregoing, none of the directors of the Company or any
of their spouses or children under eighteen years of age has interests
or short positions in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of
the Company or any of its holding companies, subsidiaries or other
associated corporations, as recorded in the register required to be
kept under section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the
Company pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers as adopted by the Company.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISIONS

Pursuant to the Company’s Articles of Association, directors shall be
entitled to be indemnified out of the assets of the Company against all
losses or liabilities which he may sustain or incur in or about the execution
of the duties of his office or elsewhere in relation thereto, provided that its
provisions are not avoided by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. Such
provisions were in force during the year ended 31 December 2019 and
remained in force as of the date of this Annual Report.
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The Company improved
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS IN SHARES
AND UNDERLYING SHARES
The Company has been notified of the following interests in the Company’s

issued shares at 31 December 2019 amounting to 5% or more of the ordinary
shares in issue:

Substantial shareholders

EFERR

Inigo Zobel (note 1)
Top Frontier Investment Holdings,

Inc. (note 1)
San Miguel Corporation (note 1)
Kirin Holdings Company, Limited (note 1)
San Miguel Food and Beverage,

Inc. (note 1)
San Miguel Brewery Inc. (note 1)
San Miguel Brewing International Limited (note 1)
Neptunia Corporation Limited (note 1)
Cheung Kong (Holdings) Limited (note 2)
CK Hutchison Holdings Limited (note 2)

Notes:

M
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IRigo Zobel (Ff{zE 1)

Inc. (FF&E1)
L UNCIRCI D)
BB g (EE1)
San Miguel Food and Beverage,
Inc. (PIsE1)
ENEERAR (HEE1)
& EEBIE AR A (FIEE1)
SimFBRAR (M)
RIMEZERERAE (MFE2)
RIMEEEERAAE (MFE2)

Ifligo Zobel, Top Frontier Investment Holdings, Inc. (“Top Frontier”), the ultimate
holding company, SMC, SMFB, Kirin Holdings Company, Limited (“Kirin”) (a
principal shareholder of SMB), SMB, and San Miguel Brewing International
Limited ("SMBIL") are all deemed to hold the above disclosed interest indirectly
through Neptunia Corporation Limited (“Neptunia”) in the Company because
each of Ifigo Zobel, Top Frontier, SMC, SMFB and Kirin holds more than one
third of the voting power of SMB. SMB has a controlling interest in SMBIL and
SMBIL has a controlling interest in Neptunia.

Conroy Assets Limited, which holds 13,624,600 shares of the Company, and
Hamstar Profits Limited, which holds 10,078,400 shares of the Company, are
indirect wholly owned subsidiaries of Cheung Kong (Holdings) Limited (“CKH")
and CK Hutchison Holdings Limited (“CK Hutchison”).

By virtue of the SFO, CKH and CK Hutchison are deemed to be interested in
the shares of the Company held by Conroy Assets Limited and Hamstar Profits
Limited.

Top Frontier Investment Holdings,

FERRRERMREMBRMZER
R-ZB-NFF+=A=+—H KAFEET

(AR TR BT EERZ 5% R EHAR AR E
AR RS

Ordinary shares

EERR G

Number of
ordinary % of total
shares held issued shares
HERTRG
FrsEERER B zEDLE
245,720,800 65.78%
245,720,800 65.78%
245,720,800 65.78%
245,720,800 65.78%
245,720,800 65.78%
245,720,800 65.78%
245,720,800 65.78%
245,720,800 65.78%
23,703,000 6.34%
23,703,000 6.34%

F 7AINigo Zobel ~ Top Frontier Investment
Holdings, Inc. ([Top Frontier ) » % & #& 2 %
DNFEENARAT - SMFB R BHER KR &
TEEEED (RENERK EZRFR) &8
BEENGER=Dz— A EZRE®E  £5
BB E NS EBRR AR AR ([E78E
BARR |) 7 P Rscae an Je AE 77 8RB B R 4% 78 N7 it )
BEATR ([ZumA ) Z s - #ulkinigo
Zobel « Top Frontier « £ 7 4272 7] ~ SMFB ~ it
B - A 0 nER T R K A O PR R R 45 4 AR A T
FB L AE A TR BN AR B 2 xR o

conroy Assets Limited## & 78 A 713,624,600
% % 15 K2 Hamstar Profits Limited#5 & & 2 A
10,078,400 % f& 1 » HEARTILEERER
AR ((RICEZRR]) RRINCEEERA
Al ([RM)) zRE2EREMBAR -

RIB(ESFRPERD) RICELREER
5 1R A % A f Conroy Assets Limited &
Hamstar Profits Limited 3% 5 2 AN A RIA& {5 2 #
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS IN SHARES
AND UNDERLYING SHARES (Continued)

All the above interests in the shares and underlying shares of the Company
are long positions.

Apart from the foregoing, no other interests required to be recorded in
the register kept under Section 336 of the SFO have been notified to the
Company

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and within
the knowledge of the directors of the Company as at the date of this Annual
Report, the Company has maintained the prescribed public float under the
Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Pursuant to an agreement dated 12 June 1963, Neptunia provides technical
and advisory services to the Company and may be paid a General Managers'
commission. General Managers’ commission has not been paid by the
Company or charged by Neptunia since the 1995 financial year.

Mr. Ramon S. Ang, Mr. Carlos Antonio M. Berba, Mr. Ramon G. Torralba, Mr.
Alonzo Q. Ancheta, Mr. Roberto N. Huang, Mr. Fumiaki Ozawa, Mr. Reynato
S. Puno, Mr. Carmelo L. Santiago, Mr. Kenji Uchiyama and Mr. Tomoki
Yamauchi are interested parties to the above contract and to the connected
transactions and continuing connected transactions below to the extent that
they have/had equity interests in and/or are/were directors and/or officers of
SMBIL, SMB, SMFB, SMC and/or Top Frontier, the ultimate holding company of
Neptunia.

No contract of significance to which the Company or any of its holding
companies, subsidiaries or associated corporations was a party, and in which
a director of the Company had a material interest (other than Mr. Ramon S.
Ang who has a substantial interest in the shares of Top Frontier and SMC
as disclosed in the section “Directors Interests” in this report, and who
accordingly abstained from the voting on the Company’s entering into of
these transactions), subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the
year.
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our brands. :
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND CONTINUING
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Q)]

TRADE-RELATED CONTINUING CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS MADE WITH THE SAN MIGUEL GROUP

Purchases from/sales to the San Miguel Group

In order to comply with the Listing Rules, the Company entered into
an agreement with SMC on 4 February 2016 ("Agreement”) with a view
to renewing the agreement to carry out the trade-related continuing
connected transactions from 1 January 2017 to 31 December 2019
under the same terms and conditions as those under the agreements
entered into by SMC and the Company dated 11 March 2005, 6
December 2007, 11 May 2009, 15 October 2010 and 7 March 2013 in
respect of such trade-related continuing connected transactions.

The Agreement, including the trade-related continuing connected
transactions and the caps set for such transactions, was approved by
independent shareholders at the Extraordinary General Meeting of the
Company held on 29 April 2016.

Pursuant to the Agreement, the Group entered into the following
trade-related continuing connected transactions during the year.

Continuing connected transactions

Purchase of packaging materials by the AEBRENER
Group from the San Miguel Group BEBEME

Purchase of packaged beer by the AEEREHEE
Group from the San Miguel Group EEE R

Sales of packaged beer and non-alcoholic REBEREHEEHE

beverage products by the Group to the

San Miguel Group, provided that such sales or
distribution of packaged beer shall not be
carried out in the Philippines,

unless through SMB

i

MEXRHRISHEMERZ S

(1

EERWA K IEEERR M
C AEMTRERIFREHE
(RENE B AR HEERRIN)

BEHGEEZRENSERERS

KEE HETEHEE

BFAETHRA ARG EENERARR
—E-RNFZRAMB—miEE ([
HFEDMRMEFHER T —CF—A
—RAE_E-NE+-_A=+—HETH
B BBNBERERS @ &ipd 2 I&K
MEHER-—"ETRF=A+—H =&
T+HFE+-_ANH ZEEZNEFERA+—
A —Z—ZF+A+HREE-_Z—=F
ZAtHBAREEE HBE ARG 2 H
B 5 EBENBERER SN HHMER -

hHEE (BREESEHUNFERERS
REtERSER) ER-_F—XRFOA
T ABERARTNBIREHIAE REE
STRRRHLAE -

RAFEER  NEBRBHREETAT
HEZHERNFHERERS -

2019 2019
—E-hE —E-hEF
Actual cap
BH LR
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BETIT
2,744 46,000
1,932 7,200
210,749 370,000
——
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND CONTINUING
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(1

26

TRADE-RELATED CONTINUING CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS MADE WITH THE SAN MIGUEL GROUP
(Continued)

Purchases from/sales to the San Miguel Group (Continued)

The independent non-executive directors of the Company have
reviewed these continuing connected transactions and confirmed that
such transactions were:

— entered into in the ordinary and usual course of business of
the Group;

— conducted either on normal commercial terms or, if there are
not sufficient comparable transactions to judge whether they
are on normal commercial terms, on terms no less favourable
to the Group than terms available to or from independent third
parties; and

— in accordance with the relevant agreements governing them
on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of
the Company and its shareholders as a whole.

The Company's auditor was engaged to report on the Group’s
continuing connected transactions in accordance with Hong Kong
Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised) “"Assurance
Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial
Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s
Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong
Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. The auditor has issued its unqualified letter containing
the auditor’s findings and conclusions in respect of the continuing
connected transactions disclosed by the Group on pages 25 to 26
of this Annual Report in accordance with the Main Board Listing
Rule 14A.56. A copy of the auditor's letter has been provided by the
Company to The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

In anticipation of the expiration of the Agreement on 1 January 2020,
the Company entered into an agreement with SMC on 5 March 2019
(“Renewal Agreement”) with a view to further renewing the agreement
to carry out the trade-related continuing connected transactions
from 1 January 2020 to 31 December 2022 under the same terms and
conditions as those under the agreements entered into by SMC and
the Company dated 11 March 2005, 6 December 2007, 11 May 2009,
15 October 2010, 7 March 2013 and 4 February 2016 in respect of
such trade-related continuing connected transactions.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND CONTINUING
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

Q)]

(2)

TRADE-RELATED CONTINUING CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS MADE WITH THE SAN MIGUEL GROUP
(Continued)

Purchases from/sales to the San Miguel Group (Continued)

The Renewal Agreement, including the trade-related continuing
connected transactions and the caps set for such transactions, was
approved by independent shareholders at the Extraordinary General
Meeting of the Company held on 26 April 2019.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS MADE WITH
GUANGZHOU BREWERY AND THE SAN MIGUEL GROUP
RELATING TO LICENSING AGREEMENTS

Guangzhou San Miguel Brewery Company Limited (“GSMB”) is an
equity joint venture formed between San Miguel (Guangdong) Limited
("SMG") and Guangzhou Brewery (“GB") and is held as to 70% by
SMG and as to 30% by GB. SMG is a 92.989%-owned subsidiary of the
Company and GB is a connected person of the Company by virtue
of its substantial shareholding in GSMB. To facilitate the business
operations of GSMB, San Miguel International Limited (“SMIL") (a
member of the San Miguel Group) and GB have each granted GSMB
a licence to use their respective trademarks upon establishment
of GSMB (the “SMIL Trademark Licensing Agreement” and the “GB
Trademark Licensing Agreement”, respectively).

Apart from the SMIL Trademark Licensing Agreement, the Group
has also entered into other licence agreements with certain other
members of the San Miguel Group: (i) the Neptunia Sub-licence
Agreement entered into between the Company and Neptunia (an
indirect subsidiary of SMC) and (ii) the SMBIL Sub-licence Agreement
entered into between SMGB and SMBIL (an indirect subsidiary of
SMC).

The directors (including the non-executive directors) consider that
the terms of the SMIL Trademark Licensing Agreement, the Neptunia
Sublicense Agreement, the SMBIL Sub-license Agreement (collectively,
the “San Miguel Group Licensing Agreements”) and the GB Trademark
Licensing Agreement, including their respective tenures which are
for more than three years, are on normal commercial terms, fair
and reasonable, and that the transactions contemplated under such
agreements are in the interests of the Company and the shareholders
as awhole.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND CONTINUING
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(2)

28

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS MADE WITH
GUANGZHOU BREWERY AND THE SAN MIGUEL GROUP
RELATING TO LICENSING AGREEMENTS (Continued)

The transactions under the San Miguel Group Licensing Agreements
(which have been aggregated as a single transaction for purposes
of the Listing Rules) and the GB Trademark Licensing Agreement
constituted continuing connected transactions under Rule 14A.34(1)
of the Listing Rules. The annual royalties payable by the Group under
each of (i) the San Miguel Group Licensing Agreements and (ii) the
GB Trademark Licensing Agreement shall be less than HK$10 million
for the year ended 31 December 2007 and each of the financial
years during the remaining term of the relevant licence/sub-licence
agreements. Based on this proposed cap, the transactions under
each of (i) the San Miguel Group Licensing Agreements and (ii) the GB
Trademark Licensing Agreement are only subject to the reporting and
announcement requirements and are exempt from the independent
shareholders’ approval requirement.

An announcement was made by the Company on 19 September 2007
in this respect.

In relation to the SMIL Trademark Licensing Agreement and the
Neptunia Sub-licence Agreement, as per the payment instructions of
SMC dated 18 December 2000, all royalties receivable from GSMB and
the Company have been assigned and transferred to SMBIL effective
1 January 2000 until further notice.

On 1 April 2010, a Deed of Assignment was entered into between
SMIL, SMBIL and GSMB pursuant to which SMIL agreed to assign,
transfer and convey in favour of SMBIL all of SMIL's rights, title and
interest over the SMIL Trademark Licensing Agreement. Both SMBIL
and GSMB consented to such assignment pursuant to the Deed of
Assignment.

After the assignment, SMBIL became the licensor of the trademarks
licensed to GSMB under the SMIL Trademark Licensing Agreement. All
other terms of the SMIL Trademark Licensing Agreement as assigned
to SMBIL remain unchanged. The transaction contemplated under the
SMIL Trademark Licensing Agreement as assigned to SMBIL continues
to constitute a continuing connected transaction for the Company
under the Listing Rules.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND CONTINUING
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Continued)
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS MADE WITH
GUANGZHOU BREWERY AND THE SAN MIGUEL GROUP
RELATING TO LICENSING AGREEMENTS (Continued)

An announcement was made by the Company on 1 April 2010 in this
respect.

The amount of royalties paid to GB and the San Miguel Group for the
year ended 31 December 2019 were HK$1,823,000 and HK$1,041,000
respectively (2018: HK$1,903,000 and HK$166,000).

The independent non-executive directors of the Company have
reviewed these continuing connected transactions and confirmed that
such transactions were:

— entered into in the ordinary and usual course of business of
the Group;

— conducted either on normal commercial terms or, if there are
not sufficient comparable transactions to judge whether they
are on normal commercial terms, on terms no less favourable
to the Group than terms available to or from independent third
parties; and

— in accordance with the relevant agreement governing them on
terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
Company and its shareholders and as a whole.

The Company's auditor was engaged to report on the Group’s
continuing connected transactions in accordance with Hong Kong
Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised) “Assurance
Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial
Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s
Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong
Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. The auditor has issued their unqualified letter containing
the auditor’s findings and conclusions in respect of the continuing
connected transactions disclosed by the Group on pages 27 to 29 of
this Annual Report in accordance with Main Board Listing Rule 14A.56.
A copy of the auditor’s letter has been provided by the Company to
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND CONTINUING
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Continued)
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(3)

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS MADE WITH
GUANGZHOU BREWERY AND THE SAN MIGUEL GROUP
RELATING TO LICENSING AGREEMENTS (Continued)

In anticipation of the expiration of the Neptunia Sub-licence
Agreement on 1 January 2020, an Extension Letter was signed by
Neptunia and by the Company on 18 October 2019 to extend the
term of the Neptunia Sub-licence Agreement for one year from 1
January 2020 to 31 December 2020 at nil consideration. Save for such
extension, all other terms of the Neptunia Sub-license Agreement
remain unchanged.

An announcement was made by the Company on 18 October 2019 in
this respect.

OTHER CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS MADE WITH THE
SAN MIGUEL GROUP

The Group purchased brewing materials and other materials from
the San Miguel Group during the year, which amounted to HK$38,000
(2018: HK$34,000). The Group also sold raw materials and packaging
materials to subsidiaries of SMC during the year, which amounted to
HK$12,000 (2018: HK$6,000). These transactions are exempt from all
the reporting, announcement and independent shareholders’ approval
requirements according to Chapter 14A.76(1) of the Listing Rules (De
minimis transactions). Also, as set out in note 26(a) to the financial
statements, interest expense of HK$4,303,000 (2018: HK$6,040,000)
was paid for the loan from an intermediate holding company and
advertising and promotion subsidy of HK$Nil (2018: HK$14,175,000)
was received from an intermediate holding company for promotion
of certain brands in the People’s Republic of China (“PRC"). These
transactions are also exempt from the reporting, announcement and
independent shareholders’ approval requirement according to the
Chapter 14A.90 of the Listing Rules.

The Group has complied with the requirements set out in Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules in respect of the continuing connected transactions and
connected transactions stated above.
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EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT PLANS EREAEEE

The Company and its subsidiaries in Hong Kong have sponsored a AR & REEEHBARYE AESIZHIEMHEM

noncontributory defined benefit scheme, The San Miguel Brewery Hong Kong ~ R ERAIEREE » L AT BE NG HRE R

Limited Retirement Fund (“Fund”), which covers local permanent employees,
and was registered in September 1995 under the Occupational Retirement
Schemes Ordinance. The Fund's assets are held in trust and administered by
a trustee. The members’ benefits are determined based on the employees’
final remuneration and length of service. Contributions to the Fund are made
in accordance with the recommendations of independent actuaries who
value the retirement scheme at regular intervals, usually triennially.

The Fund was granted exemption from the Mandatory Provident Fund
("MPF") regulations by the MPF Scheme Authority on 24 July 2000, following
modifications to the Fund benefits which comply with MPF regulations.

The latest actuarial assessment of the Fund was carried out as at 1 January
2018 and the results were as follows:

(1) the latest actuarial assessment of the Fund was prepared by
independent qualified staff of Willis Towers Watson. In the actuarial
valuation, the attained age method was used. Other major
assumptions used in the valuation were: investment return of 4% per
annum; long-term salary escalation of 5% per annum; mortality rates
under the 2016 Hong Kong Life Tables; normal retirement age of 60
years; and early retirement rates allowed between the ages 55 to 60
years;

2) the unaudited market value of the Fund assets was HK$95,499,000 as
at 1 January 2018;

(3) the minimum level of funding as recommended by the actuary of the
Fund was 8.9% of salaries for 2018, 2019 and 2020; and

(4) the solvency surplus was HK$9,712,000, i.e., the obligation under the
Fund was 111% covered by the Fund'’s assets, as at 1 January 2018.

Particulars of the employee retirement plans of the Company and the Group
are set out in note 20 to the financial statements.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

The Group's working capital at 31 December 2019 was net current assets of
HK$98,622,000 compared with HK$94,495,000 as at 31 December 2018,

The Group's cash and bank deposits (excluding pledged deposits) as at
31 December 2019 were HK$129,393,000 (2018: HK$117,809,000) and are
sufficient to fund working capital requirements and capital expenditure in
2020.
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LOANS

The Group has a loan from an intermediate holding company. Total
borrowings at 31 December 2019 for the Group were HK$102,230,000
(2018: HK$115,637,000).

Particulars of the loan from an intermediate holding company of the
Company and the Group as at 31 December 2019 are set out in note
19 to the financial statements.

FIVE YEAR SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group
for the last five financial years is set out on page 148 of this Annual
Report.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'’S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the year.

CODE OF BEST PRACTICE

Principal corporate governance practices adopted by the Company
are set out in the Corporate Governance section on pages 36 to 52 of
this Annual Report.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

The Company has received from each of the independent non-
executive directors an annual confirmation of independence pursuant
to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and considers all the independent
non-executive directors to be independent.

AUDITORS

KPMG retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment.
A resolution for the re-appointment of KPMG as auditors of the
Company is to be proposed at the forthcoming Annual General
Meeting.

By order of the board

L

Ramon S. Ang
Chairman

Hong Kong, 2 March 2020
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COMMITMENT TO CORPORATE GOVERNANCE OISR AKE

The Company is committed to maintaining compliance with statutory
and regulatory standards and adherence to the principles of corporate
governance emphasizing transparency, independence, accountability,
responsibility and fairness. The board and the senior management of the
Company ensure that effective self-regulatory practices exist to protect
the interests of the shareholders of the Company. These include a board
comprised of high calibre members, board committees and effective internal
systems and controls.

The Company has applied the principles set out in the CG Code throughout
year under review as contained in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules, save for
the deviation discussed below:

o All of the non-executive directors are not appointed for a specific term
(Code Provision A.4.1 of the CG Code) but are subject to retirement
by rotation at least once every three years and re-election at the
annual general meeting in accordance with the Company’s Articles of
Association.

o Meeting between the chairman and the independent non-executive
directors without the presence of other directors was not held during
the year under review (Code Provision A.2.7 of the CG Code) because
of scheduling difficulties on account of the local situation in Hong
Kong. However, there is effective communication channel between
the directors and any significant issues can be discussed between
the chairman and independent non-executive directors whenever
necessary.

The following sections set out the principles in the CG Code as they have
been applied by the Company, including any deviation therefrom, for the year
under review.

THE BOARD

As at 31 December 2019, the board is comprised of twelve directors (one
executive director, who is the managing director, seven non-executive
directors and four independent non-executive directors) who possess the
skills, experience and expertise either in the same industry or relevant to the
management of the business of the Group. The biographies of the directors
are set out from pages 54 to 61 of this Annual Report under the “Directors
and Management Executives” section. There is no financial, business, family
or other material or relevant relationship among the members of the board.
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THE BOARD (Continued)

The management and control of the business of the Company is vested in its
board. It is the duty of the board to create value for the shareholders of the
Company, establish the Company’s strategic direction, set the Company’s
objectives and plan in accordance therewith, and provide leadership and
ensure availability of resources in the attainment of such objectives. The
board is bound to manage the Company in a responsible and effective
manner, and therefore every director ensures that he carries out his duty
in good faith and in compliance with the standards of applicable laws
and regulations, and acts in the best interests of the Company and its
shareholders at all times.

The board and the executive management have clearly defined
responsibilities under various internal control and checks-and-balance
mechanisms. The board has delegated a schedule of responsibilities to the
executive management of the Company. These responsibilities include:
implementation of the decisions of the board and organisation and direction
of the day-to-day operation and management of the Company in accordance
with the management strategies and plans approved by the board;
preparation and monitoring of annual production plans and operating budget;
and control, supervision and monitoring of capital, technical and human
resources.

The board held four meetings during the year under review. The chief finance
officer and company secretary attended all the scheduled board meetings
to report matters arising from corporate governance, risk management,
statutory compliance, accounting and finance, and kept detailed minutes
of each meeting which are available for all directors. At the meetings, the
directors discussed and formulated overall strategies for the Company,
monitored financial performance and discussed the annual and interim
results, as well as other significant matters. Daily operational matters are
delegated to management.

At least fourteen days of notice of all board meetings was given to all
directors, and all directors were given the opportunity to include matters for
discussion in the agenda. An agenda and accompanying board papers are
sent in full to all directors at least three days before every board meeting.
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THE BOARD (Continued)

The number of board meetings and committee meetings attended by each
director during the year under review is set out in the following table. Figure
in brackets indicates the maximum number of meetings in the period in
which the individual was a board member or board committee member (as
the case may be).

EEeg ()

REBEFERN SESFHFEFEERNEEE
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Alonzo Q. Ancheta
David K.P Li
Carmelo L. Santiago
Reynato S. Puno
Wiliam C. M. Cheng
(Alternate to David K.P. Li)

Executive director
Ramon G. Torralba (Managing Director)

Non-executive directors
Ramon S. Ang (Chairman)

Carlos Antonio M. Berba (Deputy Chairman)

May (Michelle) W. M. Chan
Roberto N. Huang
Fumiaki Ozawa

Kenji Uchiyama

Tomoki Yamauchi

38

BUkHTES

Alonzo Q Ancheta

£

i3

Reynato S. Puno

AR
(ZEEIEHEE)

uiTEs
HEE (H172%)

FHTES
BEV(ER)
S8BT (87F)
Ex
BER
NEFR
RlE=
et

N/A

N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A

N/A

N/A
2/2)
N/A
12
N/A
N/A
N/A

N/A

N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
)
N/A

VN

1) )
0/(1) 0/(1)
0/(1) 0/(1)
0/(1) 0/(1)
11 1
1) 1)
0/(1) 0/1)
11 11
0/(1) 0/(1)
0/(1) 0/(1)
110 )
1) 110
1) 11)



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT 1 ¥&E8H &

THE CHAIRMAN AND THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The chairman of the board is Mr. Ramon S. Ang. The chief executive officer (or
managing director, in the case of the Company) is Mr. Ramon G. Torralba. The
chairman’s and the managing director’s roles are clearly defined to ensure
their independence, accountability and responsibility.

The chairman takes the lead in formulating overall strategies and policies
of the Company; ensures the effective performance by the board of its
functions, including compliance with good corporate governance practices;
and encourages and facilitates active contribution of directors in board
activities and constructive relations between executive and non-executive
directors. The chairman also ensures effective communication with
shareholders of the Company and receipt by the directors of adequate and
complete information. The role of deputy chairman is carried out by Mr.
Carlos Antonio M. Berba.

The managing director, supported by other board members and the senior
management, is responsible for managing the day-to-day business of the
Company. He is also accountable to the board for the implementation of the
Company'’s overall strategies, and coordination of overall business operations.

DIRECTORS AND DIRECTORS' INDEPENDENCE

As at the date of this Annual Report, the board consists of eleven non-
executive directors and one executive director. Four of the non-executive
directors are independent. Further details of the composition of the board
can be found in the section entitled “The Board” of this Annual Report.

All of the non-executive directors are not appointed for a specific term, but
are subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at the annual general
meetings in accordance with the Company’s Articles of Association.

Under the Company’s Articles of Association, one-third of the directors, as
well as directors who at an annual general meeting of the Company shall
have been a director at each of the preceding two annual general meetings
and were not elected or re-elected at either annual general meetings, and
who has not ceased to be a director and been re-elected at or since either
at such annual general meetings, are subject to retirement, rotation and re-
election at each annual general meeting.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Non-executive directors are expected to participate in the activities of the
board, particularly in the establishment of a selection process to ensure a
mix of competent directors and officers; adoption of a system of internal
checks and balances; scrutiny of the Company’s performance in achieving
agreed corporate goals and objectives; and ensuring that the exercise of
board authority is within the powers conferred to the board under its Articles
of Association, by-laws and applicable laws, rules and regulations.
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DIRECTORS AND DIRECTORS' INDEPENDENCE (Continued)
INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The independent non-executive directors of the Company are highly skilled
professionals with a broad range of expertise and experience in the fields of
accounting, finance and business. Their skills, expertise and number in the
board ensure that strong independent views and judgment are brought in
the board’s deliberations and that such views and judgment carry weight in
the board’s decision-making process. Their presence and participation also
enable the board to maintain high standards of compliance in financial and
other mandatory reporting requirements, and provide adequate checks and
balances to safeguard the interests of shareholders of the Company and the
Company.

Each independent non-executive director gives the Company an annual
confirmation of his independence. The Company considers such directors to
be independent under the guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

Each director, upon reasonable request, is given access to independent
professional advice in circumstances he may deem appropriate and
necessary for the discharge of his duties to the Company, at the expense of
the Company.

DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing all information
and representations contained in the financial statements of the Company
for the year under review. The directors consider that the financial statements
have been prepared in conformity with the generally accepted accounting
standards in Hong Kong, and reflect amounts that are based on the best
estimates and reasonable, informed and prudent judgment of the board
and management with an appropriate consideration to materiality. As at 31
December 2019, the directors, having made appropriate enquiries, are not
aware of any material uncertainties relating to events or conditions which
may cast significant doubt upon the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern. Accordingly, the directors have prepared the financial statements of
the Company on a going concern basis.

The responsibilities of the external auditors with respect to financial reporting

are set out in the section of “Independent Auditor’s Report” on pages 136 to
144 of this Annual Report.
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INTERNAL CONTROL, RISK MANAGEMENT AND AIREEIE IS EE R ASBERXRIIRE

INTERNAL AUDIT FUNCTION

The Company performed the High Level Risk Assessment for the Group
and enhanced the Group's framework for its risk management and internal
control system. Key business objectives and risk parameters were updated
and determined to assess the level of inherent risk.

Based on these business objectives and risk parameters, the key risks of the
Group and improvement opportunities to address these risks were identified.
The Group's internal controls in place were also tested and evaluated so as
to determine its effectiveness and the level of residual risk.

The Group's risk management framework is based on the “Three Lines of
Defense” model.

1. The Management team is responsible for the continuous identification,
assessment, monitoring and reporting of risks and opportunities in
their respective areas, the planning and implementation of actions
to manage these risks; and escalation of these risks to the Managing
Director and Business Control team that exceed the tolerance limits.

2. The Business Control team conducts periodic review and challenge
of top risks impacting the Group's strategic objectives; escalates
the top risks to senior management and through them, to the Audit
Committee and the board for their review; and facilitates the risk
management process.

3. The Group Internal Audit Function provides assurance over the
effectiveness of controls in place to manage risk.

For 2019, the board has conducted a review of the Company’s internal
control systems, including financial, operational and compliance control
and risk management functions and assessed the effectiveness of internal
control by considering reviews performed by the audit committee, executive
management, external advisor and internal auditors. It considered that the
Group's risk management and internal control system was effective and
adequate.

The board acknowledges that it has the overall responsibility for maintaining
sound and effective risk management and internal control systems to
safeguard the Group's assets and shareholders’ interests, as well as for
reviewing their effectiveness. However, the Group’s risk management and
internal control systems are designed to manage rather than eliminate the
risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and only provide reasonable
and not absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.
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INTERNAL CONTROL, RISK MANAGEMENT AND
INTERNAL AUDIT FUNCTION (Continued)

As a member of a group with multiple listed issuers, the Group shares with
the San Miguel group’s resources in carrying out its internal audit function.
Its internal audit is performed by the internal audit function of its parent
company, San Miguel Brewery Inc. The internal audit function directly reports
to the audit committee.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE POLICY AND DUTIES

The board is responsible for performing the duties on corporate governance
functions set out below:

(1) developing and reviewing the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance and making recommendations to the board;

2) reviewing and monitoring the training and continuous professional
development of directors and senior management;

(3) reviewing and monitoring the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

(4) developing, reviewing and monitoring the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and directors;
and

(5) reviewing the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and
disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.

INSIDE INFORMATION

The Company is fully cognizant of its disclosure obligations under the
Securities and Futures Ordinance and the Listing Rules. The Company
has included in its Code of Conduct for Securities Transactions and
Dealings (“Code of Conduct”) and staff handbook a strict prohibition on
the unauthorised use of confidential or inside information. The Company'’s
Code of Conduct is further discussed in the “Code of Conduct on Directors’
Securities Transactions” section of this Annual Report.

An Inside Information Policy has been adopted to ensure Inside Information
of the Company is to be disseminated to the public in equal and
timely manner in accordance with the applicable laws and regulations.
The Inside Information Policy is available on the Company’s website,
info.sanmiguel.com.hk.
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SUPPORT FOR DIRECTORS

To assist the directors in the discharge of their duties, the Company provides
every newly appointed director with a comprehensive induction program on
the first occasion of his appointment, where such directors are provided with
information on the Company’s organization and business; the membership,
duties and responsibilities of the board, board committees and senior
management, corporate governance practices and procedures; and latest
financial information on the operations of the Company. Such information
shall be supplemented with visits to the Company’s key plant sites and
meetings with key senior executives.

Throughout their tenure, the directors shall be provided with updates on the
business of the Company, latest developments of the Listing Rules and other
applicable legal and regulatory requirements, corporate social responsibility
matters and other changes affecting the Company.

DIRECTORS’ TRAINING

According to the CG Code A.6.5, all directors should participate in continuous
professional development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills
to ensure that their contribution to the board remains informed and relevant.
The Company shall be responsible for arranging and funding suitable training,
placing an appropriate emphasis on the roles, functions and duties of the
directors.

The directors confirm that they have complied with the CG Code on directors’
training. The Company had received from each of the directors their
confirmations on taking continuous professional training.

THE BOARD COMMITTEES
AUDIT COMMITTEE

For the year under review, the audit committee comprised three independent
non-executive directors: Mr. Alonzo Q. Ancheta, Mr. Carmelo L. Santiago
and Dr. the Hon. Sir David K. P Li, who acts as chairman of the committee.
The audit committee met two times in 2019 with full minutes kept by the
company secretary. Individual attendance of each committee member at
these meetings is shown in the table presented above.

Under its terms of reference, the audit committee shall assist the board in
fulfilling its corporate governance and oversight responsibilities in relation
to financial reporting, internal control structure, risk management systems
and internal and external audit functions. The audit committee is further
authorised by the board to investigate any activity within its terms of
reference, and is tasked with recommending to the board appropriate actions
emanating from such investigations. The audit committee has unrestricted
access to personnel, records, internal and external auditors, risk assessment
and assurance and senior management, as may be appropriate in the
discharge of its functions.
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THE BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)
AUDIT COMMITTEE (Continued)

In 2019, the audit committee discharged its responsibilities by:

)

44

making recommendations to the board on the reappointment of
the external auditor and approval of the remuneration and terms of
engagement of the external auditor;

monitoring the external auditor’s independence and objectivity and
the effectiveness of the audit process in accordance with applicable
standards, and discussing with the external auditor the nature and
scope of the audit and reporting obligations;

implementing the Company's policy on the engagement of an external
auditor to supply non-audit services;

reviewing and monitoring the integrity of the financial statements of
the Company and the Company’s annual and interim reports and the
auditors’ report to ensure that the information presents a true and
balanced assessment of the Company’s financial position;

reviewing the Company’s financial controls, risk management and
internal control systems to ensure that management has discharged
its duty to have effective systems including discussing the risk
management and internal control systems with management;

ensuring the coordination between the internal and external auditors
and that the internal audit function is adequately resourced and
has appropriate standing within the Company, and reviewing and
monitoring the effectiveness of the audit function;

reviewing the Company’s financial and accounting policies and
practices,

reviewing the external auditor's management letter, material queries
raised by the external auditor to the management in respect of the
accounting records, financial accounts or systems of control and the
management’s response to such queries; and

reporting to the board on the matters set out in the CG Code on the
audit committee.
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THE BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)
AUDIT COMMITTEE (Continued)

The audit committee is authorised by the board to obtain external legal or
other independent professional advice and to secure the attendance of
outsiders with relevant experience and expertise if it considers necessary
in the performance of its functions. The audit committee is provided with
sufficient resources by the Company to discharge its duties. The audit
committee’s specific terms of reference are available on request to any
shareholders of the Company and are posted on the Company’s website,
info.sanmiguel.com.hk.

During the year under review, the total fees in respect of audit and non-audit
services (mainly tax advisory work and risk management advisory work)
provided to the Company and its subsidiaries by external auditors amounted
to HK$3,306,000 (2018: HK$3,295,000) and HK$94,000 (2018: HK$120,000),
respectively.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

For the year under review, the remuneration committee comprised three
independent non-executive directors, namely, Dr. the Hon. Sir David K.P. Li,
Mr. Reynato S. Puno and Mr. Carmelo L. Santiago, and two non-executive
directors, namely, Mr. Carlos Antonio M. Berba and Mr. Roberto N. Huang.
The remuneration committee was chaired by an independent non-executive
director, namely Mr. Reynato S. Puno. The remuneration committee met
twice in 2019 with full minutes kept by the company secretary. Individual
attendance of each committee member at these meetings is shown in the
table presented above.

The primary role of the remuneration committee under its terms of reference
is to support and advise the board in fulfilling the board’s responsibility to the
shareholders of the Company to:

(1) establish coherent remuneration policies and practices that will be
observed and enable the Company to attract and retain top caliber
executives and directors,

2) fairly and responsibly reward executives based on their performance
and the performance of the Company, and the general pay
environment; and
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THE BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued) EEZRE (B

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE (Continued) FMEEE (&)

©) comply with the CG Code provisions on remuneration of directors,  (3) ReBBESHECEEATARE
mainly by: £ ARET -
. determining executive and director remuneration policy; . EFTHRABRESHEHMECE
. determining the remuneration of executive directors upon . EERFEINTESHHRSEBEM

consultation with the chairman or managing director regarding
their proposals for such remuneration;

o reviewing and approving the remuneration of the executives
who directly report to the managing director, and as
appropriate, other senior management; and

o reviewing and approving all equity-based plans.

The remuneration committee has the right to seek any information it
considers necessary to fulfil its duties, which includes the right to obtain
appropriate external advice at the Company’s expense, and is provided with
sufficient resources by the Company to discharge its duties. The remuneration
committee’s specific terms of reference are available on request to any
shareholders of the Company and are posted on the Company’s website,
info.sanmiguel.com.hk.

During the year under review, the remuneration committee reviewed the
remuneration package of the managing director and key senior executives.
As recommended, no directors’ fees will be paid for the year 2019.

Details of the remuneration of directors for the year ended 31 December
2019 are set out in note 7 to the financial statements.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

During the year under review, the nomination committee comprised one non-
executive director, namely Mr. Kenji Uchiyama and four independent non-
executive directors: Mr. Alonzo Q. Ancheta, Dr. the Hon. Sir David K.P. Li, Mr.
Reynato S. Puno and Mr. Carmelo L. Santiago. The nomination committee is
chaired by an independent non-executive director, Mr. Carmelo L. Santiago.
The nomination committee met once in 2019 with full minutes kept by the
company secretary. Individual attendance of each committee member at the
meeting is shown in the table presented above.
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THE BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)
NOMINATION COMMITTEE (Continued)

Under its terms of reference, proceedings and meetings of the committee
will be governed by the provisions of the Company’s Articles of Association
for regulating the proceedings and meetings of the board of the Company
in so far as they are applicable and not inconsistent with the nomination
committee’s terms of reference. The primary purpose of the committee is to
support and advise the board in fulfilling their responsibilities to shareholders
in ensuring that the board comprises individuals who are best able to
discharge the responsibilities of directors having regard to the law and the
highest standards of governance by:

(

—

) assessing the skills required for the board;

2) from time to time assessing the extent to which the required skills are
represented on the board;

) establishing the process for the review of the performance of
individual directors and the board as a whole;

(4) establishing the process for the identification of suitable candidates
for appointment to the board; and

(5) having oversight of matters relating to corporate governance by
bringing any issues to the attention of the board.

The nomination committee has the following responsibilities:

(1) review the structure, size and composition (including the skills,
knowledge and experience) of the board on a regular basis and make
recommendations to the board regarding any proposed changes;

2 identify individuals suitably qualified to become board members and
select or make recommendations to the board on the selection of
individuals nominated for directorships;

(3) assess the independence of independent non-executive directors,

(4) make recommendations to the board on relevant matters relating
to the appointment or re-appointment of directors and succession
planning for directors, in particular the chairman and the chief
executive officer;

(5) have oversight of all matters relating to corporate governance; and

(6) being entitled to employ, at the Company’s expense, the services of
such advisers as it deems necessary to fulfil its responsibilities.
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THE BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued) EFERE (®)
NOMINATION COMMITTEE (Continued) BEZEES (B)

In the discharge of its responsibility in item (1), the Committee takes into
consideration, among others, that a diverse board of directors, with the
appropriate qualifications and broad range of expertise relevant to the
Company'’s business, is an essential element in maintaining a competitive
advantage in the complex business industry that the Company operates, and
embraces the policy that including and making use of increasing diversity
at the board level, which consists of differences in the skills, experience,
background, race, gender and other distinctions amongst directors, is
important to achieve effective corporate governance and sustained
commercial success of the Company. These differences will be considered in
determining the optimum composition of the board and when possible are
balanced appropriately.

In addition, in identifying individuals and making recommendations for
nominations pursuant to its responsibility in item (2) above, the Committee
considers whether such individuals possess the qualifications, ability
and stature that would enable them to effectively fulfill their roles and
responsibilities as directors of the Company. The responsibilities of the
nomination committee in items (1) to (4) above as further set out in its
terms of reference form the key principles that constitute the Company’s
nomination policy.

The nomination committee has the right to seek any information it
considers necessary to fulfil its duties, which includes the right to obtain
appropriate external advice at the Company’s expense, and is provided with
sufficient resources by the Company to discharge its duties. The nomination
committee’s specific terms of reference are available on request to any
shareholders of the Company and are posted on the Company’s website,
info.sanmiguel.com.hk.

CODE OF CONDUCT ON DIRECTORS' SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Code of Conduct based on the Model Code
for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers set out in Appendix
10 of the Listing Rules (“Model Code”). The terms of the Code of Conduct
are no less exacting than the standards in the Model Code, and the Code
of Conduct applies to all the relevant persons as defined in the said code,
including the directors of the Company, any employee of the Company, or
a director or employee of a subsidiary or holding company of the Company
who, because of such office or employment, are likely to be in possession
of unpublished price sensitive information in relation to the Company or its
securities.

There was no non-compliance by the directors with the required standards
set out in the Code of Conduct during the year under review.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company attaches great priority to establishing effective communications
with its shareholders and investors. In an effort to enhance such
communications, the Company provides information relating to the Company
and its business in its Annual Report and also disseminates such information
electronically through its website, info.sanmiguel.com.hk.

The Company also published its ESG Report on its website, info.sanmiguel.com.hk.
The ESG Report communicates to the Company’s stakeholders in a broad
manner the relevant environmental, social and governance initiatives that the
Company has made in reference to Appendix 27 of the Listing Rules. The 2019
ESG Report will be published in the Company’s website no later than three
months after the publication of the Company’s Annual Report.

The Company regards the annual general meeting as an important event
as it provides an opportunity for direct communications between the board
and its shareholders. All directors and senior management make an effort to
attend the annual general meeting of the Company to address shareholders’
queries. All the shareholders of the Company are given a minimum of twenty
business days' notice of the date and venue of the annual general meeting of
the Company. The Company supports the CG Code’s principle to encourage
shareholders’ participation.

WHISTLEBLOWING POLICY

To ensure that the business of the Group is conducted in the highest
standards of fairness, transparency and accountability, the Group has
its Whistleblowing Policy, which establishes procedures and channels
through which the directors, employees and other interested parties
may communicate concerns, in confidence, about any misconduct or
improprieties affecting the Group. The complete text of the Whistleblowing
Policy has been posted on the Company website, info.sanmiguel.com.hk.
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DIVIDEND POLICY BRERE

Under the dividend policy of the Company which it adopted on 5 March 2019
(“Dividend Policy”), The board may from time to time pay to the Company’s
shareholders dividends in the interim, semi-annually or at other suitable
intervals to be determined by the board, if the board is of the opinion that
the position and profits of the Company justify the payment. In deciding
whether to declare dividends and in determining the dividend amount,
the board shall take into consideration the performance, financial position,
liquidity, implementation of business plans, debt service requirements,
operating expenses, budgets, funding for new investments and acquisitions,
appropriate reserves and working capital, among others, of the Company and
its subsidiaries, as well as the general business and economic conditions.
The payment of dividends by the Company is also subject to the restrictions
and conditions under the laws of Hong Kong and the Company's Articles of
Association.

The Dividend Policy is subject to review and may be changed by the board at
any time.

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS
CALLING AN EXTRAORDINARY GENERAL MEETING

Pursuant to article 68 of the Articles of Association of the Company,
extraordinary general meetings may also be convened on requisition
as provided by Sections 566, 567 and 568 of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. The directors are required to call a general meeting if the
Company has received requests to do so from shareholders of the Company
representing at least 5% of the total voting rights of all the shareholders
having a right to vote at general meetings. The request must state the general
nature of the business to be dealt with at the meeting; and may include the
text of a resolution that may properly be moved and is intended to be moved
at the meeting. Requests may consist of several documents in like form. The
request may be sent to the Company in hard copy form or in electronic form,
and must be authenticated by the person or persons making it. The directors
must, within twenty-one days after the date on which they become subject
to the requirement, call an extraordinary general meeting which must be
held on a date not more than twenty-eight days after the date on which the
notice convening the meeting is given. If the directors fail to convene the
general meeting, the shareholders who requested the meeting, or any of
them representing more than one half of the total voting rights of all of them,
may themselves call an extraordinary general meeting. The meeting must
be called on a date not more than three months after the date on which the
directors become subject to the requirement to call a meeting.
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SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS (Continued)

PROCEDURES FOR PUTTING FORWARD PROPOSALS AT
SHAREHOLDERS' MEETING

Shareholders holding not less than 2.5% of the total voting rights of all the
members who have a relevant right to vote; or not less than fifty shareholders
who have a relevant right to vote may:

— circulate to shareholders of the Company entitled to receive notice
of a general meeting, a statement of not more than 1000 words with
respect to (a) a matter mentioned in a proposed resolution to be dealt
with at that meeting; or (b) other business to be dealt with at that
meeting; or

— request the Company to give, to members of the Company entitled to
receive notice of the annual general meeting, notice of a resolution
that may properly be moved and is intended to be moved at that
meeting.

For further details on the shareholder qualifications, and the procedures and
timeline, in connection with the above, shareholders are kindly requested to
refer to Sections 580 and 615 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Further, a shareholder may propose a person other than a retiring director
of the Company for election as a director at a general meeting at which
elections to the office of directors are to be considered. The following
documents must be submitted, no later than seven days before the date of
the general meeting, to the Company at its principal office at 9/F, Citimark
Building, 28 Yuen Shun Circuit, Siu Lek Yuen, Shatin, New Territories, Hong
Kong, for the attention of the Company Secretary: (a) the Director Nomination
Form with the required supporting documents; (b) the candidate’s resume;
and (c) a written statement signed by the candidate of his/her willingness
to be elected together with (i) that candidate’s information as required to be
disclosed under Rule 13.51(2) of the Listing Rules; (ii) the candidate’s written
consent to the publication of his/her personal data; and (iii) confirmation
that there are no grounds for his/her ineligibility and incompatibility to
act as a director and that he/she satisfies the integrity and, if applicable,
independence requirements under the applicable Listing Rules. The complete
text of the procedure for shareholders to propose candidates for election
as directors at general meetings has been posted on the Company website,
info.sanmiguel.com.hk.
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SENDING ENQUIRES TO THE BOARD MEFYEN

Shareholders should direct their questions about their shareholdings to the REEFEBRESERAAL T ZERDBEELE
Company's Registrar. Shareholders and the investment community may at 2558 o BRI E RAJBER ERA QA AIRH AT A
any time make a request for the Company’s information to the extent that FZ=BEIZ &k - REINAIEZF F AR IR E S
such information is publicly available. Shareholders may also make enquiries W EE Y ARWMEREETSIEEMEH @ Wik 5
to the board by writing to the Company Secretary at the Company’'s office  HFEFH R B/ NERRIEE —+ \5EE€e &5 N
in Hong Kong at 9/F, Citimark Building, 28 Yuen Shun Circuit, Siu Lek Yuen, #& o

Shatin, New Territories, Hong Kong.

52



G 1t




San Miguel Brewery Hong Kong Ltd. Annual Report 2019

DIRECTORS AND MANAGEMENT EXECUTIVES EERITHEEAE

DIRECTORS

Ramon S. ANG Chairman

Carlos Antonio M. BERBA Deputy Chairman
Ramon G. TORRALBA Managing Director

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

May (Michelle) CHAN Wen Mee
Roberto N. HUANG

Fumiaki OZAWA

Kenji UCHIYAMA

Tomoki YAMAUCHI

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Alonzo Q. ANCHETA

David LI Kwok-po GBM, JP

Reynato S. PUNO

Carmelo L. SANTIAGO

William CHENG Chuk Man, Alternate to David LI Kwok-po Gem, Jp

Mr. Ramon S. ANG, aged 66, is the Chairman and a non-executive Director
of the Company. He has been appointed as the Chairman since 10 June 2005
and a non-executive Director of the Company since 27 November 1998. He
is the Vice Chairman, President and Chief Operating Officer of San Miguel
Corporation (“SMC") (a company listed on the Philippine Stock Exchange);
Director, President and Chief Executive Officer of Top Frontier Investment
Holdings, Inc. (the ultimate parent company of the Company), San Miguel
Food and Beverage, Inc. and Petron Corporation (all of which are companies
listed on the Philippine Stock Exchange) and Northern Cement Corporation,
Chairman, Chief Executive Officer, President and Chief Operating Officer of
SMC Global Power Holdings Corp. (@ company listed on the Philippine Dealing
& Exchange Corp.); Chairman and President of San Miguel Holdings Corp., San
Miguel Equity Investments Inc., San Miguel Properties, Inc. and San Miguel
Energy Corporation; Chairman of San Miguel Brewery Inc. (a company listed
on the Philippine Dealing & Exchange Corp.), Eagle Cement Corporation (a
company listed on the Philippine Stock Exchange), Petron Malaysia Refining
& Marketing Berhad (a company listed on the Kuala Lumpur Stock Exchange),
San Miguel Yamamura Packaging Corporation, San Miguel Foods, Inc., San
Miguel Mills, Inc., Magnolia Inc., The Purefoods-Hormel Company, Inc., San
Miguel Super Coffeemix Co., Inc., Clariden Holdings, Inc., Anchor Insurance
Brokerage Corporation, Philippine Diamond Hotel & Resort, Inc. and Manila
North Harbour Port, Inc.; and Director and President of Ginebra San Miguel
Inc. (@ company listed on the Philippine Stock Exchange) and San Miguel
Northern Cement, Inc.. He is also the sole director and shareholder of Master
Year Limited and Chairman of Privado Holdings, Corp.. Mr. Ang is also the
Chairman, President and/ or Director of various subsidiaries of SMC. He
formerly held the following positions: Chairman of Liberty Telecom Holdings,
Inc. and Cyber Bay Corporation; President and Chief Operating Officer of
PAL Holdings, Inc. and Philippine Airlines, Inc.; Vice Chairman and Director
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of Manila Electric Company; and Director of Air Philippines Corporation. Mr.
Ang holds a Bachelor of Science degree in Mechanical Engineering from Far
Eastern University and a Doctorate in Business Engineering, Honoris Causa,
from the same university.

Mr. Carlos Antonio M. BERBA, aged 55, was appointed as Deputy
Chairman and Remuneration Committee member of the Company on 27
August 2010. Mr. Berba has been a Director of the Company since 16 April
2007. He is the Managing Director of San Miguel Brewing International
Limited; and a Director of Neptunia Corporation Limited (a controlling
shareholder of the Company) and San Miguel Brewery Inc. (@ company listed
on the Philippine Dealing & Exchange Corp.). He is also a Commissioner of
PT Delta Djakarta Thk (a company listed on the Indonesia Stock Exchange); a
Director of San Miguel Beer (Thailand) Limited, San Miguel Holdings (Thailand)
Limited, San Miguel Marketing (Thailand) Limited, and other subsidiaries
of the Company. Mr. Berba has over 30 years of experience in general
management, finance, strategic planning and corporate structuring initiatives.
Mr. Berba graduated from the University of the Philippines with a Bachelor
of Science degree in Electrical Engineering. He later obtained a Master’s
degree in Business Administration (with distinction) from the Wharton School
of Business, University of Pennsylvania and a Master’s degree in Japanese
Business Studies from Japan America Institute of Management Science &
Chaminade University of Honolulu.

Mr. Ramon G. TORRALBA, aged 63, was appointed as an Executive Director
and Managing Director of the Company with effect from 15 January 2013.
Mr. Torralba was the Vice President and Manager for Export Development of
San Miguel Brewing International Limited (a subsidiary of San Miguel Brewery
Inc.) since 2007. He was also a Director of San Miguel (Thailand) Company,
Ltd. from 2006 to 2007 and Vice President and Commercial Director of San
Miguel Marketing (Thailand) Ltd. from 2004 to 2007. He was also Assistant
Vice President-Consultant for Guangzhou San Miguel Brewery Co. Ltd., San
Miguel (Guangdong) Brewery Co. Ltd. and San Miguel (Baoding) Brewery
Co. Ltd. of the Beer Division of San Miguel Corporation from 2002 to 2004.
Mr. Torralba graduated from Zamboanga A.E. Colleges with a degree of
Bachelor of Science in Commerce, major in Accounting. He also attended the
Management Development Program at the Asian Institute of Management
(International School of Business and Management) in the Philippines in 1991.
Mr. Torralba is a Certified Public Accountant and a member of the Philippine
Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
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Mr. Alonzo Q. ANCHETA, aged 87 was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director and a member of the Audit Committee and the
Nomination Committee of the Company on 24 February 2017. He is currently
an Independent Director of San Miguel Brewery Inc. (@ company listed on the
Philippine Dealing & Exchange Corp.) and PTFC Redevelopment Corporation
(@ company listed on the Philippine Stock Exchange). He is the President of
Zobella & Co. (A.Q. Ancheta & Partners): Trademark & Patent Attorneys and the
Co-Founding Partner/Senior Adviser of Quasha Ancheta Pefia & Nolasco Law
Offices. He is also the Chairman and President of Ogilvy & Mather Philippines,
Inc.; President of Growe Investments Ltd.;, and a Member of the Board of
Trustees of St. Luke's Medical Center. Mr. Ancheta also provided service
for the Philippine Government as the Administrator of National Tobacco
Administration (1987 - 1990). Mr. Ancheta graduated from the University of
Manila with a Bachelor’s degree in Arts (Magna cum Laude) in 1953 and a
Bachelor's degree in Laws (Cum laude) in 1957. He is a lawyer (A.B., LL.B) by
profession, with practice areas in intellectual property law and commercial/
corporate/family law and estates and succession. He is also a member of
various organizations, including the Intellectual Property Association of the
Philippines (Council Adviser, 1988 - present), Philippine Bar Association, Legal
Management Council of the Philippines, Asian Patent Attorneys Association,
International Trademark Association, LAWASIA (Vice President International,
2017 - present), Licensing Executives Society International, ASEAN Law
Association, ASEAN Intellectual Property Association, American Chamber
of Commerce of the Philippines, Canadian Chamber of Commerce of the
Philippines, Philippine American Guardian Association, Philippine-Japan
Economic Committee, Philippines-Japan Society, Inc., Rotary Club of Marikina,
Jaycees International (Senator) and For Love of Mother Earth, Inc..

Ms. May (Michelle) CHAN Wen Mee, aged 55, was appointed as a non-
executive Director on 11 March 2011. Ms. Chan serves as Managing Director
of A.S. Watson Industries Limited. She served as Managing Director of
Hutchison Harbour Ring Limited from 1 February 2006 to 31 October 2010
and served as Executive Deputy Managing Director of Hutchison Harbour
Ring Limited from 18 May 2005 to 31 January 2006. Ms. Chan has extensive
experience in managing property development and investment businesses in
mainland China. She also holds directorships in certain companies controlled
by CK Hutchison Holdings Limited. Ms. Chan holds a Bachelor's degree in
Business Administration.
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Mr. Roberto N. HUANG, aged 71, has been appointed as a non-executive
Director and a member of Remuneration Committee of the Company with
effect from 8 November 2012. Mr. Huang is a Director and the President
of San Miguel Brewery Inc. (a company listed on the Philippine Dealing &
Exchange Corp.); a Director and the Chief Operating Officer — Beer of San
Miguel Food and Beverage, Inc. (@ company listed on the Philippine Stock
Exchange). He is also a Director of San Miguel Brewing International Limited,
and the Chairman and President of Iconic Beverages, Inc., Brewery Properties
Inc., and Brewery Landholdings, Inc.. Mr. Huang graduated from the Mapua
Institute of Technology with a Bachelor of Science degree in Mechanical
Engineering and completed academic requirements for a Master's degree
in Business Administration from De La Salle University. He also attended the
Nagoya International Training Center, Japan International Cooperation Agency
Grant for Metal Works Engineering and Numerical Control Machines course.

Dr. the Hon. Sir David LI Kwok-po, GBV, GBS, OBE, JF, MA Cantab. (Economics &
Law), Hon. LLD (Cantab), Hon. DSc. (Imperial), Hon. LLD (Warwick), Hon. DBA (Edinburgh Napier), Hon.

D.Hum.Litt. (Trinity, USA), Hon. LLD (Hong Kong), Hon. DSocSc (Lingnan), Hon. DLitt (Macquarie), Hon.
DSocSc (CUHK), FCA, FCPA, FCPA (Aust.), FCIB, FHKIB, FBCS, CITP, Officier de I'Ordre de la Couronne,
Grand Officer of the Order of the Star of Italian Solidarity, The Order of the Rising Sun, Gold Rays
with Neck Ribbon, Commandeur dans I'Ordre National de la Légion d’Honneur, aged 80, was
appointed on 22 March 1991. Sir David is an independent non-executive
Director, Chairman of the Audit Committee and a member of the Nomination
Committee and the Remuneration Committee of the Company. He is the
Executive Chairman of The Bank of East Asia, Limited (listed in Hong Kong). He
is an independent non-executive Director of Guangdong Investment Limited,
The Hong Kong and China Gas Company Limited, The Hongkong and Shanghai
Hotels, Limited and Vitasoy International Holdings Limited (all listed in Hong
Kong). He was an independent non-executive Director of PCCW Limited (listed
in Hong Kong). Sir David is a member of the Council of the Treasury Markets
Association. He is Founding Chairman of The Friends of Cambridge University
in Hong Kong Limited, Chairman of the Advisory Board of The Salvation Army;,
Hong Kong and Macau Command, Chairman of the Executive Committee of
St. James’ Settlement and a Fellow of the Hong Kong Academy of Finance. He
was a member of the Executive Council of Hong Kong from 2005 to 2008 and
the Legislative Council of Hong Kong from 1985 to 2012.

Mr. Fumiaki OZAWA, aged 50, was appointed as a non-executive Director
of the Company on 28 April 2017. He is also a Director and Executive Vice
President of San Miguel Brewing International Limited. He is also a Director
of San Miguel Holdings (Thailand) Limited, San Miguel Beer (Thailand) Limited
and San Miguel Marketing (Thailand) Limited; and a Commissioner of PT
Delta Djakarta Tbk (@ company listed on the Indonesia Stock Exchange). Mr.
Ozawa was a former Director and Executive Financial Advisor of San Miguel
Brewery Inc. (a company listed on the Philippine Dealing & Exchange Corp.),
the Senior Manager of Corporate Strategy Department of Kirin Holdings
Company, Limited and Senior Manager of Management Planning Department,
Kirin Company, Limited. He was also the Manager of Management Planning
Department of Kirin Company, Limited; Manager of Overseas Sales Division,
Kirin Techno-System Company, Limited and Sales Representative of Off-
premise Sales Section, Tohoku Regional Head Office, Kirin Brewery Company,
Limited. Mr. Ozawa graduated from Waseda University with a bachelor’s
degree in EConomics.
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Mr. Reynato S. PUNO, aged 79, has been appointed as an independent
non-executive Director and Nomination Committee member of the Company
from 8 November 2012 and as Chairman of the Remuneration Committee
from 24 February 2017. Mr. Puno is an independent Director of San Miguel
Corporation (a company listed on the Philippine Stock Exchange), and
Union Bank of the Philippines, Inc. (@ company listed on the Philippine Stock
Exchange), and an Independent Commissioner of PT Delta Djakarta Thk (a
company listed on the Indonesia Stock Exchange). He is also the Chairman
of the Environmental Heroes Foundation and World Vision; Vice Chairman of
GMA Kapuso Foundation; and a Director of The New Standard newspaper.
Mr. Puno served as the Chief Justice of the Philippine Supreme Court from
6 December 2006 until his retirement on 17 May 2010. He also served
previously in the Philippine judiciary as an Associate Justice of the Supreme
Court, Associate Justice of the Court of Appeals and Appellate Justice of the
Intermediate Appellate Court. Mr. Puno completed his Bachelor of Science
degree in Jurisprudence and Bachelor of Laws degree at the University of
the Philippines, and has a Master of Laws degree from the University of
California in Berkeley and a Master in Comparative Laws degree from the
Southern Methodist University, Dallas, Texas. He also completed academic
requirements for a Doctor of Juridical Science degree from the University of
lllinois.

Mr. Carmelo L. SANTIAGO, aged 77, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director of the Company from 4 September 2007, Chairman
of the Nomination Committee from 27 April 2012, a member of the Audit
Committee and the Remuneration Committee from 4 September 2007. He
is an Independent Director of San Miguel Brewery Inc. (@ company listed on
the Philippine Dealing & Exchange Corp.) and San Miguel Food and Beverage,
Inc. (@ company listed on the Philippine Stock Exchange) and a Director of the
Aurora Pacific Economic Zone Freeport Authority. Mr. Santiago is the founder
of Wagyu Restaurant and also the founder and chairman of Melo’s chain of
restaurants in the Philippines, as well as a Director of Terbo Concept, Inc., a
Philippine company engaged in retail and food business. He was a Director of
the Company from 27 February 2003 to 23 February 2005 and was a former
independent director of Liberty Telecoms Holdings Inc.. Having over 40 years
of directorate positions in various companies in the Philippines and Hong
Kong, Mr. Santiago has extensive experience in foods, beverages, publication,
properties, power and banking industries.
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Mr. Kenji UCHIYAMA, aged 55, was appointed as a non-executive Director
and member of the Nomination Committee of the Company on 13 April 2018.
Mr. Uchiyama is a Director and the Executive Vice President of San Miguel
Brewery Inc. (@ company listed on the Philippine Dealing & Exchange Corp.)
and Director of San Miguel Brewing International Limited, San Miguel Holdings
(Thailand) Limited, San Miguel Beer (Thailand) Limited, Iconic Beverages,
Inc., Brewery Properties Inc. and Brewery Landholdings, Inc. He was also the
Executive Officer and General Manager of Corporate Planning Department of
Kirin Brewery Company, Limited; a Director of Diageo Kirin Company, Limited,
Heineken Kirin Company, Limited, Eishogen Company, Limited, Kirin Distillery
Company, Limited and The Brooklyn Brewery Corporation; and the President
and Chief Executive Officer of The Brooklyn Brewery Japan Company, Limited.
Mr. Uchiyama also held the following positions in the Kirin group: Deputy
General Manager of Sales Department, in charge of Off-Premise Sales of Kirin
Beer Marketing Company, Limited; and Head of Sales Promotion Section of
Sales Department of Kirin Beer Marketing Company, Limited. Mr. Uchiyama
graduated from Keio University with a Bachelor’s degree in Social Psychology.

Mr. Tomoki YAMAUCHI, aged 52, was appointed as a non-executive
Director of the Company on 27 October 2017. Mr. Yamauchi is a Director
and the Executive Financial Advisor of San Miguel Brewery Inc. (@ company
listed on the Philippine Dealing & Exchange Corp.). He is also a Director of
San Miguel Brewing International Limited and San Miguel Beer (Thailand)
Limited. He was previously the Senior Manager of Accounting Department of
Kirin Company, Limited and the Senior Manager of Planning Department of
Kirin Beverage Company, Limited. Mr. Yamauchi was also the Senior Manager
of Management Planning Department of Kirin Company, Limited and Senior
Manager of Accounting Unit Group Finance of Kirin Holdings Company,
Limited; and Senior Manager of Finance and Accounting Department of Kirin
Group Office Company, Limited. Mr. Yamauchi graduated from Keio University
with a bachelor’s degree in Economics. He also completed a program for
Management Development in Harvard Business School.

Mr. William CHENG Chuk Man, aged 60, is Group Chief Financial Officer
of The Bank of East Asia, Limited. He is currently a Director of The Hong Kong
Settlers Housing Corporation Limited. He was previously a member of the
Board of Review (Inland Revenue Ordinance) during the period from 1998 to
2007. Mr. Cheng holds a Master of Business Administration degree from the
University of Sydney in Australia, and a Bachelor of Commerce (Accounting)
degree from the University of Birmingham in Britain. He is a fellow member
of The Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales, Association
of Chartered Certified Accountants and The Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants.
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MANAGEMENT EXECUTIVES

Ramon G. TORRALBA
Managing Director

John K.L. CHEUNG
Chief Finance Officer & Company Secretary

Richard W.K. CHAN
General Sales Manager

Eric W.M. CHEUNG
Senior Manager — Information Technology

Steven CO
Senior Manager — Corporate Development

Eric PK. LAM
Marketing Director

Edith .M. NG
Senior Manager — Human Resources & Administration

Kenneth W.S. YEUNG
Senior Manager — Operations

Ric W.T. YEUNG
Senior Manager — Logistics

Vincent K.M. KWOK
Managing Director of Guangzhou San Miguel Brewery Company Limited

Elisito A. LOCAYLOCAY
Assistant Vice President/Plant Manager/Brewmaster of San Miguel
(Guangdong) Brewery Company Limited

Mr. Ramon G. TORRALBA, Managing Director. Please refer to the Directors
section on page 55 for details.

Mr. John K.L. CHEUNG, MBA, 884, aged 56, Chief Finance Officer &
Company Secretary, joined the Company in 1997. Mr. Cheung is a member
of the Institute of Management Accountants. He has over 33 years of solid
experience in finance and accounting in various industries. Mr. Cheung
received a Master’s degree and a Bachelor's degree, both in Business
Administration, from Georgia State University, USA.

Mr Richard W.K. CHAN, msc, aged 51, General Sales Manager, joined the

Company in 2016. Mr. Chan has over 33 years of sales experience from
various industries.
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Mr. Eric W.M. CHEUNG, DBA, MBA, MSc, BSc, aged 57, Senior Manager —
Information Technology, joined the Company in 1993. Mr. Cheung has gained
33 years of solid experience in the operations and management of the
Information Technology functions.

Mr. Steven CO, BA, aged 50, Senior Manager — Corporate Development,
joined San Miguel Brewing Group of San Miguel Corporation in 1994. Mr.
Co has more than 25 years of experience in business planning, business
research, corporate affairs and quality management in the Company.

Mr. Eric P.K. LAM, MBA, BA, aged 56, Marketing Director, joined the Company
in 2008. Mr. Lam has over 26 years of experience in marketing in various
industries.

Ms. Edith Y.M. NG, mMBA DIP, aged 57, Senior Manager — Human Resources
& Administration, joined the Company in 1989. Ms. Ng has gained 33 years of
experience in the fields of marketing, sales and human resources.

Mr. Kenneth W.S. YEUNG, V84, 8Sc, aged 54, Senior Manager-Operations,
first joined the Company in 1988. Mr. Yeung has over 30 years of service
with the Company. He has extensive experience in the operations of beer
production.

Mr. Ric W.T. YEUNG, B84, aged 56, Senior Manager — Logistics, joined the
Company in 1983. Mr. Yeung has more than 36 years of extensive experience
in supply planning, procurement, physical distribution and import & export.

Mr. Vincent K.M. KWOK, MBA, BBA, aged 51, was appointed as the Managing
Director of Guangzhou San Miguel Brewery Company Limited on 1 January
2011. Mr. Kwok joined the Company in 2003. He has more than 28 years of
solid experience in marketing in various industries.

Mr. Elisito A. LOCAYLOCAY, ssche, aged 58, AVP/Plant Manager/
Brewmaster of San Miguel (Guangdong) Brewery Company Limited. Mr.
Locaylocay joined San Miguel Brewery Inc. in 1987. He has extensive working
experience in both Domestic and International Operations. Mr. Locaylocay
graduated from University of San Carlos with a Bachelor of Science degree in
Chemical Engineering.
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per share data and number of personnel

W in 8iE & & T ABIMGABEE TILat&E

Ten Year Review +E O e
2019 2018 2017
—E-NE —E-NF —T—tF
Revenue WA 580,050 584,609 565,785
Profit/(loss) from operations (1) e BF, (BB () 7,788 (64,690) 20,692
Profit/(loss) for the year (1) FERF (FE) () 8,300 (74,088) 15,219
Taxes paid, including beer tax T I e A 13,825 17,338 13,432
Cash dividends attributable to the year FEELESKRE — — —
Cash dividends per share (cents) RIS (L) — = =
Non-current tangible assets and projects FRBEREERERFIEE
under development 474,377 487,708 576,388
Net worth FE 515,914 500,668 584,811
Salaries, wages and other benefits e TEREMER 122,952 123,067 121,606
Number of personnel (2) BT AZ () 491 516 516
(M Profit from operations and profit for 2012 have been restated for the change in accounting policy for employee benefits.
) Number of personnel represents actual headcount of regular personnel as of the last working day of the year.
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STATISTICAL ANALYSIS OF OPERATIONS & &5t 4T
Years ended 31 December, in Hong Kong dollar thousands except HE+-_A=1+—HLLFE  KBSK
per share data and number of personnel RRDEIE & B T ABIMNILABEE T ILat &
2016 2015 2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
—T-RE —T-RF —T—puEF —F—=f —F--fF —F——%F —E-FTF
(restated)
(B575)
541,427 569,502 728,640 687,093 686,362 683,879 589,322
11,505 (11,555) 41,635 28,674 243,428 (48,365) (770,605)
6,705 (16,909) 36,994 25,824 226,976 (68,638) (773,987)
10,494 15,984 20,670 19,614 26,683 36,009 42,020
— — 7,472 3,736 — — —
584,806 597,381 621,309 635,893 654,678 389,671 398,011
558,084 544,986 571,949 543,678 511,836 297,223 391,474
116,014 118,421 116,888 106,631 104,724 101,023 96,719
539 549 566 587 606 635 732
(1) EERMR_E——FRBAEREERA S BERNEFY -
) ,%I/\ﬁﬂﬁﬁé\ifﬁﬁﬁffI1’EEZ%’T@%§%H%&EHH’\%E\I§&E °
I
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 BHE_T - NF+ZA=+—HILFE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LABHEETE)
2019 2018
—E-AF —N\F
Note $'000 $'000
PiEE Fir Fit
(Note)
({E5E)
Revenue A 3 580,050 584,609
Cost of sales SHE R AN (321,204) (330,670)
Gross profit EF 258,846 253,939
Other net income H b e 5 58 4 26,972 40,001
Selling and distribution expenses SHE KD iHRX (190,156) (189,968)
Administrative expenses TR (80,127) (80,803)
Other operating expenses HA &> (7,747) (7,859)
Impairment losses for property, e
plant and equipment MR ERE — (80,000)
Profit/(loss) from operations KERR (&R 7,788 (64,690)
Finance costs W& A 5(a) (4,478) (6,170)
Profit/(loss) before taxation BRBAZER (BE) 5 3,310 (70,860)
Income tax credit/(charge) Frigfizt A/ () 6 4,990 (3,228)
Profit/(loss) for the year EERF, (FE) 8,300 (74,088)
Attributable to: BEfEmT :
Equity shareholders of the Company RNATE=FEEA 11,583 (73,556)
Non-controlling interests FEFERR A (3,283) (532)
Profit/(loss) for the year FEERF A (EE) 8,300 (74,088)
Earnings/(loss) per share BREF (BA)
— Basic (cents) — ER (L) 10(a) 3 (20)
— Diluted (cents) — 58 (L) 10(b) N/A RiE M N/A “NiE A

Note:  The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 at 1 January 2019 using the modified &k : ?%EE’\\\:%—%E—E—EN}%FH,@%T\EE?EW
retrospective approach. Under this approach, the comparative information is not AERERERMEREENE K - EEES
restated. See note 1(c). ET - TEIILBER - R 10

The notes on pages 70 to 135 form part of these financial statements. HIRETOE13B B 2 FEM T AR KK 2 — &6
o
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 4 & 2 HEUNEF

For the year ended 31 December 2019 BHE_T - NF+ZA=+—HLFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (CABHETE)
2019 2018
—E-hF —T-)N\F
Note $'000 $'000
LhEsd Fr T
(Note)
(f&5T)
Profit/(loss) for theyear ~ FEENM/®S 8300 Taes |
Other comprehensive income for FEHM2EKE (BRE%E)
the year (after tax) 9

Iltems that may be reclassified subsequently R = FEEHHIAIB KA
to profit or l0ss

Exchange differences on translation of financial FEREEINGE A R EHRE &
statements of subsidiaries outside Hong Kong — EE 486K &= B K B A 7

and monetary items that form part of ZIRENESIRB FTEEZ
the net investment in subsidiaries P ZER
outside Hong Kong (1,225) (2,171)

Items that will not be reclassified to profit or [0Ss & E# A Bz 1EH

Actuarial gains and losses of defined benefit E R ARG E 2

retirement plan BE AN K& EE 8,252 (7,884)
7,027 (10,055)
Total comprehensive income for the year SE2EKFEHATEE 15,327 (84,143)
Attributable to: BEfRaT :
Equity shareholders of the Company VIN/NGIL - ZEE S 2= N 17,982 (84,933)
Non-controlling interests SRR A (2,655) 790
Total comprehensive income for the year F£EZEKEAEE 15,327 (84,143)
Note:  The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 at 1 January 2019 using the modified — #&f : AKRERER_Z—NF— A —HEBLETHEN
retrospective approach. Under this approach, the comparative information is not EERERE BV IEREERE T - EEES
restated. See note 1(c). ET  AEALERER - BHIEE1C) °
The notes on pages 70 to 135 form part of these financial statements. HRETOE1BE 2 FEMF AR BEHRE 2 —6
(i
[ ]
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION #%r& Bt i& AR 3=

At 31 December 2019 RZT—NF+ZA=+—H
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LABHETE)
2019 2018
—E-hF —F-N\F
Note $'000 $'000
PiEE Fr v
(Note)
({E5E)
Non-current assets EREBEE
Property, plant and equipment M - HBERRE 1(a) 352,764 362,211
Investment properties KEME 1(a) 121,613 125,497
474,377 487,708
Intangible assets BREE 12 4,771 4,771
479,148 492,479
Current assets REEE
Inventories 78 14 51,027 42,209
Trade and other receivables FEUNE 5 K E M ARIE 15 51,399 50,866
Amounts due from holding companies and FEUFERS A B &
fellow subsidiaries EE =G SE 16 19,595 24,087
Amount due from a related company JE Uk 28 A B BRIA 16 1,492 3,661
Bank deposits SRITFER 17 22,661 36,718
Cash and cash equivalents Re kERBELEE 17 106,732 81,091
252,906 238,632
Current liabilities TRENEE
Trade and other payables EAE S REMIRIE 18 (83,301) (77,515)
Loan from an intermediate holding company R ERR AR 2 ER 19 (51,115) (51,394)
Amounts due to holding companies and =R AT &
fellow subsidiaries R ZRMB A RRIEA 16 (9,410) (7,878)
Amounts due to related companies FERTREE A AIBRIE 16 (8,632) (7,037)
Lease liabilities HEAE 22 (932) =
Current tax payable FESFIIE 21(a) (894) (313)
(154,284) (144,137)
Net current assets REEEFE 98,622 94,495
[ ]
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ERENEERERAT —B-AEER
AL N
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION #r& BAFEAR S &
At 31 December 2019 RZZE-—hF+=-ZA=+—H
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LABHETE)
2019 2018
—E-hF —E-)N\F
Note $'000 $'000
BoaE Fr T
(Note)
(i)
Total assets less current liabilities =~~~ #RE@wmA® 0 s7770 seepit |
Non-current liabilities FREBEE
Loan from an intermediate holding company RMIER AR ZER 19 (51,115) (64,243)
Retirement benefit liabilities RARENERE 20() (10,741) (17,697)
Deferred tax liabilities FELEFIEBE 21(b) — (4,366)
I 61.856) o) |
NET ASSETS BEEFE 515,914 500,668
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BRAER&E
Share capital R A 23(b) 252,524 252,524
Other reserves H b 291,560 273,634
Total equity attributable to equity AAREREE ABGER
shareholders of the Company 544,084 526,158
Non-controlling interests FEPE AR RS (28,170) (25,490)
TOTAL EQUITY EREE 515,914 500,668

Note:  The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 at 1 January 2019 using the modified
retrospective approach. Under this approach, the comparative information is not

restated. See note 1(c).

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 2 March 2020.

L

Ramon S. Ang
Director

R
BEF

The notes on pages 70 to 135 form part of these financial statements.

Ramon G. Torralba
Director

it AREER T -NF— A RERBLETNEY
EEREREBVBWMELERE /5% - EERT
ETR - NEFILEER - RHFEE1C)

KEEEER _T_TF-_A_AHMERRETIE -

HEE
BEF

FIRE 701358 2 S AN B ARHHRRZ — 5
o
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY & &R # B3k

For the year ended 31 December 2019

BE—T—NE+-A=+—HILER

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LABHETE)
Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company
KATBEREARERG
Exchange Non-
Share Capital  fluctuation Retained controlling Total
capital reserve reserve profits Sub-total interests equity
K& ExftE EXRDRE W ftE it HERER ERAE
Note $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
M T I I I I I I
Balance at 1 January 2018 R-B-NE
—-A—B&t 252,524 112,970 79,797 165,800 611,091 (26,230) 584,811
Changes in equity for 2018: “E-\FRREE:
Loss for the year FEEE = = = (73,556) (73,556) (632) (74,088)
Other comprehensive income A2 EKE 9 = = (3493) (7,884) (11,377) 1,322 (10,055)
Total comprehensive income FEEARGER
for the year — — (3493 (81,440) (84,933) 790 (84,143)
Balance at 31 December 2018 R=F-N\f
(note) TZA=t-H
£es () 252,524 112,970 76,304 84,360 526,158 (25,490) 500,668
Impact on initial application TRA S e 2R
of HKFRS 16 (note) ETRHTE () - - - (56) (56) (25) (81)
Adjusted balance at RZE-h%&
1 January 2019 —A-RRBHELES 252,524 112,970 76,304 84,304 526,102 (25,515) 500,587
Changes in equity for 2019; “E-NEREEE:
Profit/(loss) for the year FEEA/ (BR) - - - 11,583 11,583 (3,283) 8,300
Other comprehensive income HEi2EYE 9 - - (1,853) 8,252 6,399 628 7,027
Total comprehensive income FERENREE
for the year - - (1,853) 19,835 17,982 (2,655) 15,327
Balance at 31 December 2019 R=E-A1f&
TZA=+-B&&H 252,524 112,970 74,451 104,139 544,084 (28,170) 515,914
Note:  The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 at 1 January 2019 using the modified & : AEEDRN -Z—IE— A —BHEBEETHER
retrospective approach. Under this approach, the comparative information is not FEHRERBBMBREREAE ] - EEESH
restated. See note 1(c). SETR  TEFILEER - BHEE10) -
The notes on pages 70 to 135 form part of these financial statements. HIRETOE13B B 2 FEM T AR KK 2 — &6
{/'\ °
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PAN =
CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT &6l ERER
For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE-_T - NF+tZA=+—HILFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LABHETE)
2019 2018
—E-hF —N\F
Note $'000 $ 000
BoaE Fr T
(Note)
(i)
Operating activities REZER
Cash generated from operations REXHE 2R EMA 17(b) 37,397 22,873
Tax paid: BEAHIE ¢
Hong Kong profits tax paid B EBFEHR — (605)
Net cash generated from REEBZBHERA
operating activities REE 37,397 22,268
Investing activities REEE
Payment for the purchase of non-current assets 7~ & 3E &) & B T3k (10,807) (19,111)
Proceeds from disposal of hon-current assets Hj%;lz;‘ﬁ@;ﬁfﬁﬁﬁ?%%x 2,229 1,934
Decrease in bank deposits RITEFRD 14,057 2,479
Interest received 2 WIS 1,592 1,924
Net cash generated from/(used in) REFHZHERA (Fd)
investing activities BEE 7,071 (12,774)
Financing activities R & EE
Repayment of loan from an Intermediate BRTFHRNERARZER
holding company 17(c) (12,779) (51,394)
Capital element of lease rentals paid ERHEERE R R 17(c) (1,085) =
Interest element of lease rentals paid BHEERNF S5 17(c) (37) =
Interest paid BRFLE 17(c) (4,303) (6,040)
Net cash used in financing activities REEB 2 REM LT (18,204) (57,434)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash ReRERRELER
and cash equivalents ZREREN (BD) 26,264 (47,940)
Cash and cash equivalents R—B—BZzE&
at 1 January RERRSERER 17(2) 81,091 130,146
Effect of foreign exchange rates changes ER&E % (623) (1,119)
Cash and cash equivalents Rt+t-—A=+—AzHE
at 31 December RERRSEBRER 17(a) 106,732 81,091
Note:  The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 at 1 January 2019 using the modified & : AKBEER T —NF—A—BEBEETHEN
retrospective approach. Under this approach, the comparative information is not FHRERBRAUEREEAE T 5 - EiEES
restated. See note 1(c). ET  AEHILRER - BHIEE1(0)
The notes on pages 70 to 135 form part of these financial statements. HRETOE1BE 2 FEMF AR BEHRE 2 —6
(v
[ ]
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf#& R 3= HizE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (BRBERTIN - HIRBBHE)

1 significant accounting policies 1 FESHBK

(@) Statement of compliance (@) ErE
These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with all R EHRERIIEIEFIEER 2 BBV EHRE
applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards ("HKFRSs”), which AR ([BEPIEMELER]]) MR- [FE
collective term includes all applicable individual Hong Kong Financial BRI ER] | — ARSI ASE
Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and Mz A ERNEREEHERELER - &
Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public BERTER| ([HAEGFTER]) kRE - 5%
Accountants (“"HKICPA"), accounting principles generally accepted in Hong NReFRBIRES CARVMED)Y Z1RE 3%
Kong and the requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. EPHRENMETEBHEZFER QA
These financial statements also comply with the applicable disclosure FHEWARA ([ EWHRE]) 2@BEER
provisions of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock F o AEERBAZEIESHERBENT -
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”). Significant accounting
policies adopted by the Group are disclosed below.
The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised HKFRSs that are first EhestihrecBaeTaR&EBEI 2
effective or available for early adoption for the current accounting period AP BERELER  WHAEE 2 N5
of the Group. Note 1(c) provides information on any changes in accounting A B X R AT IR R RN o ERFER L
policies resulting from initial application of these developments to the M ANANER Y I LRSI R E R
extent that they are relevant to the Group for the current and prior NS EE 2 et R 2 E 0 R AR
accounting periods reflected in these financial statements. BHFRARM - BEEREHRMEE 10 -

(b) Basis of preparation of the financial statements (b) wEBBBEHmK LR
The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December BE_E—-—hE+-_A=1t—RHIEEZ%
2019 comprise the Company and its subsidiaries (together referred to as EUBRERBEARAMENB AR (5718
the “Group”). RIAER]) -
The measurement basis used in the preparation of the financial BAFSERR T AR SE B AN B dm s AL YE
statements is the historical cost basis.
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRSS requires IR A BB BRRELEQNBBREE R
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect EHEFLeYEIRERAREE  8F -
the application of policies and reported amounts of assets, liabilities, WA BB YR SRE B HE - BE B
income and expenses. The estimates and associated assumptions are RRTE o et R EBERRIDIBEAELR K
based on historical experience and various other factors that are believed ZEAMEEEBIER TEAEMEMEEM
to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form B EERK AU EEMIRIT TEAS
the basis of making the judgements about carrying values of assets and AMNEERABEREEELARNER - &
liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results e = SR A e i
may differ from these estimates.
The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing HEt AR B REHERT - HgFHhaTE
basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in 1TIBETRE - BSET R 2R - B8] 2
which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in BT IR N MER  BIEET 2%
the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both AR R EAR - RIME(E T B R 2R BRFEI SR ©
current and future periods.
Judgements made by management in the application of HKFRSS that FLER A B S B IS RS YE RIS BT VE L A9 B
have significant effect on the financial statements and major sources of ARIERE T —FE 2 B BRRBRENA
estimation uncertainty are discussed in note 2. B[R 2 A ET AR R AB IR EE2 o

I
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EEENEEBRBRAT —B-NFFR

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf #& R 3= HizE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (BRBERTIN - HIRBEHE)
1 significant accounting policies (Continued) 1  EEEBER (@
(c) Changes in accounting policies (c) EBXNEH

The HKICPA has issued a new HKFRS, HKFRS 16, Leases, and a number of
amendments to HKFRSs that are first effective for the current accounting
period of the Group.

Except for HKFRS 16, Leases, none of these developments have had a
material effect on how the Group’s results and the financial position for
the current or prior periods have been prepared or presented. The Group
has not applied any new standard or interpretation that is not yet effective
for the current accounting period.

HKFRS 16, Leases

HKFRS 16 replaces HKAS 17, Leases, and the related interpretations,
HK(IFRIC) 4, Determining whether an arrangement contains a lease,
HK(SIC) 15, Operating leases — incentives, and HK(SIC) 27, Evaluating the
substance of transactions involving the legal form of a lease. It introduces
a single accounting model for lessees, which requires a lessee to
recognise a right-of-use asset and a lease liability for all leases, except for
leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less (“short-term leases”)
and leases of low value assets. The lessor accounting requirements are
brought forward from HKAS 17 substantially unchanged.

HKFRS 16 also introduces additional qualitative and quantitative disclosure
requirements which aim to enable users of the financial statements to
assess the effect that leases have on the financial position, financial
performance and cash flows of an entity.

The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 as from 1 January 2019. The
Group has elected to use the modified retrospective approach and
has therefore recognised the cumulative effect of initial application
as an adjustment to the opening balance of equity at 1 January 2019.
Comparative information has not been restated and continues to be
reported under HKAS 17.

Further details of the nature and effect of the changes to previous
accounting policies and the transition options applied are set out below:

(i) New definition of a lease

The change in the definition of a lease mainly relates to the
concept of control. HKFRS 16 defines a lease on the basis of
whether a customer controls the use of an identified asset for a
period of time, which may be determined by a defined amount of
use. Control is conveyed where the customer has both the right to
direct the use of the identified asset and to obtain substantially all
of the economic benefits from that use.

BREHMAGERMAN T BN HREE
A BEMBREERE TR HE &
ZIEHB B HREENNETE  ANRAE
B A G EIR ERER

BREB M |MEERNE TN BAbIERT
UAEBARFEREFENEENPBALR
WEBRZE o REB W KRR EAINRAH
SETHEAR MR R R R SRR -

BRMBHRELEUE+ A% HE

BARPBEREEANEHEMAR B LG
AETL5 [HE ] RAERE 78 (BER
MERERBRER) RBE0W [BELH
REBREHE ] BERERRZEGRES
TR EEHE — EF | REEREBER
ZESRBE _TUR[FEFREELRE
TEARZHIAE ] - BFtEIEASIAE —&5
B WREATEABEEEHEREMRE
BERBERE  HHEHMAT _@AIMAT
WHE (EMHEE]) MEBEEENHEER
She HBAMEFRENABREE L SR
EFE+LRAORE ©

BRPBREERE RIS AR EE
NEBRBERTE  EHECEMBHRREMEL
FHEEEHEROMEIRN - MR EER

A i 2 e B g
EMENTE -

AEBEERAE T -NAEF-A-HEEKXER
BRPBEMEEAE 5% - AEECDER
KIERTEWE - WRTMERERERNZE
TEERHN _T-NF—A—BERHD
MREMRE - LBENAWEY| BEERE
ARG EAFETLRER - AREBES
SILEER - WHERBBELGENSE
TERER -

BRBE S BERESNIEENTE MR
REERIEE RN E —SFBHINMT

0] HENHESR

MEFHE OB E T B RGOS
BRE - BAEMBREERNE TR
BEPREAAER —HEAERDH
PEEMER (KA HETERERE
E) MUESELEE - EXP AR
FER R RR B EE  F iR DA e 5% A ik
PESERIMOLEN IR - BIRR
BAEIE -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf#& R 3= HizE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (BRBERTIN - HIRBBHE)
1  significant accounting policies (continued) 1 EEEEE®
(c) Changes in accounting policies (Continued) (c) EFBEMEE (8
HKFRS 16, Leases (Continued) ERMBREENE+ R /HE]
(%)
(i) New definition of a lease (Continued) 0] HENTES (8)
The Group applies the new definition of a lease in HKFRS 16 only to EAPBEREEE+GFAEER
contracts that were entered into or changed on or after 1 January NEREHERARNAEER_ZT—NEF
2019. For contracts entered into before 1 January 2019, the Group —A—H 2B EERNEL -
has used the transitional practical expedient to grandfather MR ZE—NF—A—HZRIFINH
the previous assessment of which existing arrangements are AHME  AEEDIRABEERTT
or contain leases. Accordingly, contracts that were previously MET T ENREBEERBSHE
assessed as leases under HKAS 17 continue to be accounted for IR B ZHER B A RS - Bt - kAl
as leases under HKFRS 16 and contracts previously assessed as BERSSSHENE 5 s A8
non-lease service arrangements continue to be accounted for as EME NEERIES AR SR
executory contracts. FTRNHRARINAEE - ARG
RIFHERBLENE N AERE AR
HRREREH o
(i)  Lessee accounting and transitional impact (i) AEAEBTRES EIRBESE
HKFRS 16 eliminates the requirement for a lessee to classify leases BB BHREERE TSGR TR
as either operating leases or finance leases, as was previously ARG ERE T REKAEAR
required by HKAS 17. Instead, the Group is required to capitalise all HESBEARKEHENRERENR
leases when it is the lessee, including leases previously classified FelRe EXRFEER/EAMA - HA
as operating leases under HKAS 17, other than those short-term BRREHREERNL - BIEEARESR
leases and leases of low-value assets which are exempt. As far BEIERE T RO EALEHE
as the Group is concerned, these newly capitalised leases are HWHEE  ERREAENEBEEEM
primarily in relation to property, plant and equipment. EREBREMBIN - AAEEMS @ &
LT E A b E F B EYE - R
HEER -
At the date of transition to HKFRS 16 (i.e. 1 January 2019), the RIBEZEBIBRELNE 75K
Group determined the length of the remaining lease terms and ER(MZZ-AF—HA—H) &
measured the lease liabilities for the leases previously classified EEGER D AAKEHENHEEIR
as operating leases at the present value of the remaining lease ST HEENFCREE T THERET
payments, discounted using the relevant incremental borrowing EHEAE WEEAZZE-NF—
rates at 1 January 2019. The weighted average of the incremental A— B 2 HBEESERF EEITEL
borrowing rates used for determination of the present value of the I - AT RIS ERN IR EN L
remaining lease payments was 2.62%. SEEFEHMETHER2.62% °
To ease the transition to HKFRS 16, the Group applied the following A BB RS RS N
recognition exemption and practical expedients at the date of EE - AEEREXNERS B KR
initial application of HKFRS 16 which the Group elected not to SERE /5 E BEL R T AR
apply the requirements of HKFRS 16 in respect of the recognition BRATHERRE AEEDEET
of lease liabilities and right-of-use assets to leases for which the THERE R ERE BT IGRE%E
remaining lease term ends within 12 months from the date of AIE475%E B s+ =@ A NER
initial application of HKFRS 16, i.e. where the lease term ends on or (ABEPR —ZE—NAE+-_A=+—
before 31 December 2019. Hak 2 RIsc4E) REEBE A
BEE -
[ ]
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf #& R 3= HizE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (BRBERTIN - HIRBEHE)
1 significant accounting policies (Continued) 1  EEEBER (@
(c) changes in accounting policies (Continued) (c) BEFEXNEE (&)
HKFRS 16, Leases (Continued) ERMBREENETRHEE]
()

(ii)

(i)

Lessee accounting and transitional impact (Continued)

The following table reconciles the operating lease commitments
as at 31 December 2018 to the opening balance for lease liabilities
recognised as at 1 January 2019:

(ii)

AEASTRESFZRBESE (B)

TRE-_ZE-NF+_A=1+—HBH
REMEAER—_T-NF—H—H
HERNEE B ERVRRETYHER

1 January
2019
—Z-hF
-A-A
$'000
T
Operating lease commitments at 31 December 2018 —N\F+ZA=t+—BMEEHERE 2,447
Less: commitments relating to leases exempt from ?uﬁ% ;ﬁi%% BRCRTHE R B R RIE
capitalisation:
— Short-term leases and other leases with - REEE REMEE RN
remaining lease term ending on or —E-hE+-F=1+—H%%
before 31 December 2019 ZRIBRHEE (366)
2,081
Less: total future interest expenses Ik RREF S (42)
Present value of remaining lease payments, FR=ZE—NF— A —BMESERFEMN
discounted using the incremental borrowing —E-NF-A-BRERNEEABEEN
rate at 1 January 2019 and total lease liabilities FIAH SN RENERE
recognised at 1 January 2019 2,039

The right-of-use assets ("ROU assets”) in relation to leases
previously classified as operating leases have been recognised as
if HKFRS 16 had always been applied since the commencement
date of the lease (other than discounting using the relevant
incremental borrowing rate at the date of initial application of
HKFRS 16). The Group recognised the ROU assets of $1,958,000
and the lease liability of $2,039,000 at the date of initial application
of HKFRS 16. The difference between the ROU assets and the lease
liabilities of $81,000 is recognised as an adjustment to the opening
balance of equity.

Lessor accounting

The Group leases out a number of items of properties as the
lessor of operating leases. The accounting policies applicable to
the Group as a lessor remain substantially unchanged from those
under HKAS 17.

(iii)

HARREAKEHENTEEE BN
FREEECHERANEHEMG
2 BRRIA AR B ISIRE R E
+ 7558 (R FERE IS 2 E A RITIR
BN REIRERE SRS 2R
FHEzH) AEEREXER
EBEPBIRELELET/EE AR
fFAREEE9580008TRHEER
&2,039,000/8 T - F A EERMA
S8 &2 BRI ZE5E 81,000 78 ST FER
Bl BRI A -

HEASFEER

AEELEETNEFAEERE
LA - BARAE B ARTEAL
SHEFRETESIDEAE LR T
VBB EARITE -
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (BRBERTIN - HIRBBHE)

1  significant accounting policies (continued) 1 EEEEE®

(d) Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests (d) MHBARIRFEZERER
An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the consolidated MY BB R B 2 1% & B FF A bR 0 A LR
financial statements from the date that control commences until the date /E\.,HM% MERN - BEREHIEKRIEAI o ANE
that control ceases. Intra-group balances, transactions and cash flows and NAElZEZ &R XHRBERE - A
any unrealised profits arising from intra-group transactions are eliminated &x%ﬁﬁ?iz&ﬂﬂi """""" ST ThNMRE
in full in preparing the consolidated financial statements. Unrealised losses &M HRRRREGE o IEREZE -
resulting from intra-group transactions are eliminated in the same way $'§IW Az sMEEZRERE
as unrealised profits but only to the extent that there is no evidence of 18 ARSI B FIER Z Y o
impairment.
Non-controlling interests represent the equity in a subsidiary not IR ER I EESEERBRAR
attributable directly or indirectly to the Company and in respect of which HIFTE A~ Al i e - Ffﬁzli’%lik,\u%%é hﬁ
the Group has not agreed any additional terms with the holders of those HEKEMMINGE - NS SEEER LEZ
interests which would result in the Group as a whole having a contractual %%ﬁééiﬁé}ﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁ%i% H)ETEETE ©
obligation in respect of those interests that meets the definition of a HRBELESH  SERENAREE
financial liability. For each business combination, the Group can elect sSAEEW B AR Al PR EEFENFTGE
to measure any non-controlling interests either at fair value or at the BRI RERS -
non-controlling interests’ proportionate share of the subsidiary’s net
identifiable assets.
Non-controlling interests are presented in the consolidated statement IR RSSO RN AR RS
of financial position within equity, separately from equity attributable to R BEA BN EBRREES R - I
the equity shareholders of the Company. Non-controlling interests in the %%@éﬁ?ﬁﬁzﬁ‘ilifﬁﬂﬁ B EIBIELR
results of the Group are presented on the face of the consolidated income /\Hﬁzﬁ{li% D BRI s K ] BB B AR
statement and the consolidated statement of comprehensive income as NEIREEST N2 -
an allocation of the total profit or loss and total comprehensive income for
the year between non-controlling interests and the equity shareholders of
the Company.
Changes in the Group’s interests in a subsidiary that do not result in a loss AR E R D F R s 2 BB R S|
of control are accounted for as equity transactions, whereby adjustments HELINRZ S @ BEZABZTHAE - RE
are made to the amounts of controlling and non-controlling interests PEREZSTE T 2 1508 N2 FEIm PR ke 25 VE R A 2R LA
within consolidated equity to reflect the change in relative interests, but REARIREZ EE) - BTRERER -
no gain or loss is recognised.
When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is accounted for as a MRAEBEEWBR TZ% HilRE - ZIBR
disposal of the entire interest in that subsidiary, with a resulting gain or S IREEZIB AR 2R - 18
loss being recognised in profit or loss. Any interest retained in that former *%E& 2IBz5 o TIHK%EI}EM%EEZE‘TW%
subsidiary at the date when control is lost is recognised at fair value and NEIFRERIRERIEGIER A EER
this amount is regarded as the fair value on initial recognition of a financial ZERTREEVIRERZANE  HAER
asset or, when appropriate, the cost on initial recognition of an investment Bt N TS IR B 82 T YR8 B K A
in an associate or joint venture. (qRiEm) -
In the Company’s statement of financial position, an investment in a EARBZBBARRTZA - B A R A
subsidiary is stated at cost less impairment losses (see note 1(i(i)). BRASRREETE (R 10)) FIik
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EEENEEBRBRAT —B-NFFR

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf #& R 3= HizE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (BRBERTIN - HIRBEHE)
1 significant accounting policies (Continued) 1. EEEBER (@
(e) Property, plant and equipment (e) W% - HBRZME

The following items of property, plant and equipment are stated at cost
less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses (see note 1(i)(ii)),
with the exception of construction in progress which is stated at cost less
any impairment losses (see note 1(i)(i)).

— right-of-use assets arising from leases over leasehold properties
when the Group is not the registered owner of the property
interest; and

— items of plant and equipment including right-of-use assets arising
from leases of underlying plant and equipment (see note 1(g))

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of an item of
property, plant and equipment are determined as the difference between
the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the item and are
recognised in profit or loss on the date of retirement or disposal.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items of property, plant
and equipment, less their estimated residual values, if any, using the
straight-line method over their estimated useful lives as follows:

— Leasehold land classified as held under finance leases is
depreciated over the unexpired term of lease.

— Buildings situated on leasehold land are depreciated over the
shorter of the unexpired term of lease and their estimated useful
lives, being no more than 50 years.

— Machinery, equipment, furniture and fixtures 4t0 50 years

— Motor vehicles 4to 7 years
No provision for depreciation is made on construction in progress until
such time when the assets are substantially completed and ready for use.

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different
useful lives, the cost of the item is allocated on a reasonable basis
between the parts and each part is depreciated separately. Both the useful
life of an asset and its residual value, if any, are reviewed annually.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf#& R 3= HizE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (BRBERTIN - HIRBBHE)

1 significant accounting policies (Continued) 1. EEEBER (@

(f)  Investment properties ) HwEWE
Investment properties are land and buildings which are owned or held BEMEABRIRESWAR S AERIEE
under a leasehold interest (see note 1(g)) to earn rental income and/or for miERSARBEHEREZT (RKFE1E) HEH
capital appreciation. THIREBE °
Investment properties are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation B YRR AR 25T E KRB EE RSB
and impairment losses (see note 1(i)(ii). Depreciation is calculated to write (RMEEG)) o FTE TR E WK AR E
off the cost of investment properties, less their estimated residual values, FIerEE () - EREREEH R E A
if any, using the straight-line method over the shorter of the unexpired AERFE (TNBBER+F) MmE T EE M
term of lease and their estimated useful lives, being no more than 50 LA G EFTE s -
years.
Both the useful lives of the investment properties and their residual REMENTFEAFHEREFHEE (WE)
values, if any, are reviewed annually. EIRFIERRE -
Rental income from investment properties is accounted for as described 1% & W) E R & U AR 5 M 5F 10l Pt 75
in note 1(r)(i. NEtHE o

(8) Leased assets (g HEEE
At inception of a contract, the Group assesses whether the contract is, or REBRELFHBEBTIHANRETEN (3
contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys BE)HE - MEHNARRAREMERE—
the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in BREREAESI RN EEER 2 ERN - BIZ
exchange for consideration. Control is conveyed where the customer BHER (eE) HE - MEFREEER
has both the right to direct the use of the identified asset and to obtain EHBIEEZFRAXBEREREHANEE
substantially all of the economic benefits from that use. RSB BNz - BIFEHIED 5815 -

(i) Policy applicable from 1 January 2019 (i) BRAR-Z—AF—A—BUEZBX
Where the contract contains lease component and non-lease component, HRBEEHES D MIEHELD ZEL » K
the Group has elected not to separate non-lease components and SEDEETNKIFEET S HHRIE - M2
accounts for each lease component and any associated non-lease SETEMHESSHES» MM +8R 2 JEFE
components as a single lease component for all leases. BESERE—HERD AR -
At the lease commencement date, the Group recognises a right-of-use AREBENHERG PSR EREEE LA
asset and a lease liability, except for short-term leases that have a lease EaE HEHEBATEANKAT ZEEHA
term of 12 months or less and leases of low-value assets which, for the ERREEEE (RALEMEEZE2ATFIR
Group are primarily laptops and office furniture. When the Group enters B ERRAEERM) 2HERIN  EXREE
into a lease in respect of a low-value asset, the Group decides whether MEBEEEIVHER  AEESREE
to capitalise the lease on a lease-by-lease basis. The lease payments ZEARBRATRESHHEEERNE - HiZE
associated with those leases which are not capitalised are recognised as WAREAM 2 HEHB 2 HEMZTRAHRR
an expense on a systematic basis over the lease term. ERGER AR
Where the lease is capitalised, the lease liability is initially recognised at EHREERLZBERT  HEAGVIZRAE
the present value of the lease payments payable over the lease term, HNIZENTENZ ZIRERR - WERMA
discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that rate ERs MK ((HEBANREET) HE
cannot be readily determined, using a relevant incremental borrowing rate. S ETRERELIR c R¥LHRE HEAR
After initial recognition, the lease liability is measured at amortised cost BIREHENATE  MA B HERERF
and interest expense is calculated using the effective interest method. TEETH - ATEHEBER TR ALIER
Variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or rate are not TS MEMEZNSBEENT - BikE
included in the measurement of the lease liability and hence are charged BANReREEE TR e Bak -
to profit or loss in the accounting period in which they are incurred.

[ ]
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf #& R 3= HizE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (BRBERTIN - HIRBEHE)

1 significant accounting policies (Continued) 1. EEEBER (@

(8) Leased assets (Continued) (g) MWEEE (&)

(i) Policy applicable from 1 January 2019 (Continued) (i) BRANR-—ZE—hNE—A—HUEZHE

(8&)

The right-of-use asset recognised when a lease is capitalised is initially REEEREHER 2 EREEEDNS LK
measured at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease liability AitE EBREHERBZYBESEN
plus any lease payments made at or before the commencement date, RS B BAsk 2 AIfE L 2 (I E R A K
and any initial direct costs incurred. Where applicable, the cost of the FREEEZVBEZENAR - EEABER
right-of-use assets also includes an estimate of costs to dismantle and T ERREEE AT EEREI R AR
remove the underlying asset or to restore the underlying asset or the site A ESNEEMRBEEES AR 2 Gt
on which it is located, discounted to their present value, less any lease KA (FREERE) HIREREWEZEE
incentives received. The right-of-use asset is subsequently stated at cost BE - FHAEEEEREKAMRETINE
less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses (see notes 1(e) and Mo ER R (R 1e) K& 1)ii) 58k
G0)0).
The lease liability is remeasured when there is a change in future WIE SN R LB ERARKAENTEE
lease payments arising from a change in an index or rate, or there is a S AEEHEHRERGEEERZENS
change in the Group's estimate of the amount expected to be payable BRIEZ (AR EE - AR EEEMTEE
under a residual value guarantee, or there is a change arising from the LEEBEETEBTERE TR IHRIZE
reassessment of whether the Group will be reasonably certain to exercise MEXREE - AEFHtE2HEaE - HHEE
a purchase, extension or termination option. When the lease liability BETHEBERTESS QY EAES
is remeasured in this way, a corresponding adjustment is made to the EZEREEERERAE s (HEREESE
carrying amount of the right-of-use asset, or is recorded in profit or loss if ZEREEEREE) BEEAEIIAEBL °
the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset has been reduced to zero.
The Group presents right-of-use assets that do not meet the definition of KEBBIFEREMETEZFERAEEE
investment property in ‘property, plant and equipment' and presents lease 2R [ « MEREE | WGSBS
liabilities separately in the consolidated statement of financial position. ARKRBL 2V HEARE -

(ii)  Policy applicable prior to 1 January 2019 (i) BAR-ZE—-NF-—A—BAINBX

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series of transactions, is or
contains a lease if the Group determines that the arrangement conveys
a right to use a specific asset or assets for an agreed period of time in
return for a payment or a series of payments. Such a determination is
made based on an evaluation of the substance of the arrangement and is
regardless of whether the arrangement takes the legal form of a lease.

Classification of assets leased to the Group

Assets that are held by the Group under leases which transfer to the
Group substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are classified
as being held under finance leases. Leases which do not transfer
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the Group are
classified as operating leases, with the following exceptions:

— property held under operating leases that would otherwise meet
the definition of an investment property is classified as investment
property on a property-by-property basis and, if classified as
investment property, is accounted for as if held under a finance
lease; and

— land held for own use under an operating lease, where the
fair value cannot be measured separately from the fair value
of a building situated thereon at the inception of the lease, is
accounted for as being held under a finance lease, unless the
building is also clearly held under an operating lease. For these
purposes, the inception of the lease is the time that the lease was
first entered into by the Group, or taken over from the previous
lessee.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (BRBERTIN - HIRBBHE)
1 significant accounting policies (Continued) 1. EEEBER (@
(8) Leased assets (Continued) (8 MHEEE M
(ii) Policy applicable prior to 1 January 2019 (Continued) (ii) BAR-ZE-NFE—A—HAKBE (&)
(i) Operating lease charges (i wERE
— Where the Group has the use of assets held under operating — MAEBIRBELEHEEFREE R
leases, payments made under the leases are charged to profit or BN 2 FIB TR BRF AERE
loss in equal instalments over the accounting periods covered by EHREFTRE 25t R - AT
the lease term. Lease incentives received are recognised in profit S ESEEEIIEAFTTERN TR
or loss as an integral part of the aggregate net lease payments FHENREN - EERPRE
made. R o
— The cost of acquiring land held under an operating lease is — AR TR E 355 1 AU B A 2R 2 4%
amortised on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease HAEHEBNES - REBIES
term. Impairment losses are recognised in accordance with the BRI RE 1()(1) B0 & 5T R 2R FERR ©
accounting policy set out in note 1(i)ii).
(h) Intangible assets (hy #B|EEE
Intangible assets represent acquired trademarks and club debentures and PIE N @ P ERE 5 LA AR 5 R B B 18 1) B
are stated at cost less impairment losses (see note 1()(ii)). (CRBFEE13)) ©
These intangible assets are not amortised as their useful lives are REBWEEWESN RAEAFEAFH
assessed to be indefinite and are tested annually for impairment (see note WG AT EE RS FEBEERENS (R
1(0)(D). FE0)) ©
The conclusion that the useful life of an intangible asset is indefinite B EEZAFERFHETECNERESTE
is reviewed annually to determine whether events and circumstances WA AT BR R BB TR EE 2T
continue to support the indefinite useful life assessment for that asset. TEAE A FE 7 4
(i)  Credit losses and impairment of assets () GEBEREERE
(i) Credit losses from financial instruments (i) BB IAESTEZEEBER
The loss allowance is measured at an amount equal to lifetime expected BIEBENGTESHESNKREEHEEE
credit losses (ECLs), which are those losses that are expected to occur B AEKRESREEAFHAZEASE
over the expected life of the trade receivables. The loss allowance is B BEREZHERER —EANLAEED
estimated using a provision matrix based on the Group’s historical credit EFEEBEEHRESHOBRERR - WiRE
loss experience, adjusted for factors that are specific to the debtors BHEABTERAXIELAE - RR®REAFTE
and an assessment of both the current and forecast general economic B AT AR — AR AR, ©
conditions at the reporting date.
ECLs are remeasured at each reporting date with any changes recognised EHEEFEESEREBHENTE (&
as an impairment gain or loss in profit or loss. The Group recognises an I FHEEEPER o NEBFEZARE
impairment gain or loss with a corresponding adjustment to the carrying BED  RAEEREBERYEKRKES NE
amount of trade and other receivables through a loss allowance account. fth FEU B RO BR FEVE L AR FE AR ©
The gross carrying amount of a trade debtor or other receivable is written EUE ZIRSE M ERRAREAREERE
off (either partially or in full) to the extent that there is no realistic of B ATBERIB N T FUAGES (S 2E6) -
recovery. This is generally the case when the Group determines that the EER—REEESEBARENELEERIR
debtor does not have assets or sources of income that could generate ERNEEFHESENEESWARIR
sufficient cash flows to repay the amounts subject to the write-off.
I
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf #& R 3= HizE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BRABIETIN - BIRAEEEHEHE)

1 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(i) Credit losses and impairment of assets (Continued)
(ii) Impairment of other assets

Internal and external sources of information are reviewed at the end of
each reporting period to identify indications that the following assets may
be impaired or an impairment loss previously recognised no longer exists
or may have decreased:

— Property, plant and equipment;
— Investment properties;
— Intangible assets; and

— Investments in subsidiaries in the Company’s statement of
financial position.

If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated.
In addition, for intangible assets that have indefinite useful lives, the
recoverable amount is estimated annually whether or not there is any
indication of impairment.

— Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the greater of its fair value
less costs of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use,
the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to
the asset. Where an asset does not generate cash inflows largely
independent of those from other assets, the recoverable amount
is determined for the smallest group of assets that generates cash
inflows independently (i.e. a cash-generating unit).

— Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss if the carrying
amount of an asset, or the cash-generating unit to which it
belongs, exceeds its recoverable amount. Impairment losses
recognised in respect of cash-generating units are allocated to
reduce the carrying amount of the assets in the unit (or group
of units) on a pro rata basis, except that the carrying value of an
asset will not be reduced below its individual fair value less costs
of disposal (if measurable) or value in use.

— Reversals of impairment losses

An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a favourable
change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable
amount.

A reversal of an impairment loss is limited to the asset's carrying
amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss
been recognised in prior years. Reversals of impairment losses
are credited to profit or loss in the year in which the reversals are
recognised.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (BRBERTIN - HIRBBHE)

1  significant accounting policies (continued) 1 EEEEE®

(i Inventories 0 ==
Inventories are assets which are held for sale in the ordinary course of FERETCHREKBREPBEEFENSE
business, in the process of production for such sale or in the form of B EZGFEESEBETFEKS - A
materials or supplies to be consumed in the production process or in the R E BRI IR MRS B e E
rendering of services. SHFEM ©
Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net realisable value. FETRA A A B IDEERE 2 K&

R

Cost is calculated using the weighted average cost formula and comprises AR AINREF AR AEGTE - WEEMRAR
all costs of purchase, costs of conversion and other costs incurred in BRCAR ~ IITRA K #5717 & B3R B i B B
bringing the inventories to their present location and condition. HASUARTE A 2 E AR AR o
Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of AIEFRREAHFEE 2 ETEBRMG R
business less the estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs AR AN M AR ET S E AR -
necessary to make the sale.
When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those inventories is REEFEKR  ZEFEFEEES®R
recognised as an expense in the period in which the related revenue is RS EARRPIER S ©
recognised.
The amount of any write-down of inventories to net realisable value and FEMRBRE SR FECBENTEEEE
all losses of inventories are recognised as an expense in the period the BRI EERAREIIERY - 25
write-down or loss occurs. The amount of any reversal of any write-down FEG M EEL N TAFERES RS
of inventories is recognised as a reduction in the amount of inventories O] 2% 4 BRFRI ATRERR M 2 1 o
recognised as an expense in the period in which the reversal occurs.

(k) Trade and other receivables (k) EREZRAEMESE
A receivable is recognised when the Group has an unconditional right to FE U BR TE 7T AN 2 B A S (S R (B 2 #E T
receive consideration. A right to receive consideration is unconditional if R  MBEESNZEBIHZAREE
only the passage of time is required before payment of that consideration R —ERIERY - BEEAE AR R 2 E R
is due. o
Receivables are stated at amortised cost using the effective interest FEWHERB TR EREEEEIE R
method less allowance for credit losses (see note 1(i)()). & - IREBERAEAR (RIIEE100) ©

(I)  Interest-bearing borrowings () MEMER
Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised initially at fair value less MEBREVEARBERRSHERER -
transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, interest- bearing RiERE - B BEFEHEA R R R AR
borrowings are stated at amortised cost using the effective interest SERRATIE o R BB IEEAERNEE
method. Interest expense is recognised in accordance with the Group's KA BERER (RHFE1D) -
accounting policy for borrowing costs (see note 1(t)).

(m) Trade and other payables (m) EFESRHEARE
Trade and other payables are initially recognised at fair value and FENE S REMRIBERVIZA A BERR
subsequently stated at amortised cost unless the effect of discounting Hig BB AN E - MBI EET
would be immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost. K BIREKARF(E o

(n) cash and cash equivalents (n) BERZEFELEH
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on hand, demand HEeLERKRLEREFETEFT BEL 8
deposits with banks and other financial institutions and short-term, highly 1T E b B IS 2 BRSO R R R
liquid investments that are readily convertible into known amounts of S2RE  MZERERER A KB A8
cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, RecHABSEAZERE  WABAKL=
having been within three months of maturity at acquisition. Cash and cash BARNEEZIEEIER - e MERIKSIE
equivalents are assessed for expected credit losses (“ECL") in accordance B ZMEE10)0) FrRaHETERHE BB -
with the policy set out in note 1()().

[
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (BRBERTIN - HIRBEHE)

1  significant accounting policies (continued) 1 EEEHEE®

(0) Employee benefits (o) EEREF

(i) Short term employee benefits and contributions to defined (i) HHEESEMNR EFEMER
contribution retirement plans
Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave, contributions to defined BRINFTEIZEHRF S FRIEL BEHFF
contribution retirement plans and the cost of non-monetary benefits are B FRHIRKRTE 2 R N AREE TR
accrued in the year in which the associated services are rendered by H 7 IEEERNINANEEREIZHABER
employees. B2 ER R ©

(i)  Defined benefit retirement plan obligations (i) TEEEFERAREEIZEIE
The Group's net obligation in respect of defined benefit retirement AEFEEETHEEIEARSENFAERIE
plans is calculated separately for each plan by estimating the amount B TR KB A P IR M RIS (AT H
of future benefit that employees have earned in return for their service BEEL R R SRS EH S R AR E
in the current and prior periods; that benefit is discounted to determine WRESHREMTEEEN AT EE - B
the present value and the fair value of any plan assets is deducted. The STERAERNBEMUTET B ERAE
calculation is performed by a qualified actuary using the projected unit 17 BtEHERHAERT KA BHER
credit method. When the calculation results in a benefit to the Group, EER R IR ATE S MR R R R
the recognised asset is limited to the present value of economic benefits HERIBAEANEENRIRE -
available in the form of any future refunds from the plan or reductions in
future contributions to the plan.
Service cost and net interest expense or income on the net defined ErEN B ENREEFENRBEKATNFE
benefit liability or asset are recognised in profit or loss and allocated by THFRBRAFREEERRER - WRHER
function as part of “cost of sales”, “selling and distribution expenses” BEATHEERA] [HERDHEMAX]
or "administrative expenses”. Current service cost is measured as the [TTHEY ] B—25 - BEREKANZIZE
increase in the present value of the defined benefit obligation resulting AEEEMRBIEEN ERENBENE
from employee service in the current period. When the benefits of a plan BEIENFESE - Bt 20T s HIR S8 st
are changed, or when a plan is curtailed, the portion of the changed ZERTMERE - HEBBTIREREEEY
benefit related to past service by employees, or the gain or 10ss on SEIE IO XGRS G HER - &t
curtailment, is recognised as an expense in profit or loss at the earlier 2Rk A S HE Rl B A R S ME SR AR R S AR Ak AN Bk
of when the plan amendment or curtailment occurs and when related BHREN R (URFEER%E) - NIERANER
restructuring costs or termination benefits are recognised. Net interest BT o BRFE T H R A FRE R G R
expense or income for the period is determined by applying the discount LS ETREN AEREANITIE R E
rate used to measure the defined benefit obligation at the beginning AR EEEMNAGEREEFEMETE - FTA
of the reporting period to the net defined benefit liability or asset. The MITREEREAEHERNEEAEAR
discount rate is the yield at the end of the reporting period on high quality HIREENEE D EEHFNRE ARG
corporate bonds that have maturity dates approximating the terms of the RETF o
Group's obligations.

(ili)  Termination benefits (iiiy AREEEER
Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier of when the Group can KRIHEBENAS ANEBREE BN IR
no longer withdraw the offer of those benefits and when it recognises ENETHRBEENABE KR IERHE
restructuring costs involving the payment of termination benefits. HER (UEEEA%E) -

(p) Income tax (p) FI8H

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and movements in deferred
tax assets and liabilities. Current tax and movements in deferred tax
assets and liabilities are recognised in profit or loss, except to the extent
that they relate to items recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, in which case the relevant amounts of tax are recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the
year, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the
reporting period, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous
years.

REZZFEREBEARBIEMRLEREE
ERBEZEE - NEIBIAMRLERIAE E
RBEZEBHERSPER  EE RN
Hib 2 E WS E &N e ERRIER
A7 Bl FE EL b 2 [ W ol S 2 AP RERR

ARERBUA T IRIBAE RSB+ AR
B FRAT R ABE B2 B R 2 T
FERTBEIE + 3 BB 4 2 B BB T
farAE -
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1  Significant accounting policies (Continued) 1 EEEBEEE

(p) Income tax (Continued) (p)  FrE® ()
Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible and taxable BEEMBEEERBEDDIKRBEERAE
temporary differences respectively, being the differences between the HERUBREA I RABERABEMES
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes ZA RS ERR s AR o REHTEE
and their tax bases. Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax losses ENABEADAZHEEEER AR Z
and unused tax credits. TR R PTEEAE ©
Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax liabilities and all BETFTERZAIMNER  FFEELEHRIEAE
deferred tax assets, to the extent that it is probable that future taxable MIEEREEE (LWEER AN EREER
profits will be available against which the asset can be utilised, are KERB SN EABR) 152 FLAMER - &
recognised. Future taxable profits that may support the recognition of BRI S EEES 2 EIERE
deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary differences include BE RRERFGH - 0EEERIREGE
those that will arise from the reversal of existing taxable temporary AT EEMEA B TR =5
differences, provided those differences relate to the same taxation MEZEERE/R A — RIS R & 48 B ER T
authority and the same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse either BEAM  WTEEANTESR O AT N T =
in the same period as the expected reversal of the deductible temporary %8 oo dER o A BB IBEEMELY
difference or in periods into which a tax loss arising from the deferred tax BMIEEIE A — R AER - RETIREE
asset can be carried back or forward. The same criteria are adopted when AN EEN S FERASABIEEBRE
determining whether existing taxable temporary differences support the R REAZELERIBEERINEAMER
recognition of deferred tax assets arising from unused tax losses and AR - A& =R A — R E R AR E
credits, that is, those differences are taken into account if they relate to RUEREY  WIEHRARESATIESER
the same taxation authority and the same taxable entity, and are expected Ho o KA (—BoZ &) AL - Alg
to reverse in a period, or periods, in which the tax loss or credit can be FLAGTA
utilised.
The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax assets and liabilities BREEHBEEERABEZ LEAIINGR
are those temporary differences arising from goodwill not deductible BENEEESNAHMBRIE - RROER
for tax purposes, the initial recognition of assets or liabilities that affect WHEEet RERN AN EEREE
neither accounting nor taxable profit (provided they are not part of a (MW IEEBEH B0 EXZER=
business combination) and temporary differences relating to investments AR MaRMBATIZERERB 2R
in subsidiaries to the extent that, in the case of taxable differences, R RERMERN S AANEE LG
the Group controls the timing of the reversal and it is probable that the IR - &R A ARG e [0 =88 A
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future or, in the case of R sREL Al 0B =58 m 5 BIZE A A gE A R 2
deductible differences, unless it is probable that they will reverse in the e E AR -
future.
The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured based on the FRIEFRIB  EReBNHIREERBEZER
expected manner of realisation or settlement of the carrying amount of BE2EPERNEMER - RARGEEEAN
the assets and liabilities, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted SICEHAB LI EZCHEAE - BEEFIBEE
at the end of the reporting period. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are ENBEYTHLR -
not discounted.
The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed at the end of BERBEEZFHEDRSEERENTSE
each reporting period and is reduced to the extent that it is no longer B - i fmE Al BB 2 592 E AR B g K A
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow the related HIF A IES - AEERBEEES T
tax benefit to be utilised. Any such reduction is reversed to the extent that AR D o ZBIR SR80 18 B A ERB R T
it becomes probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available. Bl g H IR AF B[O -

[
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1  significant accounting policies (Continued) 1 EEEBEE®
(p) Income tax (Continued) (p)  FrE® ()
Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and movements therein, REARGEE SR EMMEZBEE 5 R
are presented separately from each other and are not offset. Current tax T~ WEADTEE o REAFREMEHEE
assets are offset against current tax liabilities, and deferred tax assets REERNBSHANEBR A AT ITHEEAKNE
against deferred tax liabilities, if the Company or the Group has the legally TS EEREAPMEHaE  YAKE
enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities AT AAGERIE R T » A A A B $52
and the following additional conditions are met: ARSI ALE -
— in the case of current tax assets and liabilities, the Company or the — KEFTSHEEMAE « ARRIHA
Group intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset SEFEIRFREALELYE - (FARE
and settle the liability simultaneously; or R EEMEEZEE &
— in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities, if they relate to — EEFTESREEMEE  EHEEM
income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on either: BENBRR—FSHEEARATES
— BRI FRIST A A -
— the same taxable entity; or — Bl —FERR TR 5 ok
— different taxable entities, which, in each future period in — TEMERTIEE - ELHE
which significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities or BT EIETEHE KRBIRLER
assets are expected to be settled or recovered, intend to BHRAEBEEBFEIELM
realise the current tax assets and settle the current tax 151 & B AT LA B ) B 4B R
liabilities on a net basis or realise and settle simultaneously. FEAR - I FFE A AT K
HA RTS8 A B RS (5N B AT
BWEE  SKRRZEHEZE
EMEEZBE -
(q) Provisions and contingent liabilities (q EERIAREE
Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing or amount IMRANE N AREBBRE B LSRR
when the Group or the Company has a legal or constructive obligation FEESETEY AMEHeEREEaLE
arising as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of Wz B B IRSNA - 7 AT LAYE AT S R 5T
economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable B AR AERFEem LB EERN
estimate can be made. Where the time value of money is material, FREGEHRES MEEEEBBESA
provisions are stated at the present value of the expenditure expected to BTt PR E X B A IR (BT 5124 o
settle the obligation.
Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be MR EEEE R M E RN A g 1
required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably, the obligation is & sie®s iy aesEEL T SE/MNET
disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow of FEEZEBRERIABE  BERINT
economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations, whose existence B RTRE AR R AIBR AD - IR AE BRI EBA
will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or BIEEFERNZRAREHEE LA AT
more future events are also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the REFE - TeHERNEBRE  BERI
probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote. LAY AT BE AR AIBR A ©
()  Revenue and other income (n WARHMKE

Income is classified by the Group as revenue when it arises from the sale
of goods or the use by others of the Group's assets under leases in the
ordinary course of the Group's business.

Revenue is recognised when control over a product is transferred to the
customer, or the lessee has the right to use the asset, at the amount of
promised consideration to which the Group is expected to be entitled,
excluding those amounts collected on behalf of third parties. Revenue
excludes value added tax and consumption tax and is after deduction of
any trade discounts.

Further details of the Group’s revenue and other income recognition
policies are as follows:

RASENAEXBBES  AEBERAEN
EEMAEMANBELTAEAREENE
EMELEMIE - BRBER/KA -

EEMNENEER TREP  REARE
ERAZEER  HRAKEAMERESH
EHEESRERLA - TERERRE=]
WERH) 58 » WA T BIRIBEHRNEER -
WHIBREAI B S I

EAAEEBAREMRESERERE—F
FRLANT
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1  significant accounting policies (continued) 1 EEEEE®

()  Revenue and other income (Continued) (n WARHfMKE (&)

(i) Sale of goods (i) HEWA
Revenue is recognised when goods are delivered at the customers’ HEWAEARHEN S IR E R AL
premises or picked up by customers for domestic sales and when goods B EG e iR AHAEEMS b
are on board vessels for export sales which is taken to be the point in time REREHEMN  DBEZEXERITCER
when the customer has accepted the goods and obtained the control of EmEy s o
the goods.

(ii)  Interest income (i)  FEWA
Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the effective interest F B A TR ER R R EE o
method.

(ili)  Rental income from operating leases (i) REFEMERZHESKA
Rental income receivable under operating leases is recognised in profit BiEgLHEEmEK Z2HE WA - TIAZEEE
or loss in equal instalments over the periods covered by the lease term. RELHTHE 2 2t ERER - REHEER
Lease incentives granted are recognised in profit or loss as an integral part BhiE m)ﬂ’ﬁﬁ)ﬁﬁqﬁzm%ﬁﬁ@mgﬁ REEH)— IR
of the aggregate net lease payments receivable. MIEEEF R o

(s) Translation of foreign currencies (s) HpEEHB

(i) Functional and presentation currency (i) MEEEEREREE
Items included in the financial statements of each of the Group's K;‘%KW% Tzﬁﬁ’w&%ﬁﬁ BEZE
subsidiaries are measured using the currency of the primary economic B DIRZWBARKSEMTE 2 EELEIR
environment in which the entity operates (“the functional currency”). The A (Fﬁjﬁﬁ‘éﬁ’#ﬂ) FTE o SRETBHRE
consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars, AT 25 - MEITAKRAT 2R 2R
which is the Company’s functional and presentation currency. j={:-3

(ii) Foreign currency transactions during the year are translated at the foreign (i) FRUINEHEITT 2R G - AR G H 2N
exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates. Monetary assets and [ERRE - PINEEE B EENRAE
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the foreign BIAEE H 2 NS TERIRE - [ H I8 ToT
exchange rates ruling at the end of the reporting period. Exchange gains ABz=H o
and losses are recognised in profit or 10ss.
Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in terms of LAONBIRE SR ARTHEREEBEERBE
historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the foreign FA3Z 5 BN IE 3 REITINE o
exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates.
The results of operations outside Hong Kong are translated into Hong BB LM\\%?“E’]%F‘E&EE X 5 B Ry K4
Kong dollars at the foreign exchange rates approximating the foreign ERERGE 55 - IR REAIER IR
exchange rates ruling at the dates of the transactions. Statement of #EH E’JET%@%#}%M o TEARERZ
financial position items are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the closing FEEEEESERE AR -
foreign exchange rates at the end of the reporting period. The resulting
exchange differences are recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated separately in equity in the exchange fluctuation reserve.
On disposal of an operation outside Hong Kong, the cumulative amount o ERBLIINERE MR EBETmE
of the exchange differences relating to that operation is reclassified from RARBANEERNRTELEZHS N EE
equity to profit or loss when the profit or loss on disposal is recognised. B ATk &R o
Foreign exchange gains and losses arising from monetary items that EEIEEEAMIINKEY B2 (BRIBRE
in substance form part of the net investment in an operation outside FEAIMEE W — 8 )) B 2 TRIBERE
Hong Kong, together with any related tax, are reclassified to equity on P EF DA RIERE AR R R
consolidation.

I
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(BRABIETIN - BIRAEEEHEHE)

(t)

(u)

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of an asset which necessarily takes a
substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are
capitalised as part of the cost of that asset. Other borrowing costs are
expensed in the period in which they are incurred.

Related parties

0]

(i)

A person, or a close member of that person’s family, is related to
the Group if that person:

has control or joint control over the Group;
has significant influence over the Group; or

is a member of the key management personnel of the
Group or the Group’s parent.

An entity is related to the Group if any of the following conditions

applies:

(1

The entity and the Group are members of the same group
(which means that each parent, subsidiary and fellow
subsidiary is related to the others).

One entity is an associate or joint venture of the other
entity (or an associate or joint venture of a member of a
group of which the other entity is a member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the same third party.

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other
entity is an associate of the third entity.

The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of employees of either the Group or an entity
related to the Group.

The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person
identified in (i).

A person identified in (i)(1) has significant influence
over the entity or is a member of the key management
personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity).

The entity or any member of a group of which it is a part
provides key management personnel services to the Group
or to the Group’s parent.

Close members of the family of a person are those family members who
may be expected to influence, or be influenced by, that person in their
dealings with the entity.

1
(t)

(u)

FESEHBGR (8
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HUHE  BEREESERERE (BIMAR
A—BEEREATIERERAENHEZE
E) MEEEBAHZEBERAIRIEZETEE
Z MR o H MR B R A E A M IR
FIERI ©
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MRKE (EEREEHETAR
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (BRBERTIN - HIRBBHE)

1 significant accounting policies (Continued) 1 EFESHBR (9

(v) Segment reporting (v) DEERZHR
Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment item reported LE SRR BHREANEROSDEHIEE
in the financial statements, are identified from the financial information SHEETFTHRERREFAERSZSITHREEAE
provided regularly to the Group’s most senior executive management for RERDEMTEANEBNES IR EERN
the purposes of allocating resources to, and assessing the performance of, 58 7 # IR B MR IBA B 7B B
the Group's various geographical locations. B2
Individually material operating segments are not aggregated for financial R BERME  BRIEDBEBEBLUNEE
reporting purposes unless the segments have similar economic BELTEERRRBME - AFETFHE -
characteristics and are similar in respect of the nature of products EEEAISIER - BESIE QIR HRE
and services, the nature of production processes, the type or class of M EREERENEE FEAL - TS
customers, the methods used to distribute the products or provide HEARE YIS EITEE o [HRIFEEK
the services, and the nature of the regulatory environment. Operating RaR S INRAA it KEBHIEXE - 8
segments which are not individually material may be aggregated if they ETAE °
share a majority of these criteria.

2  Accounting judgements and estimates 2 gEiErRAE
Note 20 contains information about the assumptions and their risk factors B 208EEEEKEI ABEZHBSE
relating to the retirement benefit liabilities. Other key sources of estimation N AN R IR IS R E A AT R A
uncertainty are as follows: &t

(@) Impairment of non-current assets (@ FRBEEZRME
The Group reviews the carrying amounts of non-current assets at each AEERESRE BB IERDEENKR®T
reporting date to determine whether there is objective evidence of B UHREEEFLRAENEEFE - B/
impairment. When indicators of impairment is identified, management BFREZHETE SEBRMESEEEMNT
determines the recoverable amounts of respective assets. The recoverable Bl AlEeEAFHEBREAER
amount is the greater of its fair value less costs of disposal and value MENRSE  REETFHEER  BEE
in use. In determining the fair value less costs of disposal, management ELERBEENTBERMSER - REX
refer to the observable market prices for similar assets. In determining the FHREEE  RERAEEEANTEHRES TN
value in use, expected cash flows generated by the asset are discounted FALREIRE o BIEF S MW ATER &
to their present value, which requires significant judgement relating to RITHN - BB A - [E F AN M A% K i iR B
the revenue forecasts and estimations of future discounts, future variable REPERMNEANEE - NEBEAME A
costs and fixed costs as well as future inflation and long-term growth BERUEETRESEMNSERE - 21K
rates. The Group uses all readily available information in determining an BeEENRRMER  BEBEBRIERE
amount that is a reasonable approximation of the recoverable amount. oo R ERESREMHTPAARABEZH
When the recoverable amount is lower than the carrying amount, an (LB SR N DR EEEER W
impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss. However, any change in LEREFENI BN - IERBEENED
the assumptions adopted in the cash flow forecasts would increase or EREEF B RIRMEE 11 12 H#E -
decrease the provision for impairment loss and affect the Group's financial
position. Details of the nature and carrying amounts of non-current assets
are disclosed in notes 11 and 12.
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2  Accounting judgements and estimates (Continued) 2  ®EHEERAET (&)

(b) Depreciation or amortisation of non-current assets (b) FRBEEZITESREH
Property, plant and equipment, investment properties and leasehold %% R R KREDENTEE -
land (see note 11) are depreciated or amortised on a straight-line basis #= (R Rt REEEFRSRER (10
over their estimated useful lives, after taking into account the estimated ﬁ) B EEEAERFERIZESEN
residual values, if any. The Group reviews the estimated useful lives and E o AEBTHYHEEMMGAIERER X
the estimated residual values, if any, of the assets regularly in order to HETRIREBE (A) EX M - WEBERTR
determine the amount of depreciation or amortisation expense to be LHIANPTARSMITES B AT - A F R
recorded during any reporting period. The useful lives and residual values FREFGEENDRBEAEEHEUEED
are based on the Group’s historical experience with similar assets and BELCHEEEE ‘H}{fﬁﬁ’ﬁﬁ/ﬁﬂ@@jﬁﬁ{/ﬁﬁj °
taking into account anticipated technological changes. The depreciation or WEBAE AT EEARE - RRBENITE
amortisation expense for future periods is adjusted if there are significant X BT HE -
changes from previous estimates.

(c)  Useful lives of intangible assets (c) EREEZTFERAFEH
Intangible assets (see note 12) are not amortised as their useful lives EEEE (RME12) YT eE#E &2
are assessed to be indefinite. The conclusion that the useful life of an HAREEEEFEAFTFHEEATEE -
intangible asset is indefinite is reviewed annually to determine whether ERULEREAE BEEEMAFEAFHERN
events and circumstances continue to support the indefinite useful life BEEMIUAR T ELIBIE S AAeEE Y i5E
assessment. The Group may need to amortise intangible assets in future FEAENFERFERETET - INRERK
periods or recognise impairment losses for intangible assets if events and BIRIEXRFARERHFEEAET - NEBER 2
circumstances indicate that the useful life is no longer indefinite. eHEREEELEHESERRAERE -

(d) write down of inventories (d) #WREFEE
The Group performs regular reviews of the carrying amounts of AREBREFSREDIT - BEARKEAE
inventories as disclosed in note 14 with reference to aged inventories EEEEZHE  HEEZEEEETTEH
analysis, expected future consumption and management judgement. =/ (AW 14) - HFE 2t &IR%E
Based on these reviews, write down of inventories will be made when the BEERPREREE  IAEESRERMZ
estimated net realisable value of inventories decline below the carrying ii%ﬁﬁm})jzrj"jZ{E@ R BERERE
amount. However, actual consumption may be different from estimation ‘J BEET AR - Mikfhst 2 B A RTEE
and profit or loss could be affected by differences in this estimation. - ;ijta\/\ °

3  Revenue and segment reporting 3 WARSEEHER

(@) Revenue (@ WA
The principal activities of the Group are the manufacture and distribution AEBZEBEBAREN D HBE «
of bottled, canned and draught beers. N AREE IR o
Revenue represents the invoiced value of products sold, net of discounts, WASERT N EE M2 B EAEMGRIT - R
returns, value added tax and consumption tax. B - EEH LM

(b) Segment reporting (b) AWBERZ2IK

The Group manages its businesses by geography. In @ manner consistent
with the way in which information is reported internally to the Group's
most senior executive management for the purposes of resource
allocation and performance assessment, the Group has presented the
following two reportable segments:

AEEZEERERR - RERNL2RE
HerEBREEBTHREEZABNESEE
BEFHERAEER -2 NEBZ2HR T
MEAT 2R
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (BRBERTIN - HIRBBHE)
3 Revenue and segment reporting (Continued 3 WARDEEHEEHR &)
(b) Segment reporting (Continued) (b) DEERZH ()
— The Hong Kong operations mainly comprise the manufacture — EAREKTERREETSE BN
and distribution of own brewed beer products and distribution of A eRER s R E DM 28
imported beer products in Hong Kong and overseas. JEE o
— The Mainland China operations mainly comprise the manufacture — FREAMESEEREEPEART
and distribution of own brewed beer products in the southern part ME ((FRERA]) mE k8D HE 5
of the People’s Republic of China (“PRC") and overseas. BER 7 B EE G o
All of the Group'’s revenue is generated from the manufacture and REBZIWAZ IR ERE N D HEBE - §E
distribution of bottled, canned and draught beers. &R o
(i)  Segment results, assets and liabilities () oEWEE -BERAEE
For the purposes of assessing segment performance and allocating MABOBRBEEDEDBER  AEBZ
resources between segments, the Group's senior executive management BETHREREAB TR TEREREAT
monitors the results, assets and liabilities attributable to each reportable EWHMEREZ2EE BERAE :
segment on the following bases:
Segment assets include all tangible assets, intangible assets and current DEHEBEEBREMEEREE EFEENR
assets. Segment liabilities include trade creditors and accruals attributable BEE - NHAEBESHRERSHEE
to the manufacture and distribution activities of the individual segments BEHNEMNE SEBLIEER 258
and retirement benefit liabilities managed directly by the segment and EEENERKENEEUANEMREHAGE -
other current liabilities with the exception of deferred tax liabilities. MERET BB &R o
The measure used for reportable segment profit or loss is “adjusted HEBTFERBANKEBFAEBZFEAS
EBIT” i.e. adjusted earnings before interest and taxes, where “interest”: [FARBEFTAE] BN [FAENE LFHIE
is regarded as including interest income from bank deposits and interest A2 FE | o 7S B IRRITFRFBWA K F
expense on loan from an intermediate holding company. To arrive MER AR ERF S - JEAREREPNER
at adjusted EBIT the Group’s earnings are further adjusted for items DEFRYTE B MNME KRR e A ARG AFE
not specifically attributed to individual segments, such as net foreign [FAEZBRAFIE] - 222 EAHEEZ
exchange losses. Inter-segment sales are priced at cost plus a profit B IR EIEEE -
margin.
The accounting policies of the reportable segments are the same as the BT 2 E 2 & FT R B EE 1 i 2 AR
Group’s accounting policies described in note 1. EEESFBERMAER -
I
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (BRBERTIN - HIRBEHE)
3 Revenue and segment reporting (Continued) 3 WARSESEIEHER (&)
(b) Segment reporting (Continued) (b) SDBERZW HE)
(i) Segment results, assets and liabilities (Continued) (i) DEREE - BENEE (B)
Information regarding the Group'’s reportable segments as provided to the He T NFrR-_FT—N\F+_A=1+—
Group’s most senior executive management for the purposes of resource Hif BARETAEESZSETREEA
allocation and assessment of segment performance for the years ended BN RERRFE D BRIF 2 ERET a0
31 December 2019 and 2018 is set out below: N
Hong Kong Mainland China Total
BB A El A it B
2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018
“E-NE —E-N\E “E-NE ZEN\E ZB-NE ZEN\E
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Fr T r i r i
(Note) (Note) (Note)
() () ()
Revenue from external HREPKA
customers 384,663 390,548 195,387 194,061 580,050 584,609
Inter-segment revenue DEBEBA 327 31 - — 37 321
Reportable BFEHIBRA
segment revenue 384,990 390,869 195,387 194,061 580,377 584,930
Reportable segment BTERIDLE
(loss)/profit before (B8) /BH
taxation from CEEE)
operations SAIEAH)
(adjusted EBIT) (1,989) (81,415) 7,780 14,502 5791 (66,913)
Interest income from RATEAMBHA
bank deposits 1,252 1,681 325 280 1,577 1,961
Interest expense on loans ERMERR (4,303) (6,040) - = (4,303) (6,040)
Depreciation and FRTEREH
amortisation for
the year (20,270) (23,203) (3,801) (2,369) (24,071) (25,572)
(Provision for)/reversal TRk
of impairment losses (REsE
recognised in profit or Ef&) /e
loss in respect of: kR
— Property, plant SEE R T
and equipment Ve - (80,000) - — - (80,000)
—trade and other - EYBH R
receivables HiiRE (1) (400) 5 1 4 (399)
Reportable ATEHRITNEE
segment assets 997,973 1,012,981 117,848 103,271 1,115,821 1,116,252
Additions to non-current ERFEREA T
segment assets during EEEM
the year 1,275 12,944 3,532 6,167 10,807 19,111
Reportable segment EFRHANERE
liabilities 170,940 188,432 428,967 422,786 599,907 611,218
Note:  The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 at 1 January 2019 using the B AEBERZZE-hE—A—BERALE
modified retrospective approach. Under this approach, the comparative RIMBBEERERE SN EHREER
information is not restated. See note 1(c). EHAY o EEREFET P FEHHRE

£ e RHEEC) ©
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3 Revenue and segment reporting (Continued) 3 WARSESEIEHER (&)
(b) Segment reporting (Continued) (b) SLWERI2HM (&)
(ii)  Reconciliation of reportable segment revenue, profit or loss, (i) ZAF2{/IBKA - 18% - BERARB>
assets and liabilities HER
2019 2018
—E-NF —E-N\F
$'000 $'000
Fx Tt
(Note)
(&)
Revenue A
Reportable segment revenue BT 2HHIBBA 580,377 584,930
Elimination of inter-segment revenue 28,2 fa U A JBiss (327) (321)
Consolidated revenue EREUWA 580,050 584,609
Profit/(loss) BF,/ (58)
Reportable segment profit/(loss) from operations AT E2HDIBEERT (BE) 5,791 (66,913)
Interest income from bank deposits |ITHERZFEWA 1,577 1,961
Net foreign exchange gains b 5 5 U a 282 132
Interest on lease liabilities HEBENEXZH (37) =
Interest expenses on loan from an MR AR ERF B
intermediate holding company (4,303) (6,040)
consolidated profit/(loss) before taxation RERBAET, (BB) 3,310 (70,860)
Assets BE
Reportable segment assets AT ERDEEE 1,115,821 1,116,252
Elimination of inter-segment receivables 3882 [ FE UK AR TE A 4R (383,767) (385,141)
Consolidated total assets LA EEE 732,054 731,111
Liabilities =N
Reportable segment liabilities ATEmRHBARE 599,907 611,218
Elimination of inter-segment payables B8 [ FE 1< BR TE B SH (383,767) (385,141)
216,140 226,077
Deferred tax liabilities FREFIA A E — 4,366
Consolidated total liabilities mEBAaE 216,140 230,443
Note:  The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 at 1 January 2019 using the & : ASKBER-_T—hF— A —AERBLETNEN
modified retrospective approach. Under this approach, the comparative FHERERBRAMBMELEAE T 5 - LiEESs
information is not restated. See note 1(c). ET  AEIILLRER - RIIEE10) °
[ ]
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(BRABIETIN - BIRAEEEHEHE)

(b)
(iii)

(c)

Revenue and segment reporting (Continued)
Segment reporting (Continued)
Geographic information

The following table sets out information about the geographic location of
(i) the Group's revenue from external customers and (i) the Group’s non-
current assets (“specified non-current assets”). The geographic location
of customers is based on the country of establishment of each customer.
The geographic location of the specified non-current assets is based
on the physical location of the assets, in the case of property, plant and
equipment, investment properties and leasehold land, and the location of

3 BARSHEHIE B
(b) oHERZ| (H)
(i) wEEH

TREIA B () AR BN P A K (i) A
SEARDHEE ((EEFRBEE]) 2t
BUBEER - FP2HBUBERBEERR
FRABEFEBRRME - SHEFRBDEE
ZWEVERREBEEZERUE (HEY
¥ HMERLRE  REMENEE T i0ER)
NEIBREREEZLEMH (WBELE

the operation to which they are allocated, in the case of intangible assets. BE) ME °
Revenue from Specified
external customers non-current assets
HREFKRA EEFRBEE
2019 2018 2019 2018
—E-hF —E-N\F —E-NEF —E-)N\F
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Fr Tt F FT
(Note)
(fE#)
Hong Kong 6
(place of domicile) (P Az EE) 267,792 276,625 448,158 462,456
Mainland China AR A, 93,693 94,585 30,990 30,023
Philippines JFEE 210,663 205,655 — =
Others EMBER 7,902 7,744 — —
312,258 307,984 30,990 30,023
580,050 584,609 479,148 492,479

Note:  The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 at 1 January 2019 using the
modified retrospective approach. Under this approach, the comparative
information is not restated. See note 1(c).

Major customers

The Group's customer base is diversified and includes one customer
(2018: one customer), with whom transactions have exceeded 10% of
the Group's revenues. Revenue from sales to these customers during the

i AREER-_ZT-NF-A—HRAKLE
RIRBYEE REREBMBRE LR
BN o MERIDET » TEIILKE
e RHEEC) °

() FEEF
KEBBAEZ UL 2BEER » EpE—(7
(ZZ—)\: ) BFENR ZEEEKAE
B10% - U T AZEEFPRAFTEHAREEF

report period are set out as below. MR 52516 °
2019 2018
—E-AF —E-N\F
$'000 $'000
F T+

Largest customer (arose from both Hong Kong (R BRARF

and the Mainland China segments) ORRBE XA B A 6) 210,749 205,749
— Percentage of total revenue — HEEBAERL 36% 35%

Details of concentration of credit risk arising from these customers are set
out in note 24(a).

RAZEEPZFMAEERBEH LM
24(a) °
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4 Other net income 4 =g g =]
2019 2018
—E-NF —=—N\F
$'000 $'000
F Tt
Rental income from investment properties TEYEHES WA 23,706 22,465
Interest income from bank deposits RITERZFBUA 1,577 1,961
Net gain on disposal of non-current assets HEERBEE 2 F &R 913 894
Net foreign exchange gains bE R 282 132
Advertising and promotion subsidy (note 26(a)) BE R EmEL (MisE26)) — 14,175
Others Hih 494 374
26,972 40,001
5  Profit/(loss) before taxation 5 KRBRARF(5E8)
Profit/(loss) before taxation is arrived at after charging/ BREAIEF, (F5E) 2R
(crediting): (5t A) T3ER
2019 2018
—E-hF —E-)N\F
$'000 $'000
Fx T
(Note)
(1E71)
(a) Finance costs (a) Bi%EH
Interest expense on loan from an R IERR AR
intermediate holding company (note 17(c)) ERF ST (MEE17(0) 4,303 6,040
Interest on lease liabilities (note 17(c)) HEBBMEZE (FiFE17(0) 37 —
Bank charges RITE A 138 130
4,478 6,170
(b)  Staff costs (b) EBEIHM
Retirement costs RIS A
— Defined contribution retirement plans — ERRHFERMARETE 6,199 6,621
— Defined benefit retirement plan — ERARF R IR S
(note 20(a)(V)) (B 5E 20(a)(v)) 5,263 4,918
11,462 11,539
Salaries, wages and other benefits e TENREMEF 122,952 123,067
134,414 134,606
Note:  The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 at 1 January 2019 using the it AREERZZ-AF—A—BERALE
modified retrospective approach. Under this approach, the comparative FIREMEERERBE BN RS ER
information is not restated. See note 1(c). FHN5E e BEERET - TEIILERE

#o BBEE1(C) ©
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(BR=BIETIN

IR )

5 Profit/(loss) before taxation (Continued)

Profit/(loss) before taxation is arrived at after charging/

(crediting): (Continued)

5 KRR (58)@

BRBLATRF (B1R) Bk

(5t A) T3EE @ (8)

2019 2018
—E-NF —Z-N\F
$'000 $'000
Fr T
(Note)
(fE5E)
(c)  Otheritems (c) Hihm
Depreciation e
— Property, plant and equipment (note 11(a))* — W% - MBS RERE
(BdsE11(0)) * 19,332 20,863
— Investment properties (note 11(a)) —&EME (MEE11@) 4,739 4,709
Cost of inventories (note 14) FEKA (HizE14) 318,340 328,601
Total minimum lease payments previously ARG ERIETERERT
classified as operating lease under NREBEENK
HKAS 17 (note 11(e))* (HisE11(8)) *
— Land and buildings — THIREE — 1,659
— Other assets — HihEE — 305
Expenses relating to short-term leases and PSEETIEN =P &N =)
other leases with remaining lease term —E-hF+=ZA=1+—H
ending on or before 31 December 2019 Rl SEAEMAR E R MR- SE
(note 17(d)) (Mg7E17(d)) 830 —
Rental receivable from investment properties REWEZ B WAIBREE
less direct outgoings of $7,860,000 £ F 7,860,000 7T
(2018: $7,951,000) (Z=—)\%F : 7,951,0007T) (15,846) (14,514)
Auditors’ remuneration Z SR & 3,306 3,295
Net (reversal of)/provision for impairment of EWE 5 KR EMERRZ
trade and other receivables (note 24(a)) BB (E8) Bt
(B 5 24()) (4) 399
* The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 using the modified retrospective * AEBEHRERALEIINENEERE

approach and adjusted the opening balances at 1 January 2019 to
recognise right-of-use assets relating to leases which were previously
classified as operating leases under HKAS 17. After initial recognition of
right-of-use assets at 1 January 2019, the Group as a lessee is required to
recognise the depreciation of right-of-use assets, instead of the previous
policy of recognising rental expenses incurred under operating leases
on a straight-line basis over the lease term. Under this approach, the

comparative information is not restated. See note 1(c).

BB MEERE ] AR TN
F-A-HRBANERURREESSE
ARG MEEE  ELEELICRES
AR EAETRBRAREHE - &
AEEEN_Z—NF— A AERRL
AEEERFEAARRAERREED
P& AR LR MBI B ARERER
HEHALEEEEENESIH - &
EEITET  TEILBER - R
1(C) °
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IS )

6 Taxation in the consolidated income statement 6 RelBRZMBR
(@) Taxation in the consolidated income statement (@) HZEWRTZRZFBBIE:
represents:
2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-)N\EF
$'000 $'000
Tt T
Current tax — Hong Kong Profits Tax REFIE — FAEREH
Provision for the year NG S B 601 918
Qver-provision in prior year FFEREEEE (20) —
e e 581 218 __.
Deferred tax (note 21) EERLIE (FiEE21)
Origination and reversal of temporary differences = Ely=@smm ke 5571 2310
Income tax (credit)/charge Fris® (Gt A) /X (4,990) 3,228
The provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax for 2019 is calculated at 16.5% —E-NFEBFBNEREBERF NG ER
(2018: 16.5%) of the estimated assessable profits for the year, except for A 89 16.5% (2018 FF : 16.5%) #t & -
one subsidiary of the Group which is a qualifying corporation under the AEENEF—FHFB R AKTEFESHM
two-tiered Profits Tax rate regime. BREFE TG EREE -
For this subsidiary, the first $2 million of assessable profits are taxed ZMBARMERNAENE — a8 B TK
at 8.25% and the remaining assessable profits are taxed at 16.5%. The 8.25% MR E - HERERBIAEZ 16.5%
provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax for this subsidiary was calculated at R RE - ZHBARNE BTG BE
the same basis in 2018. RZE— N\FURREEFH -
The statutory tax rate applicable to the subsidiaries established in the PRC AR BB S O T /BB A R RDVETE B3R 5 25% (=
was 25% (2018: 25%). No provision for current taxation has been made ZT— \F : 25%) c IRARBIRK S RIFT /B A /) R
for the subsidiaries established in the PRC because the accumulated tax R EERT REHHIE BB R A E A ER
losses brought forward exceed the estimated assessable profits for the BB SRS HIEEE WA BRAREEH
year or the entities sustained losses for taxation purpose. TEVET B -
(b) Reconciliation between income tax (credit)/charge and (b) ZRERABBIFENFIEH GtA) X
accounting profit/(loss) at applicable tax rates: HESHRER, (FE) <Yk :
2019 2018
—E-hF —F-N\F
$'000 $'000
Tt T
Profit/(loss) before taxation BRES BT T (ER) 3,310 (70,860)
Notional tax on profit/(loss) before taxation REBABREREER 2 EAR X
calculated at the rates applicable to TR AIRF] (E18) ;T8
the tax jurisdictions concerned ZABET IR 398 (14,920)
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses DR 2 IR & 2,094 3,200
Tax effect of non-taxable revenue R AZFRIBTE (1,533) (374)
Tax effect of contributions to retirement benefit plans  iRRtEFIEH 2 2 FiE R £ 355 365
Tax effect of tax losses and temporary differences  REERIELFIIE 2 FiIHE B
not recognised for deferred tax purposes RERUHER 2 HIETE (713) 14,957
Tax effect of recognition of tax losses TR LRI AR RIS B
previously not recognised ZIRIBRE (5,571) —
Over-proviison in prior years FFEEBEREE (20) =
Actual tax (credit)/charge BEEREHE GTA) X (4,990) 3,228
[
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7 Directors’ emoluments 7 EE#e
Directors” emoluments disclosed pursuant to section 383(1) of the Hong RIEE SN BEME 383(1) 16 % A7) (3
Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies (Disclosure of BEEFZER) RO F 232 R EMmF
Information about Benefits of Directors) Regulation is as follows: BoEEMET
2019
ZE-hE
Salaries,
allowances
and Retirement
Directors’ benefits  Discretionary scheme
fees in kind bonuses  contributions Total
& 2R
EEHS BYRE; MERL  BRGEHEK et
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
T T Tr Tr T
Executive director HITESR
Ramon G. Torralba HEE — 2,773 — — 2,773
Non-executive directors FHTES
Ramon S. Ang BRI — - - — —
Carlos Antonio M. Berba SER - — - — —
May (Michellg) W.M. Chan REX — - - - -
Roberto N. Huang =2ER — - - — —
Fumiaki Ozawa INEL R - — — - -
Kenji Uchiyama AILE= — — — — —
Tomoki Yamauchi IR 1 - - - — -
Independent BYFHTES
non-executive directors
Alonzo Q. Ancheta Alonzo Q. Ancheta — — — — —
David K.P Li THE - - - - -
Reynato S. Puno Reynato S. Puno — - — — —
Carmelo L. Santiago i - - - — -
William C.M. Cheng HAIR - - - — —
— 2,773 — — 2,773
The executive director waived his entitlement to his director’s fees. All WITESCOHEERS - FIBIHFHITES
of the non-executive directors and independent non-executive directors MBI IEMITESENERAMNSE -
waived their entitlements to all their emoluments.
I
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7 Directors’ emoluments (Continued) 7 EFEMe (&
2018
—T-N\F
Salaries,
allowances
and Retirement
Directors’ benefits Discretionary scheme
fees inkind bonuses contributions Total
e 2R
i )= BB RAGHEIER ks
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
T T T T T
Executive director HITEE
Ramon G. Torralba HEE — 2,642 — — 2,642
Non-executive directors FHTES
Ramon S. Ang 24258 = = = = =
Carlos Antonio M. Berba SR — — — — —
May (Michelle) W.M. Chan BREX = = = = =
Takashi Hayashi mEEL (RZE-N\F
(resigned on 13 April 2018) mA+=HEHT) = = = = =
Roberto N. Huang 2ER = = = = =
Fumiaki Ozawa INEF R = = = = =
Kenji Uchiyama AlE= (RZ2-N\F
(appointed on 13 April 2018) MA+=BEET) = = — — —
Tomoki Yamauchi R = = = = =
Independent BYFHTES
non-executive directors
Alonzo Q. Ancheta Alonzo Q. Ancheta = = = = —
David K.P. Li FEE = = = = =
Reynato S. Puno Reynato S. Puno — — — — —
Carmelo L. Santiago ihids = = = = =
William C.M. Cheng HAIR = = = = =
— 2,642 — — 2,642
The executive director waived his entitlement to his director’s fees. All ﬁﬂﬁ%%ﬁﬁﬁ@iﬁ?@ﬁ c TAIENITES
of the non-executive directors and independent non-executive directors DB ERATESCREEMBMNE -
waived their entitlements to all their emoluments.
I
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8 Individuals with highest emoluments 8 HMemEsEZAR
Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, one (2018: one) is a BB hBABR  —F (22— N\F: —
director whose emoluments are included in note 7. The aggregate of the %) BES (KBS RME7HEE) - £
emoluments in respect of the remaining four (2018: four) individuals are as mEg (ZZE—)N\F : mE) emaABZ
follows: BlemEEmT

2019 2018

—E-hF —E-N\F

$'000 $'000

Tt T

Salaries and other emoluments e RERL 7,493 7,507

Retirement scheme contributions SROKETZHE R 454 444

7,947 7,951
The emoluments of the four (2018: four) individuals with the highest e (22— N\F : 0%) HesgmcAEZ

emoluments are within the following bands: MeatraT

2019 2018

—E-hEF —E-N\F

Number of Number of

individuals Individuals

AEHE ANEZE

$1,500,001 to $2,000,000 1,500,001 7T £ 2,000,000 7T 2 2

$2,000,001 to $2,500,000 2,000,001 7t 2 2,500,000 7T 2 1

$2,500,001 to $3,000,000 2,500,001 7t 2 3,000,000 7T — 1
[ ]
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9

10
(a)

(b)

98

Other comprehensive income 9 Hth2mikS
Tax effects relating to each component of other comprehensive income Hi 2 Em &M THIETE
2019 2018
—g-hF “I)N\F
Before-tax Tax Net-of-tax  Before-tax Tax  Net-of-tax
amount effect  amount amount effect amount
BREASE HEYE KRULSE RUHNSE HEYE RKeE
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Tr Tr Fr T T Fr
(note 21(b)) (note 21(0))
(Kt 21(b)) (FiEE21(0)
Exchange differences on RAEEINTB AR
translation of financial I REREREAKEE
statements of subsidiaries RIB AR ZRERNEKIEE
outside Hong Kong and monetary  FTEAZEH =58
items that form part of the
net investment in subsidiaries
outside Hong Kong (1,225) — (1,225) 2171) — 2,171)
Actuarial gains and losses of EREFIRKGE
defined benefit retirement plan LB BT REE
(note 20(@)(v)) (B 20(@))) 9,457 (1,205) 8,252 (9,880) 1,996 (7,884)
Other comprehensive income Hit 2 EdeEs 8,232 (1,205) 7,027 (12,051) 1,996 (10,055)
Earnings/(loss) per share 10 SREF (HE)
Basic earnings/(loss) per share (@) BREXER (FHE)
The calculation of basic earnings/(loss) per share is based on the profit SEREXREN, (BR) HIREA D AERR
attributable to equity shareholders of the Company of $11,583,000 (2018: ﬁé%fﬁﬁﬂ#\ﬂﬁg&omn (ZF—N\F:
loss of $73,556,000) and on 373,570,560 (2018: 373,570,560) ordinary *Eﬁ?iﬁﬁ}\_ﬁgfmgﬂé!73,556,000\7n) &N
shares, being the number of ordinary shares in issue throughout the year. A E %17 2373570560 & @ x (= F
— J\£E : 373,570,560 i i@ ) 5H& o
Diluted earnings/(loss) per share (b) #BEZERERN (FHE)

Diluted earnings/(loss) per share is not presented as the Company did not
have dilutive potential ordinary shares for both years presented.

a2z skan, (58 WATIL - AR
RENEA REHERBE SRR ©
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11 Property, plant and equipment, investment 11 P BRREHE REVERA
properties and leasehold land S1ith
(@) Reconciliation of carrying amount (a) BREEHER
Property, plant and equipment
nE BERRG
Ownership
interests in
land and Machinery,
buildings  equipment,
held for furniture Motor  Construction Investment
ownuse and fixtures vehicles  in progress Sub-total  properties Total
BRAmEE
it #E R
kEE  GRR%EE L] ERIR &t RENE 1]
$000 $000 $'000 $'000 §'000 $000 $000
i o S e T 7 i
Cost: B
At 1 January 2018 1,037,062 1,675,960 5017 — 2,718,039 212,714 2,930,753
Exchange adjustments (22,289) (33,020) (138) — (55,447) — (55,447)
Additions NE 2241 7874 268 8728 19,111 = 1911
Transfer from construction in progress ~ ERAARTE 485 1,955 — (2440) — - —
Disposals HE = (5,200 (183) = (5383) — (5,383)
AL31 December 2018 REBDN\ETSASTCR 10079 ewses Al 628 267630 AL
Accumulated amortisation, 2iEY  FERNESSE
depreciation and
impairment losses:
At 1 January 2018 R=ZE-\5—-f—-H 666,201 1,601,426 4230 — 2,271,857 82,508 2,354,365
Exchange adjustments L (20,955) (33,163) (140) = (54,258) — (54,258)
Charge for the year (note 5(c)) FREZ (M) 14,071 6,559 233 — 20,863 4,709 25572
Impairment loss (note 11(e) A (HEE11(6) 66,824 13,176 = = 80,000 = 80,000
Written back on disposals i E R = @) (182 - (4353) - (4353)
AL31December2018 . REBNEIZASTCR L e 1083827 ! L L L a7 24036
Net book value: BREFE
At 31 December 2018 R=E—\#+-A=1—H 291,358 63,742 823 6,288 362,211 125,497 487,708
Cost: R :
At 31 December 2018 RZE-\F+=A=1-H 1,017,499 1,647,569 4,964 6,288 2,676,320 212,714 2,889,034
Impact on initial application BB RS &
of HKFRS 16 (Note) ETATHTE (B2 1792 166 - - 1,958 - 1,958
At 1 January 2019 RZZE-NE—A—-H 1,019,291 1,647,735 4,964 6,288 2,678,278 212,714 2,890,992
Exchange adjustments BN AR (9.959) (14,685) (64) - (24,708) - (24,708)
Additions AE 168 7,815 550 1,419 9,952 855 10,807
Transfer from constructionin progress ~ EEBHEETR 257 5975 56 (6,288) - - -
Disposals HE — (11,733) (1,245) - (12,978) — (12,978)
AL31 December 2019 REZ_NVET-ASTCA 1009757 1635107 4 1419 265054 213,569 2864113
Accumulated amortisation, RitES  MERAESSE
depreciation and
impairment losses:
At 1 January 2019 R=ZE-NF-A—-H 726,141 1,583,827 410 - 2,314,109 87,217 2,401,326
Exchange adjustments A% (9.411) (14,525) (60) - (23,996) - (23,996)
Charge for the year (note 5(c)) ERFEx (FEE5(0) 13,188 5,897 247 - 19,332 4,739 24,071
Written back on disposals L ERE - (10,420) (1,245) — (11,665) - (11,665)
AL31 December2019 . REZMETSASTCR 709918 seTny S8 . T T80 91956 2389736
Net book value: REFE
At 31 December 2019 RZE-NE+-A=1+—H 279,839 70,328 1,178 1419 352,764 121,613 474,377
]
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11 Property, plant and equipment, investment 1 P BRREHE KREIVERA
properties and leasehold land (Continued) 1 (&)
(@) Reconciliation of carrying amount (Continued) (@) MREEHRKE
Note:  The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 using the modified retrospective Wit AEBEEERACEITEREZHERERRS
method and adjusted the opening balances at 1 January 2019 to recognise B FEIR AR E T NEWTABR - —H,
right-of-use assets relating to leases which were previously classified as F—-A—BZBES  URERiREER
operating leases under HKAS 17. See note 1(c). BEHENET LR EREEHEZH
EMERERREEE - R0 -
(b)  Investment Properties (by REYW=
The Group leases out investment properties which are located at Nos. AEBREBELLEHESUNESDHKEK
9-11 Shing Wan Road, Tai Wai, Shatin, Hong Kong under operating leases. BRI IREYELE - HAOFH &K
The leases typically run for an initial period of two to three years, with BZEZF  ARERIIBAZREELY -
an option to renew each lease upon expiry at which time all terms are EEEEIENTE IR - BEELOBTE
renegotiated. None of the leases includes contingent rentals. S ARES o
The Group's total future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable AEERBFETTMEEEHEEmREI 2 RK
operating leases are receivable as follows: BEFEINT -
2019 2018
—E-NF —E=-)\F
$'000 $'000
F T T
Investment properties REYHE
Within 1 year —FR 17,035 23,622
After 1 year but within 5 years —FEBEAFA 13,640 30,642
30,675 54,264
(c)  The fair value of the investment properties at 31 December 2019 is  (€) ®REWER-_T—-—hLhF+_A=+—H
$527,400,000 (2018: $545,200,000), which is based on a valuation using Z A {8 /527,400,000 (= ZF — )\ F :
the investment approach which considers the capitalisation of net rental 545,200,0007T) © AR EEEITIHE - BIE
income receivable from existing tenancies and the reversionary value HEWAERAERNELTMNZEMERS
of the property after tenancies expire by reference to market sales BRALE (2Famis LRELNLZS) 28
transactions. The valuation was carried out by an independent firm of A ([HETRBEAERMITAEITAZSAAE
surveyors, LCH (Asia-Pacific) Surveyors Limited, who have among their PRAFETT EBERESSAIEMEEN
staff Members of the Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors with valuation EXgE  THERENERERNAES
experience in the location and category of the property being valued. hEAS
The fair value measurements are categorised as Level 3 valuations under ARAEFEREESMBEREERFE 135
the three-level fair value hierarchy as defined in HKFRS 13, Fair value [AREBEE] TIEE 2 =RAREBEREE
measurement. The level into which a fair value measurement is classified BOBRRE=FRMHE B2AEBEAESE
is determined with reference to the observability and significance of the ZERIE2EWN TMEE R AMAEE A
inputs used in the valuation technique as follows: HRUNEZEET
— Level 1 valuations: Fair value measured using only Level 1 inputs i.e. — £ MRAEE  EERAS R AR
unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or (BRFTEHRBEEXGENER
liabilities at the measurement date TS REHERE) sFEZAAE
— Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured using Level 2 inputs - FEREE FRE REARE
i.e. observable inputs which fail to meet Level 1, and not using (BIRpeERE— L 2 JERE AH
significant unobservable inputs. Unobservable inputs are inputs for %) B RFEREART B A
which market data are not available BRrEZ2 AR E - Al BRg A
RETISER B ABUR
— Level 3 valuations: Fair value measured using significant — FZREE  HABERTABEREE
unobservable inputs ArECARE
[
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (BRBERTIN - HIRBEHE)

11 Property, plant and equipment, investment 11 P BRREHE REVERA
properties and leasehold land (Continued) 1 (&)

(c) (Continued) (c) (&)
The significant unobservable inputs in the fair value measurement are the SE QAR ERE 2 EAT A EREE AT
discount rate, which ranged from 2.0% to 4.5% (2018: 2.2% to 4.0%) and HER . §EA20%245%(ZZE—N\F: A
adjustment factors on quality and location of the properties, which ranged 2.2% %= 4.0%) B 3% ¥ 3 B R R B b B BR AR AN
from 0.0% to 10.0% (2018: 5.0% t0 15.0%). FERZE @#EA00%ZE100%(=ZZF—N

F: A50%%E15.0%) °

(d) Impairment loss (d) BESE
The Group considered the property, plant and equipment relating to the AEERFTEBKELLEENE © RITESF
Hong Kong brewery operations, which mainly comprise the production BEREAREEENYE  ITREREABL
plant in Hong Kong, as a separate cash generating unit. KBRS EESNL
During the year ended 31 December 2018, due to fierce brewery market FRNE_ZT—)N\F+-_A=1+—H BRE
competition in Hong Kong, the Hong Kong brewery operations under- BEATSHET SR AEENEBEEZE
performed. As such, the Group's management assessed the recoverable EHRIBAWIEE - ALt - AEENEEIT
amount of the property, plant and equipment of the Hong Kong brewery HEBABTETEAEBEEENDE - #
operations and accordingly, the recoverable amount of $307,911,000 RRERENITIESRE - MEsI ke e
was estimated. As the recoverable amount of the Hong Kong brewery #307,911,000 7T ° BB BEEE E 15891k
operations is lower than its carrying amount of property, plant and Ol EERMNEYIE - s RRENIREE -
equipment, an impairment loss of $80,000,000 was recognised in the 80,000,000 7T HY R B B 18 & R IR A AR F [E HY
consolidated income statement for the year. The recoverable amount of REWER - ABBAEKNANEEEI
the Hong Kong brewery operations is determined based on a value-in- RBEEREEFE  MBESRELA10.2%H
use calculation and the cash flows are discounted using a discount rate of WIRRAE o WIFIRERTIATE » RLEFH
10.2%. The discount rate used is pre-tax and reflects specific risks relating BEAESEENSTRR -
to the Hong Kong brewery operations.
In 2019, the Group reassessed the recoverable amount of the Hong Kong RIZEB—NF AEBCDEFIHELED
brewery operations and concluded that no further impairment losses or ¥BzrlBeE  URENR_-_T—NF
reversal of previously recognised impairment losses are required as at 31 +Z A=+ —BHAEE—TFIERESEZRK
December 2019. R [E S AT FERR R (BB 18 o

(e) Right-of-use assets (e) FEHEEE

The analysis of the net book value of right-of-use assets by class of
underlying asset is as follows:

EAEEENTIFE - WA EESD
FEBIT -

31 December 1 January
2019 2019
—ZE-hF —E-NF
+=A=+—H —A—H
$'000 $'000
Ix i
ownership interests in leasehold FGHEMANF+ERTF -
land and buildings held for own use, MR EBHERmEER
carried at cost in Hong Kong, HE L R EEMARE
with remaining lease term of
between 10 and 50 years 279,839 291,358
Machinery, equipment, furniture Hes - R BEREREE
and fixtures, carried LA HTEE R AN B BR
at depreciated cost 16 —
... 279855 291,358
Oownership interests in leasehold FIHAEENT+ER+F -
investment property, carried ARG AN B AR O R B & W3
at cost, with remaining lease term Fi A #E
_OfbetweeniOandsOvears . ... 121613 125497 .
401,468 416,855
[ ]
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (BRBERTIN - HIRBBHE)
11 Property, plant and equipment, investment 1 P BRREHE KREIVERA
properties and leasehold land (Continued) 1 (&)
(e) Right-of-use assets (Continued) (e) FEAREE (¥
The analysis of expense items in relation to leases recognised in profit or BEREREREREE A EE ST
loss is as follows:
2019 2018
—E-NF = )\F
$'000 $'000
Fr Tt
(Note)
(MH5E)
Depreciation charge of right-of-use LHEEEE - gD
assets by class of underlying asset: ZIEREEENES L ¢
Oownership interests in leasehold land REEEBRAZHE T
and buildings held for own use, REF 2 REREREL
carried at cost K A5 AR 12,282 14,071
Machinery, equipment, furniture g - Bl BIREE
and fixtures 1,056 —
Ownership interests in leasehold REEREME A EER
investment property, carried at cost TR ANT B 4,739 4,709
18,077 18,780
Interest on lease liabilities (note 5(a)) HEaEMNE X (3 5a) 37 —
Total minimum lease payments for ERGRTERE TR AN
leases previously classified as DIEAKEHE 2 RERERR
operating leases under HKAS 17 (MTIS c) K& 17(d))
(note 5(c) and 17(d)) — 1,964
Note:  The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 using the modified retrospective Fir . AEEPR-Z-HNE—A—BEAKE
approach and adjusted the opening balances at 1 January 2019 to recognise FTHEMEE R ERE B IGHRE LS
right-of-use assets relating to leases which were previously classified as FAREURAER —_E—NEFE—A—RA2
operating leases under HKAS 17. The depreciated carrying amount of the ER4ERS - UHER LB EE S SER
finance lease assets which were previously included in property, plant and E17EDEASLE Y ASHEBERE
equipment is also identified as a right-of-use asset. After initial recognition BE - KR AYE  BELBEZBRE
of right-of-use assets at 1 January 2019, the Group as a lessee is required HEESENEEMENDER AFERES
to recognise the depreciation of right-of-use assets, instead of the previous E-R-_E—hhFE—A—BVSHEREH
policy of recognising rental expenses incurred under operating leases HEE®% AEE (1EAEBAN) BER
on a straight-line basis over the lease term. Under this approach, the FREEERE  MIIEBLBERABELSRNZ
comparative information is not restated. See note 1(c). HRERAGEHEE TEEZHEMAX
2 SERTBUR o ELEE?XT P REFILER
ERE o RHIFE1C)
Details of total cash outflow for leases and the maturity analysis of lease sEMEey Bt emELHSaEs
liabilities are set out in notes 17(d) and 22, respectively. T2 FFIBE 2 BB RE17(d) K. 22
]
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BRABIETIN - BIRAEEEHEHE)

12

Intangible assets 12 HLRE
Club
Trademarks debentures Total
5L ST ERESE FLEC]
$'000 $'000 $'000
Tt Tt Tt
Cost: AN :
At 1 January 2018 RZZE—N\F—HA—H 39,116 4,781 43,897
Disposals A= — (10) (10)
At 31 December 2018, RZZF—N\FE+=ZA=+—H
1 January 2019 and —E-NEF-A—Ak
_.31December2019 =EOVETZASTOR eile o aml 43887
Accumulated impairment ZFHREESE !
losses:
At 1 January 2018, R=ZZ—N\FE—HA—H "
31 December 2018, - \FE+=ZA=+—H"
1 January 2019 and —E-NEF-A—AK
. 31December2019 EOVETASTOR L 116
Net book value: REFE
At 31 December 2018 and RZE—N\F+ZA=+—HEK
31 December 2019 —E—NFt+-_A=+—H — 4,771 4,771
[
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(BRABHETIN

BEEEHE)

13 Investments in subsidiaries

The following list contains the particulars of all the subsidiaries of the

company:

13 MELFES
TREFIAARNAHBARER -

Proportion of

Place of Issued share ownership
incorporation/ capital/registered interest held by Principal
Name of company operation capital Company Subsidiary activity
B3y BRITRE FrERERS
NEEHB A I B ERIE= NG| MEAR FEEK
Hongkong Brewery Hong Kong 100 100% — Dormant
Limited (“HKBL") ordinary shares
(note (i) (FF%E ()
BB 100 f&% TmEE
g ilie
San Miguel (Guangdong) Hong Kong 18,000 92.989% — Investment
Limited class “A" shares holding
EN8 (ER) BRAR BB 18,000 A% TEZR
(A) Bz
1,000 100% —
class “B” shares
1,000 Az
(B) Ax
Guangzhou San Miguel PRC Registered capital: — 70% Distribution
Brewery Company US$36,507,000 of beer
Limited (“GSMB")
(note (ii))
B A B A PR A A H FAMER iz =]
(T A 77 1) (HS3E (ii)) 36,507,000 370
San Miguel Shunde Holdings Hong Kong 200,000 92% — Investment
Limited ordinary shares holding
BB 200,000 A& WEER
TR
San Miguel (Guangdong) PRC Registered capital: — 100% Manufacture
Brewery Company Limited US$87,933,000 and sale of
("SMGB") (note (iii)) beer
£ (BR) BBEERATR A E EER FE Y 1% 34 65 IR
(M= D R 1) (R & i) 87,933,000 % 7T
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (REERTIN  IRBEHE
13 Investments in subsidiaries (Continued) 13 MMEBLFRER (&
Notes: F3E
(i) HKBL has not traded since incorporation but it established a joint venture, (i) HKBL B sEf A 2 BAZK - — B8 B#1T(E
Global Brews Hong Kong Limited, in Hong Kong on 18 March 2011. HKBL 25 BER-_T——F=A+/\BR
holds a 50% equity interest in this entity. As at the date of the approval HER L T —[E 4 A& Global Brews Hong
of these financial statements, the joint venture has not commenced Kong Limited #)& & A ] e HKBLIF B &
operations. BAES A TRE BERBMBHHREIE
28 ZEENEEEARMBEER
(i) GSMB is an equity joint venture formed between the Company’ s subsidiary, (i) BINE NS BERAR AR ZHMEA
San Miguel (Guangdong) Limited, and Guangzhou Brewery. According to the AIAE N (BR) AR 7 5 E N 8 R
joint venture agreement, GSMB has an operating period of 30 years expiring RIYZEERERR - IREAES %Tﬁ%
on 29 November 2020. HoMARIEERAE=TE  RZTZ
TEFT—AZTNBER -
(iii) SMGB is a wholly-foreign owned enterprise with an operating period of 50 (iii) h(ER) BEERATAEINEHSE

years expiring on 4 August 2042.

The following table lists out the information relating to SMGB, the only
subsidiary of the Group which has material non-controlling interests
(“NCI"). The summarised financial information presented below represents

¥ BELEPRTF RZTW_F
A B &R o

TRENNEBENBRZER  £NHERE
AEEME—FEERFEBERNMER
A o NHIREMNM B AL R E TR A R]R

the amounts before any inter-company elimination. HIHAT < 58 o
2019 2018
—E-hE —E-N\F
$'000 $'000
Tt T
NCI percentage FEERER A D 8% 8%
Current assets MEEE 84,284 62,630
Non-current assets ERBEE 33,730 32,052
Current liabilities mEaE (27,224) (19,300)
Non-current liabilities EMBAE (383,100) (385,947)
Net liabilities BESE (292,310) (310,565)
Carrying amount of NCI IR R R (B (23,385) (24,845)
Revenue WA 127,442 128,424
Profit/(loss) for the year FEREF (BE) 11,755 (1,244)
Total comprehensive income if%ﬁuﬂzﬁﬁﬁ@ ¥ 11,755 (1,244)
Profit/(loss) allocated to NCI DECEIFEREREF, (BR) 940 (100)
Cash generated from operating activities KEEF 2R MA 11,202 10,069
Cash used in investing activities KEEBZELRD (1,639) (2,575)
Cash used in financing activities RERE 2 IRE M (9) (20)

[
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(BRABIETIN - BEBEFE)

14 Inventories "
2019 2018
—E-NF ZE-NF
$'000 $'000
FT T
Products in hand and in process REEMRERSR 33,776 26,757
Materials and supplies Wt R A e 17,251 15,452
51,027 42,209
The analysis of the amount of inventories recognised as an expense is as ERBRAXZEESEATNT -
follows:
2019 2018
—E-NF —ZE-N\F
$'000 $'000
FT FT
Carrying amount of inventories sold (note 5(c)) HEFEERmEE (ME5(c) 318,340 328,601
15 Trade and other receivables W 38 5 B H i iR IR
2019 2018
—E-NF —E-N\F
$'000 $'000
T T
Trade receivables, net of loss allowance JEWE Z AR R R R 39,371 40,361
Other debtors, deposits and prepayments HiEURER « e MTE I8 12,028 10,505
51,399 50,866
The amount of the deposits and prepayments expected to be recovered AEBEFZN—FEAINESHER A D
or recognised as expenses after more than one year is $921,000 (2018: wiEE RIENFIESES 51/2921,0007T (=
$964,000). All of the other trade receivables, other debtors, deposits and T — J\4F 1 964,0007T) ° FTAEHMEKRE 5
prepayments are expected to be recovered or recognised as expenses RIE R EMEUER « ke RIEMRIBTEEHE
within one year. —F AR EIHIEREA -
The Group held collateral over trade receivables at the end of the reporting AEEEHEARERESEBEFAUTE
period with attributable values as set out below: Hm
2019 2018
—E-hF —ZET—N\F
$'000 $°'000
FT Tt
Buildings L7/ES 2,031 2,031
Cash deposits WEFK 1,691 2,476
Cash deposits disclosed above are included in the other creditors and LA LSRR TR EINAREBEAZR
accrued charges and are expected to be settled after more than one vear, —FHRINOEMEMNERERERER RN
as disclosed in note 17. BIRE17 H % -
The Group considers that the credit risk arising from the trade receivables ALER R LR T RINE Sk
is mitigated by the collateral in the amounts indicated above. The value EMEERK - HPMEEERETDER
of the buildings collateral represents the estimated market value of the ZE-NF+ZA=T—HMOME-
buildings as at 31 December 2019.
——
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (BRBERTIN - HIRBEHE)
15 Trade and other receivables (Continued) 15 BRESEAMERER (@
Ageing analysis BRI DT
The ageing of trade receivables (net of loss allowance) at the end of the FEWE ZEE (BB ELERE) NE8R 2
reporting period is as follows: BRERIAT
2019 2018
—E-AF —T—-N\F
$'000 $'000
FT Tt
Current KB EA 29,709 32,964
Less than 1 month past due BEAE DR —@EA 5,829 5,140
1to 3 months past due BEARA—Z==A 2,106 1,095
More than 3 months but less than BHABARE=MAZE
12 months past due +—{&AR 1,360 910
More than 12 months past due BEIEZR @A 367 252
39,371 40,361
According to the Group's credit policy set out in note 24(a), the general ARIRAS SR B A O o 24(a) OIS BB » —
credit period is payment by the end of the month following the month WBEERARNHEEREANEE A AKED
in which sales take place. Therefore, all the current balances above are RIS ER e Hit - LB AR EEEEH
within two months from the invoice date. EmEAR -
16 Amounts due from/(to) holding companies, 16 [k (FEf) 2EATF - BRH

fellow subsidiaries and related companies

Amounts due from/(to) holding companies, fellow subsidiaries and related
companies are unsecured, interest -free and recoverable/repayable
on demand except for the following trade-related amounts which are
repayable under normal trade terms:

BAFRMAELATRE

BT E S BURRIRE HIFRITI - FEI
(FER) EBRATR] - RRMBARKEEAR
FRIBMIER - R B RIRFH Rk E, &K

2019 2018
—E-NF —E)N\F
$'000 $'000
Ft T
Amounts due from holding companies FE Wz AR A B
and fellow subsidiaries PAEES NS S 19,152 24,067
Amounts due to holding companies JERTERR A ]
and fellow subsidiaries N [E) 21 /8 A R BRIE (406) (84)
Amounts due to related companies JE BB A E)BRIR (5,051) (3,377)

The trade-related balances were not past due as at 31 December 2019
and 2018.

Related companies included a non-controlling shareholder and companies,
the ultimate holding company of which has significant influence over the
Group.

BESHREs EFR_E—NERZE—N
FHZA=t+—RHIAKRIE -

RE N R B RRR R KRR A F

HAEBEAERTEN

A -
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(BRABHETIN

BEEEHE)

17 cash and cash equivalents and bank deposits 17 BeREERESBFEHRBITER
(@) Cash and cash equivalents and bank deposits comprise: (a) BRENZEERELERHNRBITERERE:
2019 2018
—E-hEF —ZT-N\F
$'000 $'000
I Tor
Bank deposits within three months of FREEISHEA=EARN
maturity when placed BYERTTIF 3K 34,101 13,006
Cash at banks and on hand RITHEFERE 72,631 68,085
Cash and cash equivalents in the consolidated FEES HMRH):,R%%
statement of financial position and EREREXRT
consolidated cash flow statement a’gfﬁﬁ FERIEESIER 106,732 81,091
Bank deposits with more than three months to T2 BA B AR iE = {E A
maturity when placed R)SRI TR 22,661 36,718
Cash and cash equivalents and bank deposits as at 31 December 2019 RZE—NF+-_A=+—0 BHak5EH
include $53,342,000 (2018: $47,652,000) placed with banks in Mainland ReBERROTEREBETATRBE AR
China, the remittance of which is subject to relevant rules and regulations 7753,342,0007T ( =& — J\ 4 : 47,652,000
of foreign exchange control promulgated by the PRC government. JT) » EIEZRBS R EBFEM BRI R B
SNEEFRFTE ] o
(b)  Reconciliation of profit/(loss) before taxation to cash (b) BRBIATAR (BR) REEXK R
generated from operations: SRAREHR :
2019 2018
—E—hEF — )\
Note $'000 $ 000
BaE Fr Tt
(Note)
()
Profit/(l0ss) before taxation BRERIEF] (E518) 3,310 (70,860)
Adjustments for: M THIFIEEL AR
Interest income FEUA 4 (1,577) (1,961)
Net gain on disposal HEEREE E 2 F AT
of non-current assets 4 (913) (894)
Interest expense FEXZH 5(@a) 4,340 6,040
Depreciation of property, M - MR REREITE 5()
plant and equipment 19,332 20,863
Depreciation of investment properties &% > & 5(c) 4,739 4,709
Impairment loss on non-current assets  FERBNE E 2 (A 11(d) — 80,000
Foreign exchange (gains)/losses SN i (BF) EiE (544) 458
Changes in working capital: EIEE AR #H)
(Increase)/decrease in inventories FE2z Ggm S (8,818) 5,499
(Increase)/decrease in trade and BB 5 REMEREE (3Eh) B
other receivables (547) 1,017
Decrease/(increase) in amounts e NIV BN
due from holding companies and AREIERBZRD, (&)
fellow subsidiaries 4,492 (2,110)
Decrease/(increase) in amounts due FEURRRE R TIBRIE Z A (140)
from related companies 2,169 (1,976)
Increase/(decrease) in amounts due J?E1ﬂ ENGIDME ?MT%
to holding companies 2 8gm O
and fellow subsidiaries 1,532 (646)
Increase/(decrease) in amounts FERIEARIBRIBZ
due to related companies #2n GFid) 1,595 (1,551)
Increase/(decrease) in trade and other  ERTE 5 M EERIE 2
payables #2407 CFid>) 5,786 (17,733)
Increase in retirement benefit liabilities  RIKIEF| & E 2 8 2,501 2,018
Cash generated from operations EEBIIREMA 37,397 22,873
[ ]
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(BR=BIETIN

ESk gk e i

17

(b)

Cash and cash equivalents and bank deposits
(Continued)

Reconciliation of profit/(loss) before taxation to cash
generated from operations: (Continued)

Note:

The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 using the modified retrospective
approach and adjusted the opening balances at 1 January 2019 to recognise
right-of-use assets relating to leases which were previously classified as
operating leases under HKAS 17. The depreciated carrying amount of the
finance lease assets which were previously included in property, plant and
equipment is also identified as a right-of-use asset. After initial recognition
of right-of-use assets at 1 January 2019, the Group as a lessee is required
to recognise the depreciation of right-of-use assets, instead of the previous
policy of recognising rental expenses incurred under operating leases
on a straight-line basis over the lease term. Under this approach, the
comparative information is not restated. See note 1(c).

17 BeREFRRSRARBITER

(%)

(b) BRBAIEA, (BE) EREXBH R
ERABEHR (&)

i

AEED ERRAKERTHEREERE
BUBMELRE L AR T
F-A-ARBANESRARREESS
MOERRAE  SLEELMNCRESR
BEFEE T ERBRAAKENEE - &
REEENR_T-NF—HA—B#ERE
AEBEREABAREREAEEEN
P& mAERANBENERERER
HEMNEEHEELANESSE - &
EREIET  AEIILBER - B
() °
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(BRABIETIN - BEBEFE)

17

(c)

110

Cash and cash equivalents and bank deposits

(Continued)

Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing

activities:

The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities from financing
activities, including both cash and non-cash changes. Liabilities arising
from financing activities are liabilities for which cash flows were, or

17 BeREFERRSREARBITER

(#&)

(c) HRMEITBELZEBHABE

AEBRBE RS MAELS 2 ERH

EREMFRSEY  DHIINTR- EBmEE
BEPEENER  BAZEBBENKR

future cash flows will be, classified in the Group’s consolidated cash flow HIREnR  RAEENGEEETRERD
statement as cash flows from financing activities. SHRELSMETE 2 HEN -
Loan from an Lease
holding company liabilities Total
RN ERATER HEaE FEk]
$'000 $'000 $'000
T T TIT
At 1 January 2018 R=-ZE—N\F—H—H 166,706 = 166,706
Changes from financing RERSRZEE
cash flows:
Repayment of loan from an BERTHRNEZERARZER
intermediate holding company (51,394) — (51,394)
Other borrowing costs paid HAb B MHEERA (6,040) — (6,040)
Total changes from financing BER S mEEE)
cash flows (57,434) = (57,434)
Exchange adjustments bE AR 325 = 325
other change: Hith# g
Interest expenses A BT H 6,040 — 6,040
At 31 December 2018 R=-Z—N\F+=-H=+—H 115,637 — 115,637
Impact on initial application HIRERN 2 72 — 2,039 2,039
At 1 January 2019 R=-Z—hF—HA—H 115,637 2,039 117,676
Changes from financing RERSR 2B
cash flows:
Repayment of loan from an BRTFHRNERARZERK
intermediate holding company (12,779) — (12,779)
Capital element of lease rentals paid BT EHE AELH — (1,085) (1,085)
Interest element of lease rentals paid 2~ E&F S 567 — (37) (37)
Other borrowing costs paid EAEERA (4,303) — (4,303)
Total changes from financing BERGImAEE)
cash flows (17,082) (1,122) (18,204)
Exchange adjustments ELARE (628) (22) (650)
Other change: Hiths g
Interest expenses MEZH 4,303 37 4,340
At 31 December 2019 R=ZE—h&+=A=+—H 102,230 932 103,162
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(BRABIETIN - BIRAEEEHEHE)

17

(d)

18

cash and cash equivalents and bank deposits 17 BeRSARESFEBRBITER
(Continued) (&)
Total cash outflow for leases (d) HERSHRHEHE
Amounts included in the cash flow statement for leases comprise the REEFARESRERZEEREUTE
following: 15 :
2019 2018
—E-hF —ZET-N\F
$'000 $'000
Fr Tt
(Note)
(fsE)
Within operating cash flows BEELEEEIREN 830 1,964
Within investing cash flows BEEREEEHRSR 168 —
Within financing cash flows BEEREEEIRER 1,122 —
2,120 1,964

Note:  As explained in the note to note 17(b), the adoption of HKFRS 16 introduces
a change in classification of cash flows of certain rentals paid on leases.
The comparative amounts have not been restated.

EE < BRAMIEE 170) 2 HEERTARIE - SRE B
BHEEAE T REHETALES
ReREL SRMURED - LEARAKA

B o

Trade and other payables 18 BEfESHRHEAMRE
2019 2018
—E-NF —Z-N\F
$'000 $'000
T Tt
Trade payables JERTE ZHRIE 44,245 33,427
Other creditors and accrued charges Hfth E A BRIE 39,056 44,083
83,301 77,515

The amounts of other creditors and accrued charges expected to be
settled after more than one year are $4,477,000 (2018: $8,201,000). All of
the other trade and other payables are expected to be settled within one
year.

FEAREZR—FEINNEMEMSERER
FBIREB DRI A4,477,0007T (ZZF— )\F :
8,201,0007T) ° T A EAMEN B 5 R HMER

BIEFHE—FAXAN ©
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18 Trade and other payables (Continued) 18 EFEZIREMIEER (&
The ageing of trade payables as at the end of the reporting period is as ERNESEENEER ZERTT -
follows:
2019 2018
—E-hEF —ZT-N\F
$'000 $'000
Ft F
Current and less than 1 month past due AEEANBEEAE DR —EA 39,894 32,200
1to 3 months past due BEBRA—Z=@A 3,904 984
3 to 6 months past due BEIRA=FNER 312 43
More than 6 months past due BHIE %N E A 135 200
44,245 33,427
The Group’s general payment terms are one to two months from the AEEHN—RNREFENEZAHE—F
invoice date. Therefore, the current and less than one month past due MIME A AR o Bty - Fut kB HE B ER A
balances above are mostly within two to three months from the invoice DR—EANBESRRKBOIIEEZRERSE
date. =EARA -
19 Loan from an intermediate holding company 19 HPHEELATFZIER
At 31 December 2019, the loan from an intermediate holding company ® —NWF+ZA=+—H8 F=NERR
was repayable as follows: TZE*”’ TR T HARRER -
2019 2018
—E-hE —E-)\F
$'000 $°'000
Fr TIT
Within 1yearorondemand TERBERNEREEE S1ms oo |
After 1 year but within 2 years —FREMFNA 51,115 51,394
After 2 years but within 5 years MEZREBERAFR — 12,849
51,115 64,243
102,230 115,637
Loan from an intermediate holding company is unsecured, repayable in FNERAFZERAERT IR _-F
fifteen equal instalments from September 2019 and bears interest at one \—ﬂiﬂﬂ BE5 +RIEE - AEOFE
year LIBOR plus 1.5% which ranged from 3.46% to 4.60% during the year =—F fﬁ?ﬁl%ﬁﬁﬂ%% 8001.5% - #[E
(2018: 3.55% t0 4.60%). B346% 2= 4.60%( —F— N\FNE355% %
4.60%) °
——
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20 Employee retirement benefits 20 EEREHRIEF
(@) Defined benefit retirement plan (@) EEEFEKE

The Group makes contributions to a defined benefit retirement plan
registered under the Occupational Retirement Schemes Ordnance (Chapter
426 of the Laws of the Hong Kong), which covers 11% (2018: 12%) of the
Group's employees. The plan is administered by an independent trustee,
with the assets held separately from those of the Group. The members’
benefits are determined based on the employees’ final remuneration and
length of service.

Under the scheme, a retired employee is entitled to a benefit based on
their completed years of service and salary on the date of leaving service.

Contributions to the plan are made in accordance with the
recommendations of an independent actuary who values the retirement
plan at regular intervals. The latest independent actuarial valuations of
the plans were at 31 December 2018 and were prepared by qualified staff
of Towers Watson Hong Kong Limited, who are the member of Chartered
Enterprise Risk Actuary, using the projected unit credit method. The
actuarial valuations indicate that the Group’s obligations under these
defined benefit retirement plan is 90% (2018: 83%) covered by the plan
assets held by the trustees.

The plans expose the Group to actuarial risk, such as interest rate risk,
investment risk and salary risk.

The amounts recognised in the consolidated statement of financial
position are as follows:

AEBREN%(ZF—/\F :12%) 2E8
REEBREMERAKEE - ZFHEITIA—RB
MEFRAER  WEAREEZEEDHBL
BRI o 5Bl ZHRTIIRIE —RIBUAEEE 2
FREER] - ZIFEAE B RRIRET BT
LE ;EJZE?E%UTJ%EEZ%&%@&HE%E
HEtE -

RIBEZETE - RIMEE B REERBRIRIEE
TEARHIRIEFENFHERISREN

RIRGT 8 2 R TYIRBRIB S AE E AR 2 32
RIS AR BUIREMGEIN_-F
—N\F+_A=T—HARERHN (FFE
XRBOEER) 2 FEABMIBEMR
REEEMEERETT - ERBERTAS
BIRBEZAERINENRFTEIMARTZEE
HAo0% (—ZZ—\F : 83%) RIEFTARA
ZEHBIEERE

Zat B ARBARBEER - A XK=
e RERRRFEEL

RIBHOR R ER 2 AT

2019 2018

—E-AF —E-N\F

$'000 $'000

Tt Tt

Present value of funded obligations BRI E 105,428 104,252
Fair value of plan assets HEEEZARE (94,687) (86,555)
Retirement benefit liabilities RIREFBE 10,741 17,697

A portion of the above liabilities is expected to be settled after more than
one year. However, it is not practicable to segregate this amount from the
amounts payable in the next twelve months, as the retirement benefit
payable to plan members and future contributions to plan assets will also
depend on staff revenue and future changes in actuarial assumptions. The
Group expects to pay $2,811,000 in contributions to the defined benefit
retirement plan in 2020.

A A IR BR — R R - 5
T R E RIS SHBIAK B 2 fEN 5
HEIEE Y A REIARTREBR L AR
B - Hl MR EZERERAR @
B2 BN FOEDBIRE - AEBEH -2
—FEL 42,811,000 705 [ £ HEFRIKE
2] 308 -
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20 Employee retirement benefits (Continued) 20 {EEEFREF (B
(@) Defined benefit retirement plan (Continued) (a) TEHEEBBFEKFTE ()
(ii) Plan assets consist of the following: (ii) FTEIEERIE
2019 2018
—E-NF —ET-)\F
$'000 $'000
FT Tt
Equity securities R&AE 43,556 36,007
Bonds B 44,976 47,692
Cash He 6,155 2,856
94,687 86,555

REERE SHACHETEERRFBIER
% UOMEERRREZER - REHAE
B2 —RIITEZISWREEZEFEER
55% HFHES o (ZT—/)\4F : 45% AR R E S
#0E N 55% BUFES)

An asset-liability matching study was performed by the trustees
periodically to analyse the outcome of the strategic investment policies.
The investment portfolio targets a mix of 45% in equity securities across
a range of industries and 55% in government bonds (2018: 45% in equity
securities across a range of industries and 55% in government bonds).

(iii) Movements in the present value of the defined benefit obligations: (iii) ERERANBENREZD
2019 2018
—E-NF —E—\F
$'000 $'000
T T
At 1 January m—HA—H 104,252 101,298
Remeasurements: HE
— Actuarial losses arising from — AR RBRREFHELED
changes in demographic assumptions EEEE 6 2,332
— Actuarial gains arising from — BREREDEEN
changes in financial assumptions BB R (870) (1,864)
— Actuarial (gains)/losses arising from — BB
changes in experience BEEE (255) 1,526
(1,119) 1,994
Benefits paid by the plan s a2 @ F (4,306) (5,323)
Current service cost IR AR TS A AR 4,685 4,640
Interest cost F BB A 1,916 1,643
At 31 December Rt+—A=1+—8H 105,428 104,252
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The weighted average duration of the defined benefit obligations is 5.5

years (2018: 6.0 years).

ERENABEZIMETFOFRRESF (ZF
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20 Employee retirement benefits (Continued) 20 EEERHKEREF (@
(@) Defined benefit retirement plan (Continued) (a) TEHEEFBAEAKEE (B
(iv) Movements in plan assets: (iv) FEIBEZE2H
2019 2018
—EF-NF —TN\F
$'000 $°000
T Tt
At 1 January m—HA—H 86,555 95,499
Contributions paid to the plan by the employer BEZ MG EIHER 2,762 2,900
Benefits paid by the plan FTEIZ T 2 12 A (4,306) (5,323)
Interest income FEUA 1,607 1,595
Return on plan assets, excluding interest income FrEIEE Z B3R CHeEREWA) 8,338 (7,886)
Administrative expenses paid from plan assets STEIBEZITHEX (269) (230)
At 31 December w+=-—A=+—H 94,687 86,555
(V) Amounts recognised in the consolidated statement of comprehensive (V) RiFE2EmRERERZATIOT -
income are as follows:
2019 2018
—E-hEF —ZT-N\%F
$'000 $'000
FT FIT
Current service cost I8 B AR AS A AN 4,685 4,640
Net interest on net defined benefit liability EREEMNFRE I EFE 309 48
Administrative expenses paid from plan assets FEEEZITHHX 269 230
Total amounts recognised in profit or loss RIBRTERAZ X 5,263 4,918
Actuarial (gains)/losses BE (BF) /Eia (1,119) 1,994
Return on plan assets, excluding interest income sTEIEEZ B (TEERSWA) (8,338) 7,886
Total amounts recognised in other REME2ERERERZ
comprehensive income (note 9) Bk (F5E9) (9,457) 9,880
Total defined benefit (income)/costs ERERA (W) S HEEE (4,194) 14,798
The current service cost, net interest on net defined & 2R b AR 75 5k AN 1 7E 5848 7
benefit liability and administrative expenses paid FEEZFEFEIIRN
from plan assets are recognised in the following THgalkzER R
line items in the consolidated income statement: ZIEE R
— Cost of sales — SHERNA 798 756
— Selling and distribution expenses — HE RO HEES 2,614 2,456
— Administrative expenses — TR 1,851 1,706
5,263 4,918
(vi)  Significant actuarial assumptions and a sensitivity analysis are as follows: (vi) FEMNRBERRFMEHEDTAT -
2019 2018
—ZE2-NF —ZT—)\F
Discount rate (p.a.) BRIR K (F5F) 1.80% 1.90%

Future salary increases (p.a.) ARG IERR (F5) 4.00%-4.50%

4.00%-5.00%
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20 Employee retirement benefits (Continued) 20 {EEEFREF (B

(@) Defined benefit retirement plan (Continued) (a) TEHEEBBFEKFTE ()

(Vi) (Continued) (vi) (5&)

The analysis set out below shows how the defined benefit obligation as at THD TR E EREH BRR0.25% 2 FL ¥
31 December 2019 would have increased/(decreased) as a result of a 0.25% TEENaER - E—NE+-_A=+—H
change in the significant actuarial assumptions: g, Cd) a0
2019 2018
—E-NF —ZE-N\F
Increase Decrease Increase Decrease
of 0.25% of 0.25% of 0.25% of 0.25%
#1h00.25% "2 0.25% #500.25% B 0.25%
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
¥ T Tt Ft
Discount rate AEIR = (1,407) 1,443 (1,635) 1,678
Salary increase rate ML R & 1,663 (1,629) 1,754 (1,717)
The above sensitivity analysis is based on the assumption that changes FiliBBRESTEREBFERR 2BCET
in actuarial assumptions are not correlated and therefore it does not take R - ABRELS T EBEEEBR
into account the correlations between the actuarial assumptions. RN -

(b) Defined contribution retirement plan (b) TEBEMFCERAGTE

0} Staff employed by the Group in Hong Kong who are not members of the () RIBEES CRFERAESEENGRA) - A&
above defined benefit retirement plan are required to join the Group's B 7 E B M I A0 Ll TE #R AR IR K
mandatory provident fund plan under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident EMES - AMAREEHBHEERAES
Fund Schemes Ordinance. The mandatory provident fund plan is a defined & o RBERESEE T —ERBLEE
contribution retirement plan administered by an independent corporate XAABENTEHEETRNGTE - RIZEH
trustee. Under the plan, the Group and its employees are each required to E AEEREEESS ARG EEDH#
make contributions to the plan at 5% of the employees’ relevant income, HoBEAEREEBEBABNS%  EEABE
subject to a cap of monthly relevant income of $30,000. Contributions to A B85 = 7K F 530,000 JT 5T B 7 H A9
the plan vest immediately. HENES B -

(i) Employees of the subsidiaries in the PRC are members of pension (i) FRINEAGIEEATRENEEMNTRR
schemes operated by the PRC government. The Group is required KREFTENKE - AEBAEEFIBRKRESH
to contribute, based on a certain percentage of the employees' EIHRIERBEBRENRREES  HBHUES
remuneration, to these pension schemes to fund the benefits. The only MEeRANMLETE - AEEEBEFPRRAKE
obligation for the Group with respect to these pension schemes is the TRl M — R ARER IR IREEEIZBE
required contribution under the central pension scheme. Contributions to A A B - HETBIELMRKEGEHES -
these schemes vest immediately.

= = 3| =]

21 Income tax in the consolidated statement of 21 HMBRRRMAIZABRE

financial position
- - - PN N S -

(@) Current taxation in the consolidated statement of (@ HFEMBRRETEAPRES
financial position represents:

2019 2018
=A% =T \F
$'000 $'000
T T
Provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax for the year NG F BB NS B 601 918
Provisional Profits Tax paid B FAER — (605)
601 313

Balance of Profits Tax provision BEREFENFISTEE
relating to prior years 293 —
894 S

[
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21

(b)

(c)

Income tax in the consolidated statement of
financial position(Continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised:(Continued)

The components of deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position and the movements during
the year are as follows:

21 MBRARMAINZMASREA (&)

(b) CRIZELEHBEEREE: (B

REERBBHRRRE R ZELERIAEER
BEZARE D MERZZEBIAT

Depreciation  Impairment
allowances losses for
inexcess of  receivables  Retirement
the related and benefit
depreciation  inventories liabilities Tax losses Total
nERBE EWERE
BRAEENE kFE BAEF
ZEH ZREEE 28fE BEBSE “e
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
T T T T Tt
Deferred tax arising from: RERERY :
At 1 January 2018 R=ZF—-\F—F—H 53,500 (63) (961) (48,424) 4,052
(Credited)/charged to profit or ity
loss (note 6(a)) (tA) /08 (KizE6(a) (11,993) (24) 32 14,295 2,310
Charged to equity (note 9) PERPEA (F5E9) = = (1,996) = (1,996)
At 31 December 2018 and RZZ-\F+=ZRA=1+—H
1 January 2019 k=Z-NF—Hf—H 41,507 (87) (2,925) (34,129) 4,366
(Credited)/charged to profit or i bt
loss (note 6(a)) (GtA) /#08: (KizEe(@)) (625) 42 (57) (4,931) (5,571)
Charged to equity (note 9) PERFEA (FEE9) — - 1,205 - 1,205
At 31 December 2019 R=F-NF+=-A=1+—A 40,882 (45) (1,777) (39,060) —

Deferred tax assets not recognised:

Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of the following
items, which pertain to the subsidiaries in the PRC and the Company:

() AREIZELEHREEE :

AEER T EAKE AR RARBL AT
SIEIRE TSI BUZ R IR B A R FERR

2019 2018

—E-hF —E-)N\F

$'000 $'000

F T Tt

Tax losses TIBEE 290,257 347,551
Deductible temporary differences AR TR ER 132,373 155,229
422,630 502,780

In accordance with the accounting policy set out in note 1(p), deferred
tax assets have not been recognised in respect of the above items as it is
not probable that the relevant entities will generate future taxable profits
against which the above items can be utilised.

RIRFIRIA M 5 1(0) 2 51 BIUR - HROREE
FEAERAM B A BIR KA RS R AR &
MR E M &S - AN B RIER L5118
BATSI B B IAEE ©
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21 Income tax in the consolidated statement of 21 HMERRRFRINZHRBRIE (&)
financial position (Continued)

(c) Deferred tax assets not recognised: (Continued) () XRBRZELZEHEEZE:@ (&)
The unrecognised tax losses relating to the PRC subsidiaries can be BERETBENBARIRAEZNBHEEIEREL
carried forward up to five years from the year in which the loss originated HEETEER - BEIEEMHIT -
and will expire in the following years:
2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-N\F
$'000 $'000
Tt TT
2019 —E—hF —_ 41,590
2020 —EFF 50,205 51,307
2021 —ET-—4F 37,850 38,681
2022 —E——F 2,761 2,822
2023 —E-=f 24,575 25,115
2024 —T e 16,715 —
132,106 159,515
The unrecognised tax losses relating to the Company were $158,151,000 A B AR HERR ) B I8 5 18 /5 158,151,000 7T
(2018: $188,036,000) and do not expire under current tax legislation. —Z— \4F : 188,036,0007T) * WHIRITHE
BROITTG2E -
22 Lease liabilities 22 MHEARE
The following table shows the remaining contractual maturities of the TRINTAREBERNARE BRSBTS
Group's lease liabilities at the end of the current and previous reporting FRARRBEZEBHEREERE X
periods and at the date of transition to HKFRS 16: REACHEBBEZFGBENRAA -
31 December 2019 1 January 2019 (Note)
RZB-AE+=ZA=+—-H0 RZ=ZBE-HhE—HF—A8 (3
Present Present
value of the Total value of the Total
minimum minimum minimum minimum
lease lease lease lease

payments payments payments payments
BIEHEE BRIEHAE BEHEE BIEEE
RREZRE AREE AREZRE IRE/€EC

$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
T T Tt Tt
Within 1 year —FNR 932 945 1,072 1,104
After 1 year but within 2 years ~ — /& {BRE X — — 967 977
- . 932 . %67 .97
932 945 2,039 2,081
Less: total future interest MR AR AT B X H
expenses (13) (42)
Present value of lease liabilities fME&EHE 932 2,039
Note:  The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 using the modified retrospective s AEECFEALBITBMEEREREE
approach and adjusted the opening balances at 1 January 2019 to MBHREENESREAER=_F—N
recognise lease liabilities relating to leases which were previously classified F-A—BZEER - AR RIRERE
as operating leases under HKAS 17. Comparative information as at 31 BEENET RO B ALEHREZA
December 2018 has not been restated. Further details on the impact of the ERRHEEGE - RZTE—-N\F+A
transition to HKFRS 16 are set out in note 1(c). =T RAZERERREEY - BEBE

EREBUBREERNE R 2B E
—HRFIER IR MR 1(C) °
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23 Capital and reserves 23 KEFREHRH
(@) Movements in components of equity (@) HERIsBH

The reconciliation between the opening and closing balances of
each component of the Group’s consolidated equity is set out in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity. Details of the changes in the

AEE 2z 7B P % A0 B F 4 K & R
HR A EREHRATE - ARFZEE
BmEl D O FNRFREBHBRATI

Company'’s individual components of equity between the beginning and & -
the end of the year are set out below:
Share Retained
capital profits Total
[N W e HaEm
Note $'000 $'000 $'000
Bt Tt Tt Tt
Balance at 1 January 2018 R-ZE—N\F—F—HB#8k 28 252,524 200,343 452,867
Changes in equity for 2018: “E-N\FREREE:
Actuarial gains and losses of TE R AR ARG S
defined benefit retirement plan,  Z&E &M & E1E
net of tax k) = (7,884) (7,884)
Profit for the year FEATF = 1,055 1,055
Balance at 31 December 2018 R=Z—N\E+=-A=+—H
e 28 252,524 193,514 446,038
Impact on initial application of FRNE BB R S 2RI E 4755k
HKFRS 16 V8 (feEst) — (9) (9)
Adjusted balance at RZZE—NF—H—H
1 January 2019 EEESE o 252,524 193,505 446,029
Changes in equity for 2019: —E-NEREREE
Adjustment due to amalgamation — ERFFE A 1A GFA TR 27 — (9,056) (9,056)
Actuarial gains and losses of TR a AR ARG S
defined benefit retirement plan,  Z 5E &F| M EE
net of tax (BRFi18) — 8,252 8,252
Loss for the year FEBE — (3,741) (3,741)
Balance at 31 December 2019 R=-Z—h&E+=-A=+—H
e 28 252,524 188,960 441,484
I
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23 cCapital and reserves (Continued) 23 BERfHW (@
(b) Share capital (b) B
2019 2018
—E-hEF ZE-N\F
No. of No. of
shares shares
RGEE f&n 8B
‘000 $'000 ‘000 $'000
T Tt
Ordinary shares, issued LB BETT
and fully paid: RS R
At 1 January and R—A—H
31 December E+=—A=+—H 373,570 252,524 373,570 252,524
In accordance with section 135 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, RIBES CARNED % 1351& » RFIRMD T
the ordinary shares of the Company do not have a par value. BEEmEE -
The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive dividends as LTimRFAEABRRKRARERARE - I
declared from time to time and are entitled to one vote per share at AEARNTARE LGRHE—RERHIE—F -
meetings of the Company. All ordinary shares rank equally with regard to HRARTWFGREE  FIEE@BREIZE
the Company’s residual assets. REE5HE= o
(¢) Nature and purpose of reserves (c) HmHERARE
(i) Capital reserve (i) EXfF#E
The capital reserve represents the reserve arising from the capitalisation BARGREE—HPREWBE AT ZREETF
of retained profits of PRC subsidiaries. B MEEZ 7 -
(i)  Exchange fluctuation reserve (i) EXREREE
The exchange fluctuation reserve comprises all foreign exchange P R B R ERERRERB UM B R
differences arising from the translation of the financial statements of A BHRREE MEELZERARES
subsidiaries outside Hong Kong and the foreign exchange differences IR E (B REM D BN B A8 2 &
arising from translation of monetary items that in substance form part of &) ZEHFZERE - EEREBHE 1) FrEl 2
the net investment in subsidiaries outside Hong Kong. The reserve is dealt B MR o
with in accordance with the accounting policy set out in note 1(s).
(d) Distributability of reserves (d) DikfEE
At 31 December 2019, the aggregate amount of reserves available for RZE—NF+ZA=+—8" &EF5E
distribution to equity shareholders of the Company, as calculated under BCREHED) F6H 2 IGXEFTE - AJH S
the provision of Part 6 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, was MEETARRERIEBAZEELER
$188,960,000 (2018: $193,514,000). 188,960,0007T ( — & — J\4F : 193,514,000
TT) ©
——
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23 capital and reserves (Continued) 23 BERGHW (@

(e) capital management (e) EXEH
The Group’s primary objectives when managing capital are to safeguard REEEBEEANTEBEZERBREEEE
the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, so that it can continue IS ELE - MmEBEE AR RIERERE A
to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders, HA3F M E SRR - ARERKEEREA
by pricing products commensurately with the level of risk and by securing EmEE  URBERESSENRBEMRA -
access to finance at a reasonable cost.
As 31 December 2019, the Group has total borrowings amounting to R-E—NF+-A=+—H AEEHE
$102,230,000 (2018: $115,637,000). The gearing ratio, representing the B #8%E /5 102,230,000 7T (2018 : 115,637,000
ratio of total borrowings to the share capital and reserves of the Group TT) c BEBGBHER (AMEEREEEREER
was 19.8% (2018: 23.1%). The Group had bank deposits and cash and cash ARFEERILLE) /719.8% (2018 : 23.1%) °
equivalents as at 31 December 2019 amounting to $129,393,000 (2018: HE-_Z—NF+-_A=1+—8 x&£H
$117,809,000). WIRITERNRE RERRSEE KE

129,393,000 7T (2018 : 117,809,000 7€) °

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its capital structure AEBEBRETHHEARBEEARTAE
to maintain a balance between the higher shareholder returns that might B UEESREEBI RGN T a] fetEpE 2 8
be possible with higher levels of borrowings and the advantages and SEBKTERIFNE AR R ERAOES N
security afforded by a sound capital position, and makes adjustments to {RIE 2 BEVES & - WHEELBEIRERE (L
the capital structure in light of changes in economic conditions. HERREEL AR -
Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries are subject to externally RAT REME QR TZINLHEINE) E AR
imposed capital requirements. PR&|Esk o

24 Financial risk management and fair values 24 SHERBEEERERAAMEE
Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate and currency risks arises in the AREBE—REFZBEPEERLEE  REBE
normal course of the Group's business. The Group’s exposure to these & MERRRINERR - AEEBEHZE
risks and the financial risk management policies and practices used by the REBREERANEEMEAEEZERR 2B
Group to manage these risks are described below. HERBR KIS - ST o

(@  Credit risk (@ FERE

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will default on its
contractual obligations resulting in a financial loss to the Group. The
Group's credit risk is primarily attributable to trade receivables. The
Group’s exposure to credit risk arising from cash and cash equivalents and
bank deposits is limited because the counterparties are banks for which
the Group considers to have low credit risk.

The Group do not provide guarantees which would expose the Group to
credit risk.

Trade receivables

The Group's exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the individual
characteristics of each customer rather than the industry or country in
which the customers operate and therefore significant concentrations
of credit risk primarily arise when the Group has significant exposure to
individual customers. At the end of the reporting period, 14% (2018: 25%)
and 39% (2018: 57%) of the total trade and other receivables was due from
the Group's largest customer and the five largest customers respectively.

The Group measures loss allowances for trade receivables at an amount
equal to lifetime ECLs, which is calculated using a provision matrix. As the
Group's historical credit loss experience does not indicate significantly
different loss patterns for different customer segments, the loss allowance
based on past due status is not further distinguished between the Group’s
different customer bases.

EERAREZXSEFROEANETEHAN
SEPHEENER - ARENEERRE
EREERESER - AEBERE REF
ReBEBARBROTERMELENEERRE
R AAXZHTFAAEER/EERRK
REVERTT o

AL E W EAEHEMERMELEERLR o

FEW E 2 &

REBOEERREEZERRELMERE
BEE NI BPHEEMERITER
FE A BEAEERAEENERFEE
AEBE Be<EERBREAEY - R
WEHR - BRE S R EMBRBEATEN 14%
(2018 : 25%) K:39% (2018 : 57%) » Rl A
REBSGRKEERLAKRES °

AEBNKEBHEREBRNS R ERK
BHRNEBEREE  ZBGBNREEIG
8o R AEENBENEEBBRERIL K

A ERBRRENERBETISE—FR
DAKENTREFE
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24 Financial risk management and fair values 24 SREREERLAKRE R
(Continued)

(@) cCredit risk (Continued) (a) fE=ER (&)
Trade receivables (Continued) EWESER (&)

The following table provides information about the Group’s exposure to TREHEEBEAEBAR_Z—NF+_A

credit risk and ECLs for trade receivables as at 31 December 2019: —t—HNEERBRMEKE ZFREENE
B
2019
—E-NF
Expected Gross carrying Loss
loss rate amount allowance
FEHBRER HEE EiERE
% $'000 $'000
% T T
Current (not past due) AH (REIER) 0.0% 29,715 (6)
Less than 1 month past due WEAR DR —1E A 0.0% 5,829 —
1to 3 months past due BHAR—E==EH 0.9% 2,125 (19)
More than 3 months but less than  BHIR &A=& A
12 months past due E=2+={@A 4.5% 1,422 (64)
More than 12 months past due BEEEZR+=EA 33.1% 551 (182)
39,642 (271)
2018
—ZT—)N\F
Expected Gross carrying Loss
loss rate amount allowance
TEHAEE X FEE ErigsE
% $'000 $'000
% FIT T
Current (not past due) ZNE] (REIED) 0.1% 32,975 1)
Less than 1 month past due BEIR AR —EA 0.0% 5,140 —
1to 3 months past due BHAR—E==EH 3.1% 1,130 (35)
More than 3 months but less than ~ BHIR &A=& A
12 months past due E=2+={@A 24.4% 1,204 (294)
More than 12 months past due BEHEZR+=EA 43.1% 443 (191)
40,892 (531)

EHEBEXDENBERFNERBLRE
B8 o B L L R AT IA R BRI SR S 2R

Expected loss rates are based on actual loss experience over the past
years. These rates are adjusted to reflect differences between economic
conditions during the period over which the historic data has been AR AR, - & ATAS B AR SR 7R £2 [
collected, current conditions and the Group’s view of economic conditions FEW R R IBHAF R A BN E L 2 8
over the expected lives of the receivables. EZRo
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24

(a)

(b)

Financial risk management and fair values 24 SHEREERERAAMEE ®
(Continued)
Credit risk (Continued) (@ FEEREE
Movement in the loss allowance account in respect of trade receivables FREWE ZRNEBBREEEIINT -
during the year is as follows:
2019 2018
—E-hF —E-N\F
$'000 $'000
T Tt
Balance 1 January KR—H—H 531 387
Exchange adjustments bE H (1) )
Uncollectible amounts written during the year F R RE AU B 5 K8 (255) (253)
Impairment losses recognised during the year FAREEERER 1 399
Impairment losses written back during the year FRREEERE (5) —
Balance at 31 December Rt+=—A=+—8 271 531
Liquidity risk (b) REBELRMR

Individual operating entities within the Group are responsible for their own
cash management. The Group regularly monitors its liquidity requirements
to ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves of cash and adequate
committed lines of funding from major financial institutions and related
parties to meet its liquidity requirements in the short and longer term.

The following table shows the remaining contractual maturities at the end
of the reporting period of the Group’s financial liabilities, which are based
on contractual undiscounted cash flows (including interest payments
computed using contractual rates or, if floating, based on rates current at
the end of the reporting period) and the earliest date the Group can be

required to pay:

EREEEBBAREAGNRSEERIZ
RAKERRETHEEERBESHE - U
EREASTM RSB B2YEHE
B EMESEE  WhREERRE
HZRBESFR

TERAEENGEEAVBEBEZHAELH
HIREFH AT - WAFTRRBERASIRE
(ANBIRRT B R EH 2 MBS - S
ERER MEERERZBERAE TR
X)) RASBEAHER & FER B HE
HDITEAE -
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24

(b)

124

Financial risk management and fair values

(Continued)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

24

(b)

ERERERERARKRE 5

REBESRER (&)
2019
—E-hf

Contractual undiscounted cash outflow
BRNLEREBRNESRE

More than More than
Within 1yearbut 2 years but
1 year or less than less than Carrying
on demand 2 years 5 years Total amount
—ER5
RERE 5% ME#
E3): ERER BRER ot REH
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
T T T T Fr
Tradle and other payables ENE S REMERE 83,301 - — 83,301 83,301
Loan from an intermediate RNMER DR ZER
holding company 53,884 52,235 — 106,119 102,230
Amounts due to holding companies ERERARIREZ
and fellow subsidiaries B ARERE 9,410 - — 9,410 9,410
Amounts due to related companies RN RIRRE 8,632 - — 8,632 8,632
155,227 52,235 — 207,462 203,573
2018
—E)N\F
Contractual undiscounted cash outflow
AN ERERNARNE
More than More than
Within 1year but 2 years but
1 year or less than less than Carrying
on demand 2 years 5 years Total amount
—FRH
RERE —¥& Gkt
g ERER BRER B R
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
T T T T T
Trade and other payables ENE S REMERE 77,515 = = 77,515 77,515
Loan from an intermediate RN ERARZER
holding company 55,663 53,496 12,996 122,155 115,637
Amounts due to holding companies EHER AR RFZ
and fellow subsidiaries B AIERIE 7,878 — — 7,878 7,878
Amounts due to related companies FERTRBE N RIARIA 7,037 — — 7,037 7,037
148,093 53,496 12,996 214,585 208,067
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24 Financial risk management and fair values 24 SHEREERERAAMEE ®
(Continued)
(c) Interest rate risk (c) F=EmPE
The Group’s interest rate risk arises primarily from interest-bearing REBZHEZRBEIERTEERESLE - K
borrowings. Borrowings issued at variable rates expose the Group to cash EESEIYENERNEFTKE - KEEMR
flow interest rate risk. The Group monitors the level of its variable rate T B B A T RAE R E L T (i)
borrowings. The Group's interest rate profile as monitored by management
is set out in (i) below.
(i) Interest rate profile (i) FlRaEE
The following table details the interest rate profile of the Group’s loan from TRARESEREEAZFNERARZE
an intermediate holding company at the end of the reporting period: S PR
2019 2018
—E-NF —E—\F
Effective Effective
interest interest
rate Amount rate Amount
SRS *8 HEH = ]
% $'000 % $'000
% T % Tt
Variable rate borrowings: FENFIERER
— Loan from an intermediate — B ERAR]
holding company ZEXR 3.34 102,230 4.46 115,637
(i)  Sensitivity analysis (i) SEMED
At 31 December 2019, it is estimated that a general increase/decrease of RZE-AF+-—A=+—H "  EstHFEL
100 basis points in interest rates, with all other variables held constant, Tt/ TR — BT - EEMAIEEEXRES
would have decreased/increased the Group's profit after taxation and the TEHBERAT ARERFERBERT KR
Group's retained profits by approximately $1,022,000 (2018: $1,156,000). S2EFAFER L% 1,022,0007T (ZF
The tax effect was assumed to be nil as the entity which has drawn down — J\£F 1,156,000 7C) ° A K B8 1 7E R 2R
the loan had unrecognised tax losses for deferred tax purposes and it is BESIELS RSB SR T A A A IR FS 48
not probable that it will generate future taxable profits against which the BEQAWAERBRIBE BB IRTER
tax losses can be utilised. 18 - A RETERETE -
The sensitivity analysis above indicates the instantaneous change in the A EGRRME D MRS B REERT &
Group's profit after taxation and retained profits in respect of the exposure BE AN RS - DHRASERER
to cash flow interest rate risk arising from floating rate instruments held HATREMZERETA - 5| BASEmER
by the Group at the end of the reporting period. The impact on the Group's WERFNERBETEL - AEEKRTE BT
profit after taxation and retained profits is estimated as an annualised RRFTRBNOZEEUZENEELETNE
impact on interest expense of such a change in interest rates. BANFEFEEMGT -
(d) Currency risk (d) SMERBS

The Group is exposed to currency risk primarily through sales, purchases,
borrowings, expenses and recharges amongst group entities which
give rise to receivables, payables, loans and cash balances that are
denominated in a foreign currency, i.e. a currency other than the functional
currency of the operations to which the transactions relate. The currencies
giving rise to this risk are primarily United States dollars and Euros.

AEETEREERS AR KEZH
MERRENELEAING (AR ZME
YIRS 2 E™) BB 2 BIKER
Ao EBNERR - ERNReET By
SMNERR o SIESNERIR 2 BT BRIEE
TTR R o
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24 Financial risk management and fair values 24 SHEREERERAAMEE
(Continued)
(d) Currency risk (Continued) (d) SPERBS (48)
For group entities whose functional currency is Hong Kong dollars, all sales HREEAUBTIEREENSEERE -
and purchases are denominated in either Hong Kong dollars or United e S R BN sk B ARSI TEREE SN - BT A
States dollars, except for certain purchases from Europe or Japan. Given HERBEYUBTHETERSER - A
that Hong Kong dollar is pegged to the United States dollar, management RETEETHE - MAEEBHET, 8
do not expect that there will be any significant currency risk associated TEXRTS G AEEE - 2RUBZENHE T
with such United States dollar denominated transactions. For transactions FHEZR S BREERYEHmYMER
denominated in Euros, management monitor the level of exposure closely KFE - WHERE RSB REUE I - IRAIA
and take actions such as an earlier settlement considering movements in R o
the exchange rate.
For group entities whose functional currency is Renminbi, except for HREBRNAAREENEEENSEE
certain transactions amongst group entities that are denominated in either B BRTHSEEAZZIZUETTHETIES
Hong Kong dollars or United States dollars, most of other transactions are i R GRAAREIESN - FRAKE
denominated in Renminbi. For those transactions amongst group entities AUAETTIBTTIEEUNR S ERERAE
denominated in United States dollars or Hong Kong dollars, management RSHEBIAEL  EEEHEBIMNERRT
consider the transaction amounts are not significant and the exposure to Ko
currency risk is low.
The Group's exposure to currency risk and its policies for managing such AEEAZIINERBMNEEERKRE-ZT
risk were unchanged from 2018. —N\FEHF o
(i) Exposure to currency risk (i) AZ 2 HNERK
The following tables detail the Group's significant exposure at the end of TRAANEELEZ B W IEAEBEE R
the reporting period to currency risk arising from recognised assets or EEHENDEREES B E#ES 2N
liabilities denominated in a currency other than the functional currency of fEREMBIELFADTT - TRTIBESEENRN
the entity to which they relate. For presentation purposes, the amounts of B A RERER GZIERER A4
the exposure are shown in Hong Kong dollars, translated using the spot BCEHT B A R RFIRE RN —58)) MELE
rates at the year end date. Differences resulting from the translation of the WER - TROSBHIREER ZEXY
financial statements of subsidiaries outside Hong Kong into the Group’s W AEBIEZR S Y F o AEH B AN
presentation currency and the exposure arising from the borrowings BRARIZHBRRARNEENZSEEM
from group entities that in substance form part of the net investment in EENERTTEIEEA -
subsidiaries are excluded.
Exposure to foreign currencies
(expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
SRR (REBTFE)
2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-N\F
United United
States States
dollars Euros dollars Euros
EP BmE ETT 7
$'000 $'000 $'000 $°000
T T T T Tt
Trade and other receivables FEWE F KR EMBRIE — 481 — 17
Cash and cash equivalents HekERBELEE 14,646 281 18,676 8
Trade and other payables B 5 R H A BRIE — (1,000) — (755)
Amounts due to holding FERZER AR R
companiesand fellow [F] Z T8 A R AR IE
subsidiaries (8,268) — (7,339) —
Net exposure B AR R ER 6,378 (238) 11,337 (730)
[ ]
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24 Financial risk management and fair values 24 SHEREERERAAMEE ®
(Continued)

(d) Currency risk (Continued) (d) SPERBS ()

(i)  Sensitivity analysis (i) BB

The following table indicates the instantaneous change in the Group's
profit after taxation and retained profits that would have arisen if foreign
exchange rates to which the group entities had significant exposure at the
end of the reporting period had changed at that date, assuming all other
risk variables remained constant. In this respect, it is assumed that the
pegged rate between the Hong Kong dollar and the United States dollar
would be materially unaffected by any changes in movement in value
of the United States dollar against other currencies. Also, the tax effect
was assumed to be nil for the entities which had unrecognised tax losses
for deferred tax purposes since it is not probable that they will generate
future taxable profits against which tax losses could be utilised.

TRERAEENEEHRES KRR 2N
BEXNE BESHUAREE 2 BRBIERT R
RBNARTZE  ERKREMEBRER

N e BT S - EMFAETRETZHEDN
BBREXAH X TLEME, 2(EE
SRR - WA - mROREEHETE RS
S RAERT AT AMENREEIE - Big
BARERREE BB ZRLERE - FR
RUWBEHRISHE

2019 2018
—E-NEF —T-N\&E

Increase/ Increase/

(decrease) (decrease)
in foreign (Decrease)/ Decrease/ in foreign (Decrease)/  Decrease/
exchange increase in (increase) exchange increasein  (increase)
rates loss after retained in rates loss after  retained in
taxation profits taxation profits
HMEER KRBEER RBIER  IMNEEX RBEEE  ZIHET
tH GRS md S GRS m
(T &) #n (12:4n) (T~ g6 o (35)
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
T T T T
United States dollars EVin 10% (638) (638) 10% (1,134) (1,134)
(10)% 638 638 (10% 1,134 1,134
Euros R 78 10% (24) (24) 10% (73) (73)
(10)% 24 (10% 73 73

Results of the analysis as presented in the above table represent an
aggregation of the instantaneous effects on each of the Group entities’
profit or loss measured in the respective functional currencies, translated
into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rate ruling at the end of the
reporting period for presentation purposes.

The sensitivity analysis assumes that the change in foreign exchange rates
had been applied to re-measure those financial instruments held by the
Group which expose the Group to foreign currency risk at the end of the
reporting period, including inter-company payables and receivables within
the Group which are denominated in a currency other than the functional
currency of the lender or the borrower. The analysis excludes differences
that would result from the translation of the financial statements of
subsidiaries outside Hong Kong into the Group’s presentation currency
and the borrowings from group entities that in substance form part of the
net investment in subsidiaries. The analysis has been performed on the
same basis as for 2018.

ERAZINZAMEREAEE S EEEIA
ERIEEBHE (REMEN  BIREH
BZEERRBDET) 2 NFEERR A

AN [ BL 488
SPRE -

BURMNITEBRINEEXZ BB AR E
et EAREMFA LR AE REASER
FRoMERR 2 R T A - B RSB R IE
B HETT 2N BB F BRI S B
FRIE - WEBRREEEHEET —FE&A
BEMEXAEEEBNEIENE o DT
BEBEBAINGB AR 2P BRRBENX
AEBZ 2 EMMEE 2 ER - ZBENT
RE— T\ FiREZ EEET
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24 Financial risk management and fair values 24 SHEREERERAAMEE
(Continued)
(e) Fair value (e) ~AREE
Except for the loan from an intermediate holding company (note 19), BEERE AT RIRMB AR MEEE AR HIE
other non-trade balances with holding companies, fellow subsidiaries E 5 RIBHERDREER LR S BRERkIk
and related companies are unsecured, interest-free and recoverable/ Bl sER - PMIERABER (M&E19)
repayment on demand. Given these terms, it is not meaningful to disclose KRN o SERZE G WEEAAEZER
their fair values. TR
All other significant financial assets and liabilities are carried at amounts FEEMEREREERBENEEER
not materially different from their fair values as at 31 December 2019 and HEER-_Z-NAFRZZT-NF+ZA
2018. ET—BEAAEBETREERESR -
()  Offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities ) =sHEERTHEEEE
Provision for discounts, rebates and promotional incentives are either W BEREEEETIE—Re:t AER
included in trade and other payables or offset against trade receivables B REMIEIE - BAEEAHES EERS|IE
when the Group has a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised HERRTE VIR FREELER <
amounts and intends to settle on a net basis. HEIE S RIBA R G B KR R A E K
8 ©
The Group holds cash deposits as collateral over certain trade receivables, AREFERBER SRS EAETEKE ZEE
which are included in trade payables and not offset against trade ZHEWE  RERSHAENESERS
receivables as the Group does not have a legally enforceable right to set TWiEEWSE FEBEEMAKE  REALRE
off the recognised amounts. B e Rt S O RS S -
The following tables set out the carrying amounts of recognised financial TEHYZ L EZHRS ZERREMTE
instruments that are subject to the above arrangements. ZBREE -
2019
“Z-hE
Related
Gross amounts Related amounts
of recognised financial  Net amounts not offset in
financial instruments presented  the statement
instruments in offset in the in the of financial
the statement  statementof  statementof position — cash
of financial financial financial collateral
position position position received Net amount
REBERAR REBERRAR REBRRRRE
ERASHIA EEEELR REERRR HERE2TE -
ki IHZEE ZFE  WERSERR BE
Note $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
i3 i i i i i
Financial assets SREE
Trade and other receivables MBS R AR 15
—Trade receivables - RWEZHEE 63,697 (24,326) 39,371 (1,691) 37,680
— Financial assets not in the scope - SRAETERE
of offsetting disclosures paiit LilEl 12,028 - 12,028 - 12,028
Financial liabilities SRER
Trade and other payables ERESREMEE 18
—Trade payables - EfE5%E 68,571 (24,326) 44,245 - 44,245
— Financial liabilties not in the - SRABAEES
scope of offsetting disclosures JHEHE 39,951 - 39,951 (1,691) 38,260
[
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24 Financial risk management and fair values 24 SHEREERERAAMEE ®
(Continued)
()  Offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities ) <sREERSREGEESE B
(Continued)
2018
“Z-N\F
Related
Gross amounts Related amounts
of recognised financial Net amounts not offset in
financial nstruments presented the statement
instruments in offset inthe inthe of financial
the statement statement of statementof  position — cash
of financial financial financial collateral
position position position received Net amount
rEBRRE  RUBKAR RUBRAESE
DERSBIA  HERESR  RUBRAR BRAEEE-
pkx TA248% JFE WIHRLEAR FE
Note $'000 $000 $'000 $000 $'000
i ao I T R T
Financial assets SREE
Trade and other receivables ERE S REMERE 15
— Tradle recelvales - EWESEE 64,304 (23943) 40,361 (2476) 37,885
— Financial assets not in the scope - SRAETERE
of offsetting cisclosures L BEEE 10,505 - 10,505 - 10,505
Financial liabilities tREE
Trade and other payables ENESREMEE 18
— Trade payables - EREZHE 57310 (23,943) 33427 - 33427
— Financial liabilities not in the - RBETERE
scope of offsetting disclostres REEE 44,088 - 44,088 (2476) 01,612
The gross amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities and their ERABEEEARMBIRAEZS 252 S5t
net amounts as presented in the statement of financial position that are BERGBEEI S UERRBHRRE
disclosed in the above tables are measured in the statement of financial P EF R IR SR AR o
position at amortised cost.
The amounts in the above tables that are offset in the statement of ERMYIERE SRR EZFIEE 2 S5
financial position are measured on the same basis. FEREESER -
25 Commitments 25 ik
(@) capital commitments outstanding at 31 December @ R=-EB-—HIF+=ZA=+—HB  RE
2019 not provided for in the financial statements were HMBERERPBEZRTEREKEFE
as follows: WmE
2019 2018
—E-AF —E-N\F
$'000 $'000
F T
Contracted for &4 3,428 9,064
Authorised but not contracted for BEHRLEERETL 7,250 4,168
10,678 13,232
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25 Commitments (Continued) 25 &g &

(b) At 31 December 2018, the total future minimum lease (b)) RHR=-BE—NE+=-B=+—1 ' R
payments under non-cancellable operating leases were THHELEHEMEN 2 ARKE
payable as follows: HEREDT -

2018
—E-N\F
$°000
Fr
Land and buildings T REE
Within 1 year —&FR 1,343
After 1 year but within 5 years —FREAFA 1,104
2,447
The Group is the lessee in respect of a number of properties held under AEEAE THRBEANBRBEE A ERE
leases which were previously classified as operating leases under TERA B ACERECHERAZMEY
HKAS 17. The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 using the modified AN o REEDFERALIETENETRE
retrospective approach. Under this approach, the Group adjusted the REBVBREERNE 9 BIBL A
opening balances at 1 January 2019 to recognise lease liabilities relating % AEBEEABRR-ZE-NF—-—A—AZ
to these leases (see note 1(c)). From 1 January 2019 onwards, future lease By URZRSHERREEERE (R
payments are recognised as lease liabilities in the statement of financial MizE10) c BEZZT—NF—A—HE KK
position in accordance with the policies set out in note 1(g), and the TERFIZM Q) PTE 2 S ETECR R B 1%
details regarding the Group's future lease payments are disclosed in note MAERAERRBEEERE  BEAEEARK
22. HEMNRZ BRI 2255 -

26 Material related party transactions 26 EXREALTES
In addition to the transactions and balances disclosed elsewhere in these MRAMBEBRESERE 2R G REHRIN - K
financial statements, the Group entered into the following material related SEEFIVATERBEEALRS ¢
party transactions:

(@) Transactions with group companies (@ HKEAXTEBERS

Due from/(to)
Amounts balances at year end
x| Bl (1) FEERE
2019 2018 2019 2018
“E-1F —EN\F “E-nE —TN\F
Note $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
53 Tr T Tr T
Purchases from A 0)
— intermediate holding companies — BN ERAR 1,950 2,031 (116) (84)
— fellow subsidiaries — ARRBAR 2,764 2,935 (289) —
— related companies — ERA 27,783 26,782 (5,051) (3,377)
Sales to £ 0)
— an intermediate holding company — PNERAR 210,664 205,656 19,082 24,067
— fellow subsidiaries — AZRRBAR 97 98 70 —
Royalty payments to SNEMERR (i
— intermediate holding companies — RNMERAR 1,041 166 (14) (11)
— arelated company — BERH 1,823 1,903 (3,581) (3,660)
Interest expense payable to FEZH
— an intermediate holding company — RNER AR (iii 4,303 6,040 (295) (459)
Advertising and promotion subsidy Wb R AR (v)
from an intermediate holding ELERTBEE
company ek — 14,175 — —
——
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26 Material related party transactions (Continued) 26 EXREALTES (@
(@) Transactions with group companies (Continued) (a) EERIEBERS (&)

Notes: MI3E

0] Sales to and purchases from group companies were carried out at terms 0] I ERZZIEEHREZAGFHETT - BRAE
mutually agreed by both parties. The terms of the outstanding balances are R AR AR 16 RFIRR ©
set out in note 16.

Related companies are related to the Group as their ultimate holding BN R ALK B AR ERAHE R KIERA
company has a significant influence over the Group. RS AREEFEATE -

(i) Royalties are payable to intermediate holding companies and a minority (i) HHERIEREBETARME  AFEA
shareholder for the use of certain trademarks pursuant to relevant licensing BRI B ESL TR NI A T & FE1Z AR I%
agreements. RHER -

During the year, an intermediate holding company waived royalties payable RAFE - AN ERARIARBE AEE

by the Group amounting to $Nil (2018: $692,000), which is not included in MEMEER (ZF—/\F : #2 692,000

the amounts disclosed above. L) R BIRABREEN LEER
SFEF o

(i) Interest expense was paid for the loan from an intermediate holding (ii) FEXHTIBFRNMERARNER ©
company.

(iv) Advertising and promotion subsidy was received from an intermediate (iv) ZE - N\FERPNMERA BRI ES
holding company for promotion of certain brands in the PRC during the KriiGH EmB S T REET A
year ended 31 December 2018. HRE o

These transactions also constitute connected transactions or continuing RIEFTRBEUAEZ  HELS (BER

connected transactions as defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules, ERRZRGHRIN) BKRIER SIS E R

except for the purchases from related companies, which the directors do ER G o HERBIEY - KATIEEHEE

not consider to be connected transactions under the Listing Rules. BREARRGTIERLEERS °

(b) Other transactions with group companies (b) HEERAHMEERS
Due from/(to)
Amounts balances at year end
-] B (fF) EEER
2019 2018 2019 2018
—E-hE —E-)N\F —E-hEF —T-N\F
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
T T T T
Expenses paid by the Group on AAREBEREEADR
behalf of group companies RZEH
— intermediate holding companies ~ — AR A A (403) 1,948 434 5
— fellow subsidiaries — RZEKERA 94 7 9 15
— a related company — BERA 6,795 6,59 1,492 3,661
Expenses paid by group companies  gEEE A R AREE
on the Group’s behalf KZEHR
— intermediate holding companies  — /M 2ER& A 7 975 3,407 (8,692) (7,304)
— fellow subsidiaries — REMERA] — 75 (4) (20)
]
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26 Material related party transactions (Continued) 26 EBEABEALIRS (#)
(c) Key management personnel remuneration (c) FEEBAEMS
Remuneration for key management personnel of the Group, including ASREERERABZME (BIEMGE7 ATH
amounts paid to the Company’s directors as disclosed in note 7 and the BB (MR 2 R B Y 2 FRIA K Y ik 8 TR BR
highest paid employees as disclosed in note 8, is as follows: mETHEEHFESEX N 2HIE) T :
2019 2018
—E-hEF ZE-N\F
$'000 $'000
¥ T
Short-term employee benefits EHEEEF 18,734 18,449
Post-employment benefits BREL 12 R A 906 933
19,640 19,382
Total remuneration is included in “staff costs” (see note 5(b)). e Es A TEIHM] A (RHIEESD))
27 Amalgamation with a subsidiary 27 HEELATZEH
Pursuant to a special resolution of the Company passed at the BERARGTR-ZZE—NFNA =+ AR
Extraordinary General Meeting on 26 April 2019, the Company and ZREREFRARE LRBIZFIAZER  AQ
its wholly-owned subsidiary, Ravelin Limited (“RL"), were approved a8 Ravelin Limited ([RL] » AR A2 E KN
to amalgamate by way of vertical amalgamation and continue as BT BIBEAQ ARG 680 15 FE @Ak A&
one company pursuant to section 680 of the Hong Kong Companies HmAEHLERE—RATEERFT - MAR
Ordinance, with the Company becoming the amalgamated company. AAIKAEH AT - EHERZZ—NFEN
The amalgamation became effective on 19 June 2019. Under Division AT NBER - RBEEBRTEHIE 13508
3 of Part 13 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, from 19 June 3INE - BZE-—NAFARAATABR AR
2019, the Company and RL cease to exist as separate entities from the AINMRLTBEAHAMEABYEETL
amalgamated company and the amalgamated company succeeds all the MAARRRLZFTEME « BEF R R
property, rights and privileges, and all the liabilities and obligations of the FBEEREEHEBEHAR S -
Company and RL.
In the Company'’s financial statements, on the effective date of RARRMBHREA - REaftEXBE - &
amalgamation, the amalgamated company is treated as a continuation HRBIERIEARNRRI 2 FEERIE - ERF
of the Company, with the net assets of RL included using their existing ARLEEZAHANCIREEBENECEEFE
book values immediately before the amalgamation, and the financial kA& AR ZRLE BRI o NARMG
performance of RL included from the date of amalgamation. Comparative WERPZHEREBIBEWESS - 5HFRTRLAVIZ
figures in the Company’s financial statements are not restated. Investment EMEREEZEE  SHEZZTREME
properties are the major assets of RL and are included in the Company’s BEEARRBNPFERE
financial statements after amalgamation.
The amalgamation had no impact on the Company’s consolidated financial EHEARRRZEEVHERRITELE - fF
statements, since RL was a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company RRLRAHAIEBARBIZ2EKHB AR -
before the amalgamation.
——
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28 cCompany - level statement of financial position 28 #2F — HEKAE

2019 2018
—EF-NF —TN\F
Note $'000 $'000
B aE F7 +7T
Non-current assets EREEE
Property, plant and equipment MNEE - RN 321,773 330,582
Investment properties B 27 121,613 —
443,386 330,582
Intangible assets B EE 4,771 4,771
Investments in subsidiaries MiB A mlfERS 4,343 139,300
452,500 474,653
Current assets REEE
Inventories e 27,947 25,608
Trade and other receivables JEURE 5 Kk E M ARTE 44,720 43,828
Amounts due from holding companies — FEUWIZRE A & &
and fellow subsidiaries EE NG 16,052 21,868
Amount due from a related company FEUL BAE N RIBRIR 1,492 3,234
Bank deposits RITER 22,661 24,461
Cash and cash equivalents Re MERBESIER 46,350 32,741
159,222 151,740
current liabilities REBAE
Trade and other payables FENE S REMERTE (50,612) (42,990)
Loan from an intermediate holding RMER AT ZER
company (51,115) (51,394)
Amounts due to holding companies FERHERR A T R
and fellow subsidiaries G ENEESE] (763) (703)
Amounts due to related companies FEfTRA:E A RBRIE (4,998) (3,328)
Current tax payable JERFRIR (894) —
(108,382) (98,415)
Net current assets RBEERE 50,840 53,325
[
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28 company - level statement of financial position 28 AT — MH¥EKRAE @

(Continued)
2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-)N\F
Note $'000 $'000
iz FT FIT
Total assets less current liabilities ZAEERGRBHERS 503,340 527,978
Non-current liabilities ERBERE
Loan from an intermediate holding PR AR Z B
company. (51,115) (64,243)
Amounts due to subsidiaries FEISTHT B A R BRIE (10,741) =
(61,856) (81,940)
NET ASSETS EEFE 441,484 446,038
CAPITAL AND RESERVES B #E 23(a)
Share capital i 252,524 252,524
Other reserves Eth i 188,960 193,514
TOTAL EQUITY AT 441,484 446,038
Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on KHESER -—T-FF=A-RIERR
2 March 2020. REFEE o
Ramon S. Ang BB Ramon G. Torralba Mg
Director BE Director 2
[ ]
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (BRBERTIN - HIRBEHE)

29 Comparative figures 29 LHESEH
The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 at 1 January 2019 using the AEBEEFERAKETBNEGRERTEM
modified retrospective approach. Under this approach, comparative FEIRELRE 558 c BRIBU % - LA
information is not restated. Further details of the changes in accounting BREEY - @HHEEH 2 E—FFER
policies are disclosed in note 1(c). BRE1(0) 5 -

30 Immediate and ultimate controlling party 30 EERRREERAF
At 31 December 2019, the directors consider the immediate parent RIEBE—NF+_A=+—"8 BEZRAEAK
and ultimate controlling party of the Group to be Neptunia Corporation SENEES AR RGERIERAAD AR
Limited and Top Frontier Investment Holdings, Inc. respectively. Neptunia 37 5w F A R A &) & Top Frontier Investment
Corporation Limited is incorporated in Hong Kong while Top Frontier Holdings, Inc. » 37w 7 A BR 2 A1 R & 78 FE it
Investment Holdings, Inc. is incorporated in the Republic of the Philippines. X371 Top Frontier Investment Holdings, Inc.
Top Frontier Investment Holdings, Inc. produces financial statements BIFAJE /2 B A B 5 it B 37 © Top Frontier
available for public use. Investment Holdings, Inc. R RLEF E kK T A

RIEM -
31 Possible impact of amendments, new standards 31 ESEGEXRRBE_Z—NE+=

and interpretations issued but not yet effective
for the year ended 31 December 2019

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the HKICPA has
issued a number of amendments, new standards and interpretations
which are not yet effective for the year ended 31 December 2019 and
which have not been adopted in these financial statements. These include
the following which may be relevant to the Group:

Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on or after

Amendments to HKFRS 3, Definition of a business 1 January 2020

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKAS 8§,
Definition of material

1 January 2020

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of what the impact
of these developments is expected to be in the period of initial application.
So far it has concluded that the adoption of them is unlikely to have a
significant impact on the consolidated financial statements.

R=+—HLFEERMBHEANE
B - MR R R R REE R R

BEAMBRERTIER  BESHMIEE
EREERNEE T -AFT_A=1+—H
IEFEADREMEAERMER] ~ FER R 2
B AR R IR L FHE 7T R 2
Ao B UATEASEAR

RTHBHH
ZEBRZ
ST HBEXR
BT SR —E-TF—-F—H
FE=5% (1&7])
EBHTEE

HEETEME—SRKE —T-FF—-A—H
BRGRTERE/\R
(1E3T) ERHIER

REBEEFHAZF RSN A REREZ
FE DERAL  AEERSRNZEE

AMERTH REB NS M RRBREAT
BHEREMETK -
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Independent auditor’s report to the members of
San Miguel Brewery Hong Kong Limited
(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of San Miguel Brewery
Hong Kong Limited (“the Company”) and its subsidiaries (“the Group”) set out
on pages 64 to 135, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 December 2019, the consolidated income statement,
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated cash flow statement
for the year then ended and notes to the consolidated financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view
of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2019
and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows
for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards ("HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA") and have been properly prepared in compliance with
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“"HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the
audit of the consolidated financial statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (“the Code") and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were
of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements
for the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our
audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.
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Assessing potential impairment of property, plant and equipment — Hong Kong brewery operations

FENE  BERES — DEREEBHREN T

Refer to note 11 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies on pages 78-79

AR AR IREAM T 11 RE 782 79 HAYEFHHE

The key audit matter
BRETEE

How the matter was addressed in our audit
BRETEEEERPEERES L

In view of the loss incurred by the Group’s Hong Kong brewery
operations, management considered that indicators of
impairment of the Group's property, plant and equipment used
in Hong Kong brewery operations existed at 31 December
2019.

ENEEEREREBERIESHNEE  BEERRN_Z—N1
FTA=+—"HESEANTEBREEBNYE - BB MR
BFERETR

Accordingly, management assessed whether there was any
impairment of the Group's property, plant and equipment used
in the Hong Kong brewery operations, at 31 December 2019,
which was assessed by preparing a value in use calculation
based on a discounted cash flow analysis.

it - EBEFER -G+ A=1+T—HESERARE
BEAEGOYE  WERREEEZERE - WERERR
WeMDMREUEAEETE AETE

The discounted cash flow analysis used to assess the risk of
potential impairment was based on a number of assumptions,
which included revenue forecasts and estimations of future
discounts, future variable costs and fixed costs as well as
future inflation in Hong Kong and long-term growth rates. The
determination of these assumptions requires management
to exercise significant judgement and is subject to inherent
uncertainty.
ARFHEETREREHERRESRA N IHERZIBRE -
BRI ATE R R ARRITHOEE ~ AR AT B [ B TE BCAN A S
BEARRBRERAEER - GERENECTZETEREED
BAABAEZBRREBN T EEEE -

Our audit procedures to assess potential impairment of
property, plant and equipment used in Hong Kong brewery
operations included the following:

BFIRHETE - M ERE — HERERBRERIENE
SR EENT A ¢

o engaging our internal valuation specialists to assist us
in assessing the methodology applied by management
in its discounted cash flow analysis with reference
to the requirements of the prevailing accounting
standards;
EAERMIABEEMBHEPIELERITER R
BEHEREEECRAR S RO M EAN T EH#ET
A

o critically challenging the key assumptions and
forecasts adopted by management in its preparation
of the discounted cash flow analysis by referring to
industry and other available third party information,
the recent financial performance of the Hong Kong
brewery operations and management’s budgets and
plans for the operations in 2020 and beyond;
DETEREMAIERME=FEL  BBRBES
TN BRRRERBER S _SF RHBEBT
EMTEE RETEIE  BEFGEREERNRREEAERR
MR AN A RE SR R 3R N FR0RI

. engaging our internal valuation specialists to assist us

in assessing the discount rate used by management in
its discounted cash flow analysis by recalculating an
appropriate discount rate with reference to available
financial information of other listed brewing companies
in Asia Pacific and considering region and industry
specific risk premiums;
BAERMEAEEER - BERMER2ERTREE
fth = 7 R 2 B AT EX A B S BRI B R [ BR AT
BERRGEEREMAENEEMRE  NHEEE
MREB BRI S AT A R REER ZE TR
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Assessing potential impairment of property, plant and equipment — Hong Kong brewery operations (Continued)

AR - BBERRE — EEREERNREN TN (8)

Refer to note 11 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies on pages 78-79

B2 E B RAN T 11 RE78E 79 A&t E

The key audit matter

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BRETEE BREEBFBEEEXPTEEL
We identified assessing potential impairment of property, | comparing the actual performance and results of the

plant and equipment used in Hong Kong brewery operations
as a key audit matter because of the significant judgement
and estimation required to be exercised by management in
forecasting future revenue, variable costs and fixed costs and
in determining an appropriate discount rate and also because
of the magnitude of the assets under consideration and the
possibility of management bias in the selection of the key
assumptions.

BPIETEE - HEE RRE — BBBREKO AR E R
ERBRETEE - WHHRNERETERRRKA - RRAZ
PR B2 AR 2R [ TE A AN DA I 7 T 3 AR 3R R S ZR VR HH B X 1 %
5t TERGEZEENREREREEENRMRENIE
fmEa -

Hong Kong brewery operations for the current year
with the key assumptions and forecasts adopted by
management in the discounted cash flow analysis for
the prior year to assess the accuracy of management'’s
forecasting process and making enquiries of
management as to the reasons for any significant
variations identified and whether they have been
considered in the current year's key assumptions and
forecasts; and

BEBBBERRNAMBRFENERRE REERE
BENBEFENDMRRERESITHRMEHEE
BRa% RFERIMEATLLE - AT E 12 [ 78R A2 Fr 6 ZE 1
ERFEFBNOEMERESNREA RN A REE

MEREBELBAEFREEERLMEAZNERE
ELE#R - &
o performing sensitivity analysis for the discount rate,

sales growth rate and operating costs in the discounted
cash flow analysis and considering in greater detail
the information used to derive the most sensitive
assumptions and whether there were any indicators of
management bias in their selection.
HEMRBASROMAIRE - HEERERLERK
TETHREDN - WERE I EHRBREFERD
FEHEEN  MEREMNRERLATMARENTE -
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Accounting for discounts, rebates and promotional incentives

il BAREREEALRK

Refer to note 24(f) to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies on page 80

B 2Rk A B R Y ot 24(1) I % 80 AR & 5T

The key audit matter
BRETEE

How the matter was addressed in our audit
BRETEEEERPEERES L

The Group offers a variety of discounts, rebates and
promotional incentives, including regular trade discounts,
volume rebates, special sales promotion and price support, to
its customers in the normal course of business. These costs
are accounted for as a deduction from revenue.

BERETE —MEBBERRMARTPREHESER - DA RIEE
BE OEFHAXSIN  HERRE SERERERERMHE
Af o B LR AIRIRARIIE AR ©

A large proportion of the discounts, rebates and promotional
incentives had not been paid or utilised at 31 December
2019 and relevant accruals are either included in trade and
other payables or off-set against trade receivables when the
Group has a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised
amount and intends to settle on a net basis.

REBDHH - BMAREEEER T —NF+_A=T—8¥
REAHER - RABETRERAARESBE GRS ZEHIEE
PR WHHRFREEEA SR ARNE S KA MRS
S E 5 ARIA B AR o

We identified accounting for discounts, rebates and
promotional incentives as a key audit matter because of
the significance of the amounts to the Group’s gross profit
and because there are different schemes and arrangements
for each major customer, some of which can be complex in
nature, which increases the risk of error in the calculation
thereof.

BT - BAREEEEARBR RBERETEE - LD
MR BB EEBENNBAIH REREREAETERF
ERATRNARRTH - MBAORBER - HimENETEER
B L o

Our audit procedures to assess the accounting for discounts,
rebates and promotional incentives included the following:
BPFTETN - A REEEEARNETEFEEATH
m :

o evaluating the design, implementation and operating
effectiveness of key internal controls over recording
discounts, rebates and promotional incentives;
ST BAREEEENGETENEEANEE
THRRET © BT REERRUL ¢

J analysing the Group's historical data for discounts and

rebates to determine an expectation for the current
year, based on the current year’'s sales amounts,
comparing our expectation with the actual figures
recorded by the Group and investigating unusual items
or trends;
SMESEEMITINREMAABEEE - UERAREIK
FEMNHEHRETCAVBRERENER - TR ME
HEESEGSNERSTETHLURAETSEE
THE 8%

o comparing the accruals for discounts, rebates and
promotional incentives made by management as at 31
December 2018 with the actual discounts, rebates and
promotional incentives paid/payable to customers to
assess the accuracy of the prior year’s accruals and
making enquiries of management as to the reasons for
any significant under or over provision and assessing
whether they have been considered in the current
year's accruals;

BEEEN _Z—\F+_A=+—8ELNHN -
EEREEESEEREEN BNEFNER
N EAREERERETLER U EFEFRE
AWERE - WHAMEXREETELBENRAR
EEEBELEARTEREEAVBREETIRERAR
EEEERE LiAE

o selecting a statistical sample of discounts, rebates and

promotional incentives for the year and comparing
each selected item with the relevant sales contract
and customer agreement, recalculating the expense
payable by the Group and assessing whether the
amounts had been recorded in the appropriate
accounting period;
HENT - B REEERETHE RS S ERE
HEEMABEESAREPHEALE  EFMtEE
SEENEBERURTHEFIEREETHENREEHMNET
HARS -
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il EREREREEALR (B)

Accounting for discounts, rebates and promotional incentives (Continued)

Refer to note 24(f) to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies on page 80
AR A TR I 7 24(0) 2 58 80 B BV E FTIUR

The key audit matter
BRETEE

How the matter was addressed in our audit
BREETEEEERPEERES L

developing an expectation of the year end accruals
for major customers based on purchases for the
year, expenses paid during the year and the credit
terms agreed with respective customers, comparing
the actual accruals with our expectations, enquiring
of management as to the reasons for any significant
differences and assessing whether they have been
considered in the current year's accruals;
ERFAREE FAENEBEANREZEPHEDN
EEGRF - HXEXFPHNFERAREMAELTEDY  #
BERFHREREARMOBRETHER  REEATEWNE
REFH RA R E 2 E VEH & 5 DA KT b 7 & TE AR B
BEENREARESEE R LA E

comparing subsequent actual settlement of discounts,
rebates and promotional incentives with the
corresponding amounts accrued as at the year end to
assess the recording of accruals as at year end; and
S B REREENHEBERATEFRERE
MRS FREITIE - UAHMAFERGHEB AN - &

inspecting journals processed during the year relating
to discounts, rebates and promotional incentives and
selecting a sample of these based on pre-determined
risk based criteria the details of which were compared
with the relevant underlying documentation.
FHESFARIZEITN - B RERESMERN
BT UARERESETHREREEPHERR - &
B EARRE B SRR ETTHILL ©
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INFORMATION OTHER THAN THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND AUDITOR'’S REPORT
THEREON

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises all the information included in the annual report, other than the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the
other information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion
thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a
material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report
that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs
issued by the HKICPA and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and for
such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going concern,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to
liguidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but
to do so.

The directors are assisted by the Audit Committee in discharging their
responsibilities for overseeing the Group's financial reporting process.

e MR R R EN R & LS e (s

o

v

EEFTHEMBEHNAR - HEENBRETERNF
B EER - BENBEGREMEHRE LM
HAZ BB ©

BPSGEMBHRANBERL TIREELMER
BAM T HZEEMERBEREMEANEES
i
HBARMERAMBRMRNET  HMANEER
FIEEMER  FiEEd  ZRHEMENRS
HFAMBHRRK B AIERTBIETAT BB
AEEEAEESEUTFEERERRLNE
Do

AERBEMEHITOITE  MRBEMRBEMLER
BFEEA#ERRL  BAMFERSZEE - HE
HE - BIVRB IS -

EFNGEMERRARBENHRE

EFAAARBEEBSHMAGRMN (FEM
BREEL) REECRRGH) BHBEEEMH A
MR A B ImER - AHERRA/BEEUBHRE
MR TN FER R ARF R M BN E KR
PRAFFFHANEIEHIRE -

ERBGEAMBRERE  EFA8THEEER
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. This report is made solely to you, as a body, in
accordance with section 405 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for
no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability
to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error
and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken
on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We
also:

. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the

reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made
by the directors.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT BN % H MRS

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the
group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings,
including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during
our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence
and communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence and, where applicable,
related safeguards.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT BN % H MRS

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we determine
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit
matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law
or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing
so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of
such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s
report is Cheng Mei Yan Hilary.

KPMG
Certified Public Accountants

8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road
Central, Hong Kong

2 March 2020
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GROUP PROPERTIES E£E¥)%

Details of the major property of the Group are as follows:

Location Existing use

b B BERAR

Major property held for investment
BERENIEME

San Miguel Industrial Building Rental
Nos. 9-11 Shing Wan Road,
Tai Wai, Shatin, Hong Kong

BBV MABRKER9-115% GiEh=1
ENTEKRE
|
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Term of lease
FHHS

Medium-term
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FIVE YEAR SUMMARY EEEHBE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (ABEEEE
2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
—E-hF —E-N\F T —+F ZE-RF “E-RF
$'000 $' 000 $°000 $°000 $°000
Fr T T Fr Fr
(Note)
()
Results Ey
Revenue WA 580,050 584,609 565,785 541,427 569,502
Profit/(loss) before taxation BREAI R (E518) 3,310 (70,860) 14,400 5,927 (16,053)
Income tax credit/(charge) FTfS®iat A/ (i) 4,990 (3,228) 819 778 (856)
Profit/(loss) for the year FERH,/ (EBE) 8,300 (74,088) 15,219 6,705 (16,909)
Attributable to: FEIGEAT
— Equity shareholders — RRAIERFEA
of the Company 11,583 (73,556) 12,480 8,654 (16,074)
— Non-controlling interests — RS (3,283) (532) 2,739 (1,949) (835)
Profit/(loss) for the year FEAT/ (FE) 8,300 (74,088) 15,219 6,705 (16,909)
Earnings/(loss) per share SREF, (BE)
— Basic (cents) — EA () 3 (20) 3 2 )
Cash dividends per share (cents) FRIFALKRE (L) — — — — —
Assets and liabilities EEHEE
Property, plant and equipmentand )% « #=2 R E - BE
investment properties MEREELH 474,377 487,708 576,388 584,806 597,381
Intangible assets BVAE 4,771 4,771 4,781 5,139 5,163
Net current assets mEAEFE 98,622 94,495 128,905 154,362 162,371
Total assets less current liabilities ~ AEERREHEE 577,770 586,974 710,074 744,307 764,915
Retirement benefit liabilities RINEFEE (10,741) (17,697) (5,799) (17,844) (26,939)
Deferred tax liabilities EERIEEE — (4,360) (4,052) (2,969) (2,243)
Loan from an intermediate holding R MER R Al 2 BER
company (Non-current portion) GEREEMR) (51,115) (64,243) (115,412) (165,410) (190,747)
Net assets BERE 515,914 500,668 584,811 558,084 544 986
Capital and reserves BRAR EE
Share capital A 252,524 252,524 252,524 252,524 252,524
Other reserves H it 291,560 273,634 358,567 332,687 319,516
Total equity attributable to equity AR FRIEREA A
shareholders of the Company il e 544,084 526,158 611,091 585,211 572,040
Non-controlling interests ES g (28,170) (25,490) (26,280) (27,127) (27,054)
Total equity R 515,914 500,668 584,811 558,084 544,986
Note to the five year summary: EFREBEFET

As a result of the adoption of HKFRS 16, Leases, with effect from 1 January 2019, the Group
has changed its accounting policies in respect of the lessee accounting model. In accordance
with the transitional provisions of the standard, the changes in accounting policies were
adopted by way of opening balance adjustments to recognise right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities as at 1 January 2019. After initial recognition of these assets and liabilities, the
Group as a lessee is required to recognise interest expense accrued on the outstanding
balance of the lease liability, and the depreciation of the right-of-use asset, instead of the
previous policy of recognising rental expenses incurred under operating leases on a straight-
line basis over the lease term. Figures in years earlier than 2019 are stated in accordance
with the policies applicable in those years.
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